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From: Michael Mever Il @ democracy-reporting.org]

Sent: 5/23/2024 12:29:30 PM

To: I N 2 (ocically.ai); I (ct ~) B G microsoft.com); N
B oo < com]; KOLODZIEISKA Anna [ G<c.curopa.cu)

EC CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; [ IIIGGEGEEE B icrosoft.com]; GILLET Jeanne
I G - curopa.eu]

Subject: Next subgroup on gAl (32 June) - get invitation out

Dear colleagues,

with I away, we should wrap this up.
Can we agree on the following:

Meeting of Working Group on generative Al/ Code of Practice Disinfo

When: Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET

Agenda:

14:00 Opening and Agenda Check

14:10 Detecting/reacting to Al generated mis/disinfo - C2PA and beyond. Focus on the challenges.
Kick-Off statements (5min each): Andy Parson, Prof. Steinebach, an expert from Google
15:15 gAl misinformation — how to prevent hallucination

Kick-off statements: TBC.

Discussion

15:50 A.O.B. and closure

16:00 END

If (CELA) and @l =< ok, could you send this out to participants @KOLODZIEJSKA
Anna, so that people can reserve the slot?

| will be in touch on remaining details (who could speak from Google? Could il help to get an industry expert on
LLMs and the hallucination problem).

But for the invite the above should be good enough.

With best wishes,
[
From: N B ocic:ly.ai>

Sent: Montag, 13. Mai 2024 16:08

To: Michael Mever [l @democracy-reporting.org>; IR (ccLA) BEERG icrosoft.com>;
I - o oc e .com>

Cc: cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEISKA Anna I ©c.curopa.cu>; I
G icrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne < <c.curopa.eu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Thanks Michael, all fine with me. We await the responses from our fellow co-coordinators to get the ball
rolling

S ——— ——

Senipr Manager, Government Affairs

Mo www.logically.ai
(EU-& UK)
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On Mon, 13 May 2024 at 15:00, Michael Meyer <}l d emocracy-reporting.org> wrote:
Hi I

my proposal is two sessions. The first one longer, with 2 experts (or three; ok for me if they do not make
long presentations). The second one with two experts. As you are pressed for time, Sophie, why don’t
we do misinfo/hallucination which complements the first session; and in the following meeting we look
at behaviour and maybe risk assessments.

I can connect the experts for prep/briefing once confirmed (maybe it is enough to do this through email;
avoiding another meeting).

Cheers, I

From: [N B - ogically.ai>

Sent: Montag, 13. Mai 2024 14:34
To: Michael Meyer Bl democracy-reporting.org>
Co: I (CELA) <SG mcrosoft.com>; N S - - o

cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna < IINIGIGEGE - c .curopa.cu>;

B B icosoit.com>; GILLET Jeanne <G cc.c uropa.eu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Hi Michael,

Thanks for your email.

Can | confirm that your preference is therefore to have 2 experts speaking on one topic (oris it 3 experts
speaking on the topic of "Detecting/reacting gAl mis/disinfo — C2PA and beyond"? | am struggling to
understand your email), and then 2 further experts speaking on two other separate topics each?
Therefore, 4 altogether across 3 presentations? It would be helpful to clearly quantify what you mean by
"too many experts and presentations".

I think we are still waiting for Il to reply with next steps on reaching out to Andy Parson.
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Do we have (I (CELA) and green light to go back to Hans from Valid

tech to reach out to his proposed stakeholders (outlined in my last emails)? | am interpreting that

Lastly, @Michael Meyer | reiterate from my email on Friday 10th that | will unfortunately NOT be able
to reach out to NATO's principal scientist, Gundars Bergmanis-Korats. Therefore, unless it would be
appropriate to nominate someone from Logically to speak (which | am happy to do, but | will need this
confirmation TODAY to get the ball rolling to that end before | go on annual leave).

Remaining action points listed below for your convenience:

o @GILLET Jeanne or @KOLODZIEJSKA Anna to circulate a calendar invitation for this next
Subgroup meeting to take place on Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET

« Once researchers/experts have been identified, reached out to (hopefully with success) we will
need to set up a briefing with them to set out how the meeting will unfold. The only other
acceptable date for our availabilities i.e. Thursday 30th May between 15:30 - 17:30. Can
someone please take responsibility for setting this up once the researchers are confirmed?

As | will be on annual leave Tuesday 14th - Tuesday 28th May | am unable to contribute further to
this after today. Can someone else please take on the responsibility of following up on the above
action points?

[——— . —

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

2 : www logically.ai
(EU & UK)

fIX]in]O

On Mon, 13 May 2024 at 13:24, Michael Meyer <l @democracy-reporting.org> wrote:

Thank you, || lanc IR

| see the problem with too many experts and presentations. Maybe if we can convince them to be very
short it could work. (Otherwise, | would drop Prof. Steinebach)

I suggest a rough agenda along those lines below. Main emphasis then on detection/reaction.
Have a good day, Michael
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1. Detecting/reacting gAl mis/disinfo - C2PA and beyond. Focus on the challenges. 75 minutes

Kick off, 4min each: Andy Parson, Prof. Steinebach, an expert from Google (GHIEEEEEE you said you
may have somebody).

Kick-offs should describe what aspects experts consider the most important challenges that they
would like to discuss further in the meeting.

2. Preventing gAl misinformation — how to prevent hallucination 45 minutes this would be my
preference, but | am also ok to go down the “behavoiur-led” road, Sophie (L.am only not so sure
what is genAl specific about it).

4 min. kick-off by platform expert and “| I expert”.

From: [N B o gically.ai>

Sent: Freitag, 10. Mai 2024 17:19

To: I (CELA) I ¢ ©microsoft.com>

Cc: Michael Meyer Bl democracy-reporting.org>; I EGNGGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGE - coogle.com>;
cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna <5lEEEIEGEGEGEGEGE - c.curopa.eu>;

I A > icrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne [ cc.curopa.eu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Indeed, | think four speakers will be more than enough, so I'm keen to lock in agreement on names and
topics so we can reach out to them and ensure enough time to coordinate ahead of Monday 3 June (3

weeks away already!).

Many thanks I

- i

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

(EU & UK)

www logically.ai
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On Fri, 10 May 2024 at 16:13, | IIIEIEIEIIGE CELA) B icrosoft.com> wrote:

Hi Il Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET, works for me. Thank you for coordinating.

The Adobe suggestion is surely fine. I'll check Hans' suggestions and if i don't get back before the
stated deadline consider them fine.

| do think we should not overload the meeting with too many experts, as between the two Hans
suggested, Adobe, additional i} and additional Michael suggestion we would end up with 5 experts
which i doubt will lead to very dynamic discussions but rather a succession of presentations.

Best,

From: JII G ogically.ai>

Sent: Friday, May 10, 2024 4:59 PM

To: Michael Meyer llllllr @democracy-reporting.org>; NG G- S ooglc.com>;
I (CELA) BB ©microsoft.com>

Cc: cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE®@ec.europa.eu>;
KOLODZIEJSKA Anna I - . . opa.cu>; [ <1

B G icrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne |z cc .curopa.cu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Hi Michael, I and I
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You will have seen that members of the Subgroup are getting in touch to request when this next
meeting will take place. As there has been no objection from G (CELA), canl please
ask @GILLET Jeanne or @KOLODZIEJISKA Anna to circulate a calendar invitation for this next
Subgroup meeting to take place on Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET?

Action points:

« | wanted toinform you that, due to internal annual leave dates presenting difficulties in
coordinating with those responsible for the relationship, | will NOT be able to reach out to
NATO's principal scientist, Gundars Bergmanis-Korats

« We seem to be in agreement on inviting someone from Adobe to speak. _can
you please coordinate with Stefanie to invite Andy Parsons to speak to us?

« Hans from Valid Tech has proposed the below researchers/experts to partake

o Professor Martin Steinebach from the Fraunhofer Institute for Cybersecurity - an expert
in the field of automated detection of dis- and misinformation (on platforms)

o Professor Martin Potthast's team who conducted research on the influence of GenAl
content on recommender systems

o Canyou please confirm whether you are satisfied with Hans' proposals?

« Incaseldonot hear back fromyou by COB Monday 13th May, can someone please take
responsibility for coordinating with Hans to reach out to these researchers?

« @Michael Meyer | would welcome any proposals of speakers you would have for the other
topics you suggested

« I <'come further speaker recommendations from you regarding 3P
researchers

« Once researchers/experts have been identified, reached out to (hopefully with success) we
will need to set up a briefing with them to set out how the meeting will unfold. The only
other acceptable date for our availabilities i.e. Thursday 30th May between 15:30 - 17:30.
Can someone please take responsibility for setting this up once the researchers are
confirmed?

Lastly, as already flagged, | will be on annual leave Tuesday 14th - Tuesday 28th May. Can
someone else please take on the responsibility of following up on the above action points to
ensure that we have invited researchers/experts to participate in this Subgroup meetingon 3
June?

Please let me know by COB Monday 13th whether | can move forward on any of these action points,
otherwise | am grateful for your support in ensuring the next Subgroup meeting can go ahead.

Wishing you all a lovely weekend!
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Best,

] L

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

e www.logically.ai
(EU & UK)

| fIx]in]o

On Tue, 7 May 2024 at 17:19, Michael Meyer <l @democracy-reporting.org> wrote:

Thank you | IEGzGzNG

Speakers on detection: Yes, Adobe would be one. | would also be interested to hear more from Meta
to explain a bit more what Lara told us recently (challenges in detecting synthetic audio and video).

And would Google or MS be able to bring somebody to talk more about misinformation from
hallucinations?

Cheers, I

From: N < -B > ogically.ai>

Sent: Dienstag, 7. Mai 2024 17:52

To: I B < coogle.com>

Cc: Michael Meyer IS democracy-reporting.org>; I I (CELA)

I Ccc.curopa.cu>; GG B > ic rosoft.com>; GILLET
Jeanne - <c .curopa.cu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Hiall,
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Thank you for the helpful information to coordinate! Some follow-up from me below to progress
things:

Logistics

. sorry to miss you on this occasion and looking forward to keeping you in

the loop!
. (CELA) with apologies for being unable to account for your preferences,
could | ask if you can make Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET work?

o @KOLODZIEISKA Anna @GILLET Jeanne pending- confirmation, could | trouble
you to forward a meeting invitation for this timeslot?

« Flagging that | will be on annual leave Tuesday 14th - Tuesday 28th May - if we are unable
to resolve the outstanding organisational details for this Subgroup meeting, could

someone please take this on in my stead?
Topics

« I -k you for your proposed suggestions of political bias of GenAl,
hallucinations, and Al-generated disinfo and the prevention/detection thereof

o Doyou thinkthatthe proposal to have a speaker on provenance (likely to be someone
from Adobe) satisfies your last suggestion on "prevention/detection”?

o lwould welcome any proposals of speakers you would have for the other topics
you suggested

.. - come further speaker recommendations from you regarding 3P
researchers
« Also I : o have interpreted my meaning correctly, Logically's overall view is

that the behaviour facilitating the circulation of content in the information space is as
important to assess as the authenticity of the content itself. | have proposed a speaker below
to this end i.e. to discuss the impact of GenAl on such behaviours used in online campaigns

Speakers

. (CELA) ifyou agree with I s.ggestion of Adobe's Andy Parsons, |
can loop us in Stefanie to ask whether she agrees or had a different proposal in mind - |
am happy to action this once you green light

« | propose reaching out to NATO's principal scientist, Gundars Bergmanis-Korats, with whom
Logically worked on this report in 2023 on the role of Al in online campaigns, to speak to the
role of GenAl in facilitating the behaviours behind such campaigns in addition to generating
potentially prahlematic content (pending successful outreach and follow-up where he may
wish to tweak the exact wording of his contribution) - | am happy to action this if you all
green light
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« |am happy to canvass the MS Teams Subgroup chat for the purposes of soliciting further
recommendations from Subgroup members, should we not have any further suggestions
ourselves - | await further contributions from you before actioning this

I , ——

Senior Manager, Government Affairs : .
www.logically.ai

(EU & UK)

f X ]in]
On Mon, 6 May 2024 at 15:37, I google.com> wrote:
Hi all -

I'm afraid that I'm likely to be on vacation on all three of these dates. You should, of course, proceed
without me -- and I'll be happy to support preparation.

Re: experts -

* Fine with having a C2PA rep presenting content credentials (if it helps - | sit at the C2PA
Steering Committee and canrequest there directly or support Stefanie's requestonce it
comes in). Not to put him on the spot but think Adobe's Andy Parsons would be a great PoC if
he's available.

*We should have someone speak to other provenance techniques, as while secure metadata
is helpful it is but one of the available technical options there. There's someone from Google
whom | think could be quite good but I'm not sure if he's available; and I will think through what
3P researchers could be a good fit otherwise (it's not that common for someone to be deep in
all the relevant techniques and to have enough practical experience deploying them at scale)

* In general | agree with you that Gen-Al powered disinformation,
much like any other type of disinformation, can be analyzed both through the content and
through the behavioral lens, the latter having the benefit of being technology-agnostic to a
large extent and therefore being more future proof. I'm taking from your comment that you
may refer to behaviors that are specific to GenAl technology, but thisis a good reminder that
the vast majority of the techniques deployed in other parts of the Code are useful here as well
(from elevating authoritative information to combating coordinated deceptive practices, etc.)
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Hope this helps,

On Fri, May 3, 2024 at 11:31 AM Michael Meyer 2 de mocracy-reporting.org> wrote:

Dear Sophie, thank you so much for the initiative. As these things go, my availability is:

B not good, but doable if only option
o Fri31/5 Impossible
o Mon 3/6 slot preferably, indeed ideal...

I would love us to avoid some kind of conference meeting, where experts give presentations and
then thereis a little Q&A. Instead we should discuss some critical issues to which the experts give
their input (Chatham house rule, of course). | see as critical issues: Political bias of gAl (clearly a
complex subject), hallucination in low domain fields, gAl generated disinfo and
prevention/detection. | will consult NGOs signatories also what they would like to discuss.

Enjoy your weekend, everyone!

Michael

From: [N < I o ca\y.ai>

Sent: Freitag, 3. Mai 2024 12:56

To: I (CELA) B icrosoft.com>
ce: T <o o< c.com>; Michael Meyer <SEI® democracy-

reporting.org>; cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna

I << c.curopa.eu>; [INNNEGG B icrosoft.com>;
GILLET Jeanne <llIIIIIG ©cc.curopa.eu>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Hi

Thanks foryour reply and for clarifying the dates, very much appreciated.
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Perhaps, given the time constraints, we can set a deadline of Tuesday 7th COB for the others to
reply on the suitability of the time slot on Thursday 30th May from 15:30 - 17:30. If necessary,
we can consider an alternative slot between 14:00 and 18:00 on Friday 31st May.

In terms of focus area, | think it makes sense to have one expert focusing on provenance tools as
you set out above, so perhaps for that we can ask Stefanie to reach out to her proposed
stakeholder once we have confirmed the Subgroup date.

From Logically's side, our positioning is that we take a behaviours-led approach to the issue of
disinformation in the information space, whether that be Al-generated or not, and thus consider it
to be both a dissemination and content problem. | have an external stakeholder in mind to invite to
this end, | am just awaiting the Commission's response separately in case there is any conflict of
interest. Should that proposal not work out, | would be happy to nominate a technical expert
internally from Logically to discuss the perspective of a behaviours-led approach, should that
be deemed appropriate by yourself, Il and Michael.

Considering that this would leave us with 2 expert slots filled with a discussion on provenance and
behaviours, lwill be happy for [l and Michael to chime in should they have suggestions of
topics / expert stakeholders for another 1-2 speaking slots.

Let me know if any feedback onthe above, and otherwise looking forward to hearing back by
Tuesday 7th May COB on setting the date of Thursday 30th May from 15:30 - 17:30 for the next
Subgroup meeting.

Best,

_ logically.ai

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

. , www.logically.ai
(EU & UK)
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On Thu, 2 May 2024 at 11:08, [ I c:LA) - icrosoft.com> wrote:
Thanks NGB

For the dates:

Tue 28/5 slot coincides with the Elections WG meeting.

Thu 30/5 slot is fine for me

e Fri31/5slotalsofine forme

. slot preferably not, but could make it work if necessary.

On the experts, happy to look at someone from our side internally but also happy to deferto
Google if they have a good suggestion. Of course, on our side content credentials / provenance
tools are an important part of the work we do in this space, together with Adobe and others. So
would you see the session as focusing on that aspect or would it be more broad and if so, are there
specific aspects you and others would seek to cover in particular? Justto hone a bit more the
theme / content of the session and think about relevant experts from that perspective?

Best,

From: [N B > o¢cally.ai>

Sent: Wednesday, 1 May 2024 11:03

To: NN (CELA) I > icrosoft.com>; [N
I -2 0 ogle.com>; Michael Meyer Bl democracy-reporting.org>

Cc: cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna

< < < . .curopa.cu>; [ B icrosoft.com>;

GILLET Jeanne 4l :C.curopa.eu>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections
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Hi all, and a very happy 1st of May!

As we have set out that the next Subgroup meeting will take place by the end of this month, we
should set a date. Please find proposals below (allin CET):

o Tuesday 28th May 14:00 - 16:00 OR 16:30 - 18:00
e Thursday 30th May 15:30-17:30

« Friday 31st May anytime between 14:00 - 18:00

« Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00

We have set out that this Subgroup meeting will gather researchers and/or experts to better
understand the risks at the intersection of generative Al and disinformation, as well as possible
measures to mitigate such risks. Do you have any ideas of whom we could invite to join us?

« Forexample, Stefanie from Adobe already offered to bring a technical expert to introduce
Content Credentials to the Subgroup

« |In addition to Adobe's expert, | would propose that we aim to have TWO external
researchers/experts and ONE expert nominated internally from either Microsoft or Google

e« This would ensure that we limit speakers to ensure meaningful Q&A thereafter, but |
encourage you to put forward other ideas or justifications for more than 4
researchers/experts, or for an alternative composition

« From Logically's side, | am already canvassing internally for suggestions. This is also work
that we have carried out internally, and so we will be happy to nominate a Logically staff
member to speak to the Subgroup on this topic if my co-coordinators deem this
appropriate.

Looking forward to hearing from you.

Best,

- I

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

www.logically.al
(EU & UK)

fIx]injo|
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* Head of Information Quality x Al

GO g Ie Strategy

Google Trust and Safety

. oogle.com
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From: CNECT-14@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-l4@ec.europa.eu]

Sent: 5/23/2024 4:26:27 PM

To: i Redacted tiktok.com]

cc CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu

Subject: RE: [External] Extraordinary CoP Plenary - Code's conversion

Thank you for a swift reply.

The V-pass has been created.
Looking forward to meeting you.
Best regards / Bien & vous,

Secretariat of DG CONNECT unit 14 - Media Convergence & Social Media
e-mail LNECT- 4@ ec.eurona.eu

n Commission

DG CONNECT - The Directorate-General for Communications Networks, Content and Technology
Mail: European Commission, Rue de la Loi 51, 1000 Brussels, Belgium

Address: Rue de la Loi 51, 1000 Brussels, Belgium

From; Redacted Dtiktok.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2024 5:52 PM

To: CNECT 14 <CNECT-l14@ec.europa.eu>

Cc: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu>
Subject: Re: [External] Extraordinary CoP Plenary - Code's conversion

Many thanks - Monday at 16:30 would work well,

Best regards

...................... 4
H
i

i Redacted

From: CNECT-14@ec.europa.eu

Date: Thu, May 23, 2024, 4:18 PM

Subject: RE: [External] Extraordinary CoP Plenary - Code's conversion

To: i Redacted itiktok.com>

Ce: "CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu”"<CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu>

As a follow up to the exchange below we would like to propose 2 slots for the potential meeting:
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e 27 May 2024, at 16.30h
e 28 May 2024, at 14.30h.

Please let us know if they are convenient for you.

Thank you.

Best regards / Bien a vous,

Secretariat of DG CONNECT unit 14 - Media Convergence & Social Media

e-mail CNECT-14@ec.europa.eu

European Commission
DG CONNECT - The Directorate-General for Communications Networks, Content and Technology

Mail: European Commission, Rue de la Loi 51, 1000 Brussels, Belgium
Address: Rue de la Loi 51, 1000 Brussels, Belgium

From: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE @ec.europa.cu>

Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2024 4:01 PM
To: Redacted tiktok.com>

......................

Cc:: Redacted {CNECT) Redacted @ec.europa.eu>; CNECT 14 <CNECT-I4@ec‘europa‘eu>£ Redactedi

| Redacted [CNECT) < Redacted lec.europa.eu>;i Redacted {CNECT)! Redacted  @ec.europa.eu>

.................

Subject: RE: [External] Extraordinary CoP Plenary - Code's conversion
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We are happy to meet to discuss the Code’s conversion.

Many thanks,

Kind regards,

..................

From:| Redacted tiktok.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 11:50 AM

To: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu>

Cc:i Redacted {CNECT) ¢ Redacted Dec.europa.eu>; Redacted @tiktok.com>
Subject: Re: [External] Extraordinary CoP Plenary - Code's conversion

Dear Commission team,

...........

...........

..........................

| will review the documents but would indeed appreciate the offer of a bilateral conversation to ensure that we have fully
understood the process and what is being proposed, given the importance of this next phase of the Code.

Many thanks and kind regards

| Redacted

e ————

From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu
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Date: Wed, May 22, 2024, 9:54 AM

Subject: [External] Extraordinary CoP Plenary - Code's conversion

To:i Redacted 'ZGDI)"E Redacted @dusmformatlonmdex org>,. Redacted-

i Redacted idemagog.org.pl>, § Redacted ?fldu.|t>,§neaamu;
. "Redacted iactivefence.com>,: Redacted irsf.org>, ! Redacted iarcom.fr>,
Redacted fidu.it>, Redacted feedback.org>,: Redacted ,
Redacted lessurligneurs.eu>; Redacted Dlogically.co.uk>,: Redacted
(TikTok} Redacted 2tiktok.com>, Redacted Daiforensics.org>, Redacted |
Redacted  ®legitimate.net>, Redacted , @®maldita.es>; Redacted ;
Redacted @tiktok.com>, i Redacted @microsoft.com>,! Redacted i
[ “Redacted _kreakom.dk>, Redacted igoogle.com>,i Redacted
" "Redacted __lessurligneurs.eu>, Redacted §newsguardtech com>, ?Redacted. _________________
Redacted :dlsmformationindex.org>,§ Redacted itiktok.com>, i Redacted.
Redacted ieaca.eu>,: Redacted igoogle.com>, | Redacted |
Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org>, i Redacted Edoubleverify.com>,§ ----- Redacted |
(GDI)" __Redacted _disinformationindex.org>,1 Redacted Dactivefence.com>; Redacted 1
Redacted iglobsec.org>, i Redacted ieui.eu>,i Redacted funky.ong>, Redacted |
Redacted Dfidu.it>, | Redacted @doteurope.eu>; Redacted |
Redacted feedback.org>, | Redacted Ev:meo com>,. Redacted'
! Redacted iabeurope.eu>,i Redacted wfanet.org>; | Redacted |
Redacted ialliancedeurope.eu>, | Redacted legitimate.net>, | Redacted |
Redacted inewsguardtech.com>; Redacted Imkedm cdm> ,
I Redacted eeas.europa.eu<{  Redacted _ieeas.europa.eu>,i Redacted -doteurope_ggg_ _______
Redacted valid.tech>, Redacted democracv reportmg org>,i Ef.‘ffﬁ.‘.ef'
Redacted icrispthinking.com>, | Redacted ivosteurope. org> Redacled-
i Redacted liabeurope.eu>, i Redacted inewtral.es>i Redacted |
Redacted inewsguardtech.com>, ! Redacted leui.eus, (e
Redacted wosteurope.org> Redacted {(CMS/ERGA)"< ~ Redacted 'irpms.sk>§ Redacted : The Bright
App"<ransithebrightapp.com>, Redacted democracy-reporting.org>, | Redacted @globsec.org>,
Redacted ifakto ara[h_r,_._,_.“ Redacted walid.tech>, i Redacted: .
g Redacted vimeo.com>; Redacted yEbiquity)l ~ Redacted _iebiquity.com>; Redacted
i Redacted wvosteurope.org>, Redacted isoogle.com>; i Redacted
i Redacted vosteurope.org> Redacted iglobsec.org>, i .'.‘..e.'f'ff?ffj
Redacted laiforensics.org>, i Redacted idemagog.org.pl>,
" Redacted leeas.europa.ey Redacted @eeas.europa.eu> Redacted fb.com>; Redacted |
| Redacted _ @rsf.org>)] ..Redacted iavaaz.org>, | Redacted Deui.eu>, Redacted|
Redacted ivimeo.com>,1 Redacted Deui.eu>, Redacted |
? Redacted Dlogicallyfacts.com>, i Redacted Davaaz.org>,Redacted;
i Redacted  ®firma.seznam.cz>, ! Redacted Dgoogle.com>,i Redacted!
i Redacted iaiforensics.org>, i Redacted @afp.com>, Redacted:
Redacted inewtral.es>, ! Redacted -maldlta es>,i i Redacted
i Redacted ifb.com>,i Redacted @twitch. tv>:-'-§5-&5'5i€a” i
Redacted imicrosoft.com>, Redacted dlinkedin.com>,: Redacted;
Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org>, Redacted ich-c.eu>/ Redacted ich-c. eu>;Redacted‘:
i Redacted igoogle.com>, i Redacted lavaaz.org>, Redacled ------------------
Redacted fiustin.tv>, i Redacted alliancedeurope.eu> Redacted !
Redacted firma.seznam.cz>, ! Redacted fb.com>,i Redacted irsf.org>,
Redacted ieui.eu>, | Redacted idemagog.org.pl>; Redacted
(NCRTV/ERGA)"< Redacted iag.gr>, g Redacted @firma.seznam.cz>,; Redacted
i Redacted Eactivefence.com>,§ Redacted Dcrispthinking.com>, Redacted !
i Redacted Ddisinformationindex.org>,i | Redacted ‘wfanet.org>; Redacted |
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i Redacted inewsguardtech.com>, i Redacted igoogle.com>,| Redacted |

Redacted iaiforensics.org>, Redacted iwhotargets.me>, | Redacted

i Redacted ialliancedeurope.eu>, Redacted il_ugicall co.uk>, | Redacted (Active

Fence)“i-‘.ﬁ;a-éa—éa“i@ctivefence.co m>, | Redacted E_igmrea kom.dk>,Redacted;

i Redacted tiktok.com>, i Redacted logically.co.uk>, Redacted |
Redacted rvr.sks, | Redacted ladobe.com>, | Redacted |

] Redacted ?doubleverify.com>, | Redacted leeas.europa.eu™ Redacted ieeas.europa.eu>,

i Redacted ieaca.eu>  Redacted  {ERGA)'< Redacted irvr.sk>, {Redacted!

Redacted imicrosoft.com>,  Redacted - pagellaPolitica” Redacted ipagellapolitica.it>, | Redacted |
i Redacted Diabeurope.eu>, | Redacted ialliancedeurope.eu>,! Redacted |

! Redacted Inewsguardtech.com>, i Redacted imaldita.es>, { Redacted !

! Redacted idebunk.org>, i Redacted E%essqr_{i_g_r_lg_g[_s_:gu>,E Redacted:
] Redacted Dnewsguardtech.com>; Redacted 56)9&256555.5[13,; Redacted |
| Redacted ec.europa.eu>, Redacted lec.europa.eu>; Redacted :

[ Redacted lec.europa.eu>, ! Redacted _lec.europa.eu>,i Redacted |

i_' Redacted lec.europa.eus,! Redacted Dec.europa.eu>,

| Redacted lec.europa.eu>, | Redacted lec.europa.eu>, | Redacted |

: Redacted Pec.europa.eu>, | " Redacted lec.europa.eus ! Redacted |
Redacted Dec.europa.eu>

Ce:f Redacted google.com >,§ Redacted idebunkeu.o rg>,5R.e-|-:ta.c;;c;:

. Redacted irsf.org>, | Redacted icrispthinking.com>,!  Redacted |
i Redacted logically.ai>; Redacted imeta.com>,! Redacted meta.com>, Redacted !

i Redacted ibytedance.com>, i Redacted Dec.europa.eu>, | Redacted |

i Redacted {@ec.europa.eu>,! Redacted wvimeo.com>,i Redacted !

P Redacted imeta.com>, | Redacted igoogle.com>; Redacted icsa.be>

Dear Signatories,

Please find below and attached the webex connection details to our Extraordinary CoP Plenary meeting which will take

place today {22.05) at 16:00-17:30 CET.

Kind regards,

CoP Team

DG CONNECT CNECT.L4 is inviting you to a scheduled Webex meeting.
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Wednesday, May 22, 2024

400 PM | (UTC+02:00) Brussels, Copenhagan, Madsid Paris | 3his

More ways to join:

Join from the meeting link

Join by meeting number

Meeting number {access code): ||| G
Meeting passworc: [

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only)
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I © 1 Tol
I | e bourg Toll

Some mobile devices may ask allendees {o enter a numeric password,

Join by phone

B G oivm Toll
B e bourg Toll

Global call-in numbers

Join from a video system or application
oie!

You can also dial ||| cnd enter your meeting number.

Need help? Go to https://help.webex.com

Dear Signatories,

With our sincere apologies for the short notice, we have spotted a mistake from our side in the invitation: the Plenary
meeting will take place Wednesday 22 May 2024, from 4-5:30pm (not Wednesday 29 May).
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As we are keen on moving forward with this important process, we would like to keep this date. If you can unfortunately
not join us, we are of course happy to debrief you bilaterally afterwards.

With our apologies again,

Kind regards,

The CoP Team

Dear Signatories,

We are reaching out to you today in view of calling an extraordinary Plenary meeting of the Code’s signatories to inform
you about the process of the conversion of the Code of Practice on Disinformation into a Code of Conduct under Article
45 of the DSA.

We understand that this is a very much anticipated moment for many of you as since its inception — and as recognised in
the Preamble — the 2022 Code of Practice on Disinformation has aimed to become a Code of Conduct under Article 45
DSA. In the Code's Preamble (recital (h)), the Signatories confirmed their wish to make it complementary to and aligned
with the regulatory requirements and overall objectives of the DSA. The Code of Practice on Disinformation is as well
referred to in recital 106 of the DSA.

Therefore, at the Plenary meeting we would like to present the procedure of the conversion as well as invite the
signatories to prepare the Code for such a conversion. Notably, in order to be ready to launch the process, we consider
that a few clarifications should be included in the Preamble of the Code. We will provide you with the further details at
the Plenary meeting.

To this end, we invite you to a Task-force Plenary meeting, to be held online on Wednesday 29-May-2024, Wednesday
22 May 2024, from 4-5:30pm (CET), to discuss the recognition process and the necessary steps forward.

We will share the Webex connection details very soon.

Kind regards,
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The CoP Team
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From:

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu]

Sent: 5/23/2024 12:25:09 PM
To: Redacted _}(GDI) Redacted @disinformationindex.orgl; Redactad demagog.org.pl];i Redacted |
edifidu.it];| Redacted . activefence.com]: Redacted irsf.orgli Redacted arcom.frl Redacted |
Redacted @fidu.it];! Redacted ifeedback.org)] Redacted ilessurligneurs.eu];. Redacted |
logically.co.uk]; Redacted {TikTok){ ~Redacted _Dtiktok.com] Redacted hiforensics.orgli  Redacted |
] Redacted ‘Iﬁiegltlmate net]i Redacted ¥maldita.es]; Redacted friktok.com] Redacted ;
icrosoft.com]; Redacted kreakom.dk]: Redacted igoogle.com]j Redacted i
Hlessurligneurs.eu]; Redacted inewsguardtech.com]; Redacted idisinformationindex. org], Redacted | i
i itiktok.com; Redacted ieaca.eul; Redacted ‘google.com]; Redacted |
[ Redacted _idemocracy-reporting.orglii Redacted | idoubleverify.com]{ Redacted {GDIi Redacted @disinformationindex.org;
Redacted activefence.com]; Redacted globsec.org)i Redacted leui.eu]} Redacted ifunky.ong);
i Redacted ifidu.it];: Redacted idoteurope.eui Redacted feedback.org]; Redacted i
Redacted vimeo.com)i Redacted Diabeurope.eu]; Redacted iwfanet.org}  Redacted !
i __Redacted Iz’EDa!Elance4eumpe eul;: Redacted '@Jegitimate.net];i Redacted inewsguardtech. com]‘ Redacted '
"""" Redacted __leeas.europa.eu;| Redacted idoteurope.eult Redacted ivalid.tech]; Redacted :
idemocracy-reporting.orgl; Redacted crlspthlnklng com]
Redacted iabeurope.euli Redacted inewtral. es]-i
newsguardtech com],‘ Redacted Eeui eul Redacted

Redacted .democracy-reportlng org], Redacted |
Redacted ffa ktograf. hr] Redacted ivalid.tech]: Redacted @vimeo.com];

. Redacmd.Eblqwty} [ Redac_t_e_g___,eblq uity.com]; Redacted wvosteurope.orgl Redacted igoogle.com]: Redacted |
‘wosteurope.orgl; Redacted globsec.org); Redacted aiforensics.org]; Redacted i
“demagog.org.pl]; __Redacted Deeas.europa.eu; Redacted ifb.com]i Redacted l@rsf.org];g Redacted
“lavaaz.org]; Redacted Deui.eu]; Redacted vimeo.com] Redacted @Deui.eu);

i Redacted Jogicallyfacts.com]j Redacted avaaz.org]! Redacted firma.seznam.cz) ;i Redacted

i Redacted !google.com]; Redacted aiforensics.org]; Redacted afp.com]i _ Redacted

[ ""Redacted newtral.es]; Redacted @maldita.es]] Redacted ifb.com];i Redacted Dtwitch.tv];

Redacted  ‘microsoft.com];: Redacted linkedin.com]; Redacted democracy-reporting.orgl;

ch-c.eul: Redacted ich-ceuli Redacted igoogle.com];i Redacted javaaz.org]; Redacted |

Redacted _ gustin.tv];i | Redacted alliancedeurope.eul;: Redacted ifirma.seznam.cz};i Redacted ffb.com];
i Redacted rsforgli Redacted euieul! Redacted demagog.org.plli  Redacted
(NCRTV/ERGA); Redacted iag.gr)i Redacted ifirma.seznam.cz); Redacted @activefence.com]; Redacted !
Redacted @crispthinking.com]; Redacted @disinformationindex.org]: Redacted wfanet.org]i Redacted |
inewsguardtech.com];} Redacted igoogle.com]; Redacted iiforensics.org]i Redacted i
iiwhotargets.me]; Redacted ialliancedeurope.eu); Redacted logically.co.uk]i Redacted i(Active Fence)

{mﬁ,elglg‘_}ggm,actwefence com],i Redacted kreakom.dk]! Redacted @tiktok.com]i Redacted i .

Redacted @Eoglcally co.uk}i Redacted irvr.sk]i Redacted iadobe.com):i Redacted !
Redacted idoubleverify.com];i Redacted leeas.europa.eui Redacted ieaca.eu];i Redacted {ERGA)

[ Redacted rvr.sk];: Redacted imicrosoft.com]i  Redacted i PagellaPolitica L'_'_j'_'_‘_'_‘_fggt;ii{:',pagel!apol|t|ca it Redacted |

[ Redacted fiabeurope. eu], Redacted :iﬂaIEEance«fleurcnpe.eu]‘i Redacted inewsguardtech.com];i Redacted |~

fRedacted | maldita.es];i Redacted idebunk.org]; Vincent Couronne [ Redacted lessurligneurs.eul Redacted |

Redacted inewsguardtech.com];i Redacted @ec.europa.eul;i Redacted D ec.europa.eu];
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Redacted lec.europa.eul; Redacted lec.europa.eu; Redacted i Dec.europa.eul;
Redacted lec.europa.eul; Redacted Dec.europa.eul;; Redacted |
{ ~lec.europa.eu); Redacted @ec.europa.eu]: Redacted @ec.europa.eu]; Redacted |
{ “ec.europa.eu} Redacted Yec.europa.eu]
cc: ' Redacted igoogle.com];: Redacted idebunkeu.orgli Redacted irsf.orgl; _ Redacted
' “"lerispthinking.com]} Redacted logically.ail; Redacted imeta.com];  Redacted |
Redacted ibytedance.com]i Redacted iac.europa.eu] ;i Redacted |
Redacted _Eyimeo.com]:i Redacted Emeta.com]i Redactedmi

Redacted icsa.bel; Redacted Emedienanstalt-nrw,de] ;i __Redacted !

i google.com];
Redacted @eui.eu]

Subject: Extraordinary CoP Plenary - Code's conversion // 2nd meeting
Attachments: Webex_meeting.ics

Location: webex

Start: 5/30/2024 2:00:00 PM

End: 5/30/2024 4:00:00 PM

Show Time As: Tentative

Importance: High

Recurrence: (none)

Dear Signatories,

As anticipated, we would like to invite you to the second Plenary meeting of the Code’s signatories about the process of the conversion of the Code of Practice
on Disinformation into a Code of Conduct under Article 45 of the DSA. It will take place on 30 May (Thu) at 16:00 — 18:00. Please find below and attached the

webex connection details.

The aim of this meeting is to discuss any comments you might have to the proposed additions to the Preamble. Please find all the related documents in our

previous email and on Teams under this link: Conversion of the Code.

We kindly remind you that the deadline for sending us the signed Submission Forms is 10 June.

Kind regards,
CoP Team
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DG CONNECT CNECT.L4 is inviting you to a scheduled Webex meeting.
Need help? Go to https://help.webex.com

Thursday, May 30, 2024
4:00 PM | (UTC+02:00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madrid, Paris | 2 hrs

More ways to join:

Join from the meeting link

Join by meeting number

Meeting number (access code): || GG
Meeting password: [

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only)

I -5 Tol
I . <rmbourg Toll

Some mobile devices may ask attendees to enter a numeric password.
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From: CNECT COP TASK FORCE
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2024 9:23 AM

To:{ Redacted idisinformationindex.org>; | Redacted idemagog.org.pl>;; _ Redacted |
<iRedacted fidu.it>; Redacted activefence.com>;! Redacted irsf.org>;i Redacted larcom.fr>; Redacted
Redacted Dfidu.it>;! Redacted feedback.org>;: Redacted lessurligneurs.eu>  Redacted |

< Redacted_logically.co.uk> Redacted {(TikTok)! Redacted @tiktok.com>;! Redacted laiforensics.org>; Redacted i

Jlegitimate.net>; Redacted imaldita.es>;! Redacted itiktok.com>;i Redacted
microsoft.com>;i Redacted kreakom.dk>; i Redacted ,Egoogle.com>,'L Redacted

[ _llessurligneurs.eu>; | Redacted ‘newsgy_grdtech com>{ Redacted disinformationindex.org>;  Redacted!”

. Redacted 'tlktok com>j Redacted | ieaca.eu>j Redacted igoogle.com>; Redacted

< _Redacted | idemocracy-reporting.org>;| Redacted idoubleverify.com>;; Redacted iGDI)'

<" ""Redacted _idisinformationindex.org>;! Redacted iactivefence.com>; | Redacted iglobsec. org>- Redacted '

< "Redacted _leui.eu>;! Redacted funky.ong>; ! Redacted fidu.it>;! Redacted doteurope.eu>;
Redacted Dfeedback.org>;! Redacted vimeo.com>; Redacted Diabeurope.eu>;

| Redacted wfanet.org>; Redacted alliance4europe.eu>; Redacted legitimate.net>;
Redacted inewsguardtech.com>; | Redacted linkedin.com>;;  Redacted {EEAS)'

< ___Redacted _ ieeas.europa.eu>j Redacted idoteurope.eu>; Redacted walid.tech>; Redacted i
'{ Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org>; Redacted icrispthinking.com>; Redacted ivosteurope.org>i Redacted|
i Redacted =iabeurope.eu>,§ Redacted inewtral. es>} Redacted :newsguardtech com>; | 599.‘?‘.9!99._.}
<{_Redacted___ieui.eu>; Redacted Vosteurope.org>;: Redacted {CMS/ERGA)' <™ R edacted _irpms. sk> Redacted - The Bright App'
<rescuaithebrightapp. C0m>1 ________ Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org>;i | R _edaCteg___'________.:globsec org>;i ___,Bgrg__a_,(_:‘gg_q _______ .

q Redacted nfaktograf hr>; Redacted valid.tech>; Redacted ___vimeo.com>; Redacted (Eblq uity)'

i Redacted @ebuquuty com>;i Redacted ivosteurope.org>; | Redacted ,google.com> i Redacted |

"“Redac Redacted iglobsec.org>;i Redacted liforensics.org>; Redacted !

<  Nodncid "Edemagog.org.pl:-,; Redacted {EEAS)'! Redacted Deeas.europa.eu>;: Redacted ifb.com> Redacted !

| Redacted @rsf.org>; Redacted lavaaz.org>;i Redacted leui.eu>;i Redacted ViMeo.com>; Redseted:
a Redacted leui.eu>;! Redacted logicallyfacts.com>;i Redacted lavaaz.org>; __ i

 Redacted @firma.seznam. cz> Redacted igoogle.com>;i Redacted laiforensics.org>;! Reda
afp com>; ' Redacted inewtral.es>; Redacted Emaldita.ggaﬁ Redacted :

§ ¥b.com>;! Redacted itwitch.tv>} Redacted imicrosoft.com> Redacted

{""Redacted _llinkedin.com>; Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org>; Redacted ch-c.eu>} Redacted ?ch-c.eu>;
i Redacted igoogle.com>;i Redacted iavaaz.org>| Redacted jjustin.tv>; Redacted |
<""Rec | lalliance4europe.eu>;; Redacted ffirma.seznam.cz>; | Redacted fb.com> Redacted !

< Cirsf.org>;i Redacted ieui.eu> Redacted idemagog.org.pl>;i Redacted {1
(NCRTV/ERGA) Redacted liag.gr>; Redacted firma.seznam.cz>;| Redacted activefence. com>' Redacted'
i Redacted icrispthinking.com>| Redacted disinformationindex.org>;!  Redacted 1
i "Redacted _'wfanet.org>; Redacted newsguardtech.com>;! Redacted igoogle.com>;! Redacted

: _laiforensics.org>; Redacted iwhotargets.me>;; Redacted ;iatlliance4europe.eu>:; Redacted
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<" Redacted_Jlogically.co.uk>;i Redacted Active Fence)' <" Redacted _iactivefence.com>: Redacted ikreakom.dk> Redacted |

< Redacted ftiktok.com>} Redacted logically.co.uk>; Redacted irvr.sk>;  Redacted
Redacted  hadobe.com>] Redacted doubleverify.com>;i Redacted leeas.europa. ey_la__'__
Redacted ieaca. eu>"' Redacted {ERGA)' < Redacted rvr.sk>;i Redacted imicrosoft.com>; Redacted |
'Redacted iPagellaPolitica' -';_‘:ﬁ}é}j}_{éi{.-_‘{{_‘:'pagelIapolltu:a it>: Redacted iabeurope.eu> Redacted
< Redacted ialliancedeurope.eu>;! Redacted §@newsguardtech.com>;§ Redacted ‘maldita.es>; Redacted
i"Redacted debunk.org>i Redacted . ilessurligneurs,eu>i Redacted newsguardtech.com>;
: Redacted "CNECT) < Redacted lec.europa.eu>; Redacted cNEcT)! Redacted @ec.europa. eu>; Redacted {(cNEcT)
< Redacted __iec.europa.eu>i Redacted iec.europa. ef.l>" Redacted iCNECT)
4 Redacted lec.europa.eu>; Redacted iICNECT) < Redacted ‘ec.europa. I_Q_l:l_?_'_a __________________ Redacted ICNECT)
Redacted Dec.europa.eu>; Redacted {CNECT): Redacted ®@ec. europa, eu> Redacted (CNECT)
| Redacted Dec.europa.eu> Redacted {(CNECT) < Redacted lec.europa.eu>;i R g_qiggggg _____ {CNECT) <~ Redacted __ iec.europa.eu>;
Redacted Dec.europa.eu’ Redacted Dec.europa.eu>
Ce:i Redacted igoogle. com >3 Redacted idebunkeu.org>; Redacted irsf.0rg>‘i’w§;§-‘d§a§a‘m§
'(:rlspthlnking com>;i Redacted logically.ai> | Redacted imeta.com>: Redacted
___________________________ Redacted Dbytedance.com>] Redacted (CNECT): Redacted Dec.europa.eu>j Redacted
_f!ec.europa.eu:-i Redacted vimeo.com>;i Redacted imeta.com>; Redacted
Redacted icsa.be>;i Redacted Emedienanstalt—nrw.de);g Redacted i

-z; Redacted eui.eu>
Subject: RE: Extraordinary CoP Plenary - Code's conversion
Importance: High

Dear Signatories,

Thank you very much for attending numerously the Extraordinary Plenary meeting on the conversion of the Code of Practice on Disinformation to a Code
of Conduct under the DSA. Following our discussions, we would like to share with you the proposed solutions.

Please find attached:

1. Preamble with the discussed additions, i.e. general clause on the prevalence of DSA over the Code; a clause on a regular review of the Code (based
on points (g) and (h) of the Preamble); targeted additions to illustrate the interplay with the DSA and Technical amendments.

2. Text of the Submission Form

3. Slides which were presented at the meeting

You will find those documents as well on Teams under this link: Conversion of the Code

As suggested, in order to anticipate and discuss your comments to the tabled additions, we propose to have a second Plenary meeting on 30 May (Thu)
at 16:00. The invitation will follow.
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Should you have any questions or requests for clarifications — also in case if you could not attend the Plenary — please don’t hesitate to reach out to us.

Kind regards,

CoP Team

From: CNECT COP TASK FORCE
Sent: Friday, May 17, 2024 5:11 PM

To: CNECT COP TASK FORCE; Redacted ;
Redacted {TikTok); Redacted
i Redacted
Redacted {GDI); Redacted :
Redacted
Redacted {EEAS)i Redacted
Redacted {CMS/ERGA); Redacted : The Bright Appi _ Redacted
Redacted {Ebiquity); Redacted
Redacted 'EEAS); Redacted |
Redacted i
Redacted
Redacted INCRTV/ERGA); Redacted
Redacted
Redacted {Active Fence); Redacted
Redacted {ERGA); Redacted : PagellaPoliticaj Redacted |
Redacted CNECT);
Redacted  {CNECT); Redacted (CNECT); Redacted {CNECT); Redacted ICNECT); Redacted CNECT); | Redacted
Redacted {CNECT); {CNECT); Redacted QCNECT}é Redacted {(CNECT); Redacted !(CNECT);; Redacted |
E_Redacted ‘@ec.europa.eu T Lo T T
Cci Redacted
{Redacted {CNECT);: Redacted ICNECT); Redacted

Subject: Extraordinary CoP Plenary - Code's conversion
When: mercredi 22 mai 2024 16:00-17:30 (UTC+01:00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madrid, Paris.

Where: webex

Dear Signatories,

Please find below and attached the webex connection details to our Extraordinary CoP Plenary meeting which will take place today (22.05) at

16:00-17:30 CET.

Kind regards,
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CoP Team

DG CONNECT CNECT.l.4 is inviting you to a scheduled Webex meeting.

Wednesday, May 22, 2024
4:00 PM | (UTC+02:00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madrid, Paris | 3 hrs

More ways to join:

Join from the meeting link

Join by meeting number

Meeting number (access code): ||| GTGEGN
Meeting passworc: S

1669
CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. TT_HJC_017394
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED



Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only)

I i Toll
I < rbourg Tol

Some mobile devices may ask attendees to enter a numeric password.

Join by phone

B G</cium Toll
B Luxcmbourg Toll

Global call-in numbers

Join from a video system or application
Dia!

You can also dial [ l] and enter your meeting number.

Need help? Go to https://help.webex.com

Dear Signatories,

With our sincere apologies for the short notice, we have spotted a mistake from our side in the invitation: the Plenary meeting will take place
Wednesday 22 May 2024, from 4-5:30pm (not Wednesday 29 May).
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As we are keen on moving forward with this important process, we would like to keep this date. If you can unfortunately not join us, we are of
course happy to debrief you bilaterally afterwards.

With our apologies again,

Kind regards,
The CoP Team

Dear Signatories,

We are reaching out to you today in view of calling an extraordinary Plenary meeting of the Code’s signatories to inform you about the process
of the conversion of the Code of Practice on Disinformation into a Code of Conduct under Article 45 of the DSA.

We understand that this is a very much anticipated moment for many of you as since its inception — and as recognised in the Preamble — the
2022 Code of Practice on Disinformation has aimed to become a Code of Conduct under Article 45 DSA. In the Code's Preamble (recital (h)), the
Signatories confirmed their wish to make it complementary to and aligned with the regulatory requirements and overall objectives of the DSA.
The Code of Practice on Disinformation is as well referred to in recital 106 of the DSA.

Therefore, at the Plenary meeting we would like to present the procedure of the conversion as well as invite the signatories to prepare the Code
for such a conversion. Notably, in order to be ready to launch the process, we consider that a few clarifications should be included in the
Preamble of the Code. We will provide you with the further details at the Plenary meeting.

To this end, we invite you to a Task-force Plenary meeting, to be held online on Wednesday29-May-2024, Wednesday 22 May 2024, from 4-
5:30pm (CET), to discuss the recognition process and the necessary steps forward.

We will share the Webex connection details very soon.

Kind regards,
The CoP Team
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From: I c-.A) B icrosoft.com)

Sent: 5/29/2024 11:31:06 AM

To: I B (ocically.ail; Michael Meyer 2 democracy-reporting.org]; GG
I =0 o: (e.com]

cc: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eurcpa.eu; [ IIIINIGEGEGEGE B icrosoft.com]; GILLET Jeanne
I - <uropa.eu); BURIAN Peter [ @<c.curopa.eu]; KOLODZIEISKA Anna
I o -c.curopa.cu]

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Hi

| had understood that Prof Steinbach was an expert in the field of automated detection of dis- and misinformation
(on platforms), hence | thought Michael’s order of topics made sense. | see you have now placed Steinbachin the
‘prevention’ bucket in the new agenda. Was that for a particularreason?

Wrt possible correspondence with Adobe and Hans, | have not been in the loop on this.
On a co-coordinators meeting, | could do:

e Friday 7th June 14:30-15:00 CET
« Monday 10th June 14:00 - 15:00 CET
e Tuesday 11th June 15:00 - 16:00 CET

Best,

From: [ N © ocically.ai>

Sent: Tuesday, 28 May 2024 18:510n

To: I (ccL.A) B © microsoft.com>; Michael Meyer JBIIlll@ democracy-reporting.org>;
I <P o oogle.com>

Cc: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; _-@microsoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne
B <c.curopa.eu>; BURIAN Peter I @ cc.curopa.eu>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna

I @ o c.europa.eu>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Hi- thanks for confirming that.
Some outstanding requests:

« |ldon'tbelieve thatthe agenda contained within the calendarinvitation is clear enough to have
been sent to Subgroup members, | am struggling to understand it myself. Please find a tidied
version below, | would appreciate confirmation from you all as to whether this was indeed how
the agenda was intended to come across. If so, | would kindly ask if @KOLODZIEJSKA
Anna could update the calendar invitation with this version of the agenda.

+ |see that we are missing one speaker, whom | believe i ] 25 intended to propose
- is this correct? Can | ask who the final speaker is?

« Cansomeone kindly include me in the correspondence with Andy Parson or relay on this
thread the discussion that was had with Andy about his contribution?
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« As|had flagged before | went on AL, Hans from Valid Tech had proposed the below
researchers/experts to partake. Can anyone direct me to the follow up with Hans? Did we only
confirm Prof. Steinebach?

« Can anyone direct me to any oral/written discussion we have had with any of the invited
external speakers regarding their contributions?

o |think it would be helpful for us to meet again as the 4 of us to discuss our ways of working, as |
have found the organisation of this latest Subgroup meeting quite time-consuming. Please find
some proposed slots for such a conversation below, | would be grateful if you could signal
your availability. | welcome the Commission's participation in such a meeting.

Agenda (updated version):

1. Opening remarks & approval of the agenda
2. Contributions from researchers/experts (kick-off statements and discussion)

« The challenges of detecting/reacting to Al generated mis/disinformation — C2PA and beyond. Andy
Parson

« Generative Al misinformation - how to prevent hallucinations. Professor Martin Steinebach from
the Fraunhofer Institute for Cybersecurity

o XXX (an expert from Google?)

« Discussion

3. AOB

Co-Coordinators' meeting slot proposals:

e Friday 7th June anytime after 14:30 CET
« Monday 10th June anytime after 14:00 CET
o Tuesday 11thJune anytime after 15:00 CET

S N

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

www _logically_ai
(EU & UK)

| f1x]inJG|

On Tue, 28 May 2024 at 17:20, I IIEIEIIIGGEEE (CELA) - ic'csoft.com> wrote:

Hi Sophie,

Welcome back.
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The Commission sent out a outlook invite including the agenda, so you should have that in your calendar.

| didn’t see any response from Hans in response to your earlieremail.

Best,

From: [N B ocica ! .ai>

Sent: Tuesday, 28 May 2024 17:16

To: Michael Meyer <-democracy—reporting.org>;_CELA) <mmicrosoft.com>;
I P o oclc.com>

Cc: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; I <t-ccemanari@microsoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne

I < c .o uropa.eu>; BURIAN Peter <N @ cc europa.eu>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna

A curopa.eu>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Hi all,

Just catching up on my emails from the last couple of weeks - | don't see any confirmations from IR
or I regarding the agenda or clarifying that proposed speakers have been invited, not
correspondence with Hans from Valid Tech regarding his proposed speakers. Can someone please
forward me those confirmation messages or kindly update me on the state of play? In particular, it
would be great to confirm the final agenda for circulation to the wider Subgroup ahead of the meeting
next Monday.

I believe it is my turn to chair this meeting, but please correct me if | am wrong or if someone else would
prefer to do so.

Very much looking forward to hearing from you and to these important discussions with key
stakeholders.

Best,
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logically.ai

www logically.ai

eni

Senio
(EU & UK)

r Manager, Government Affairs

f1X]in]©

On Thu, 23 May 2024 at 16:54, KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 2. c curopa.eu> wrote:

Dear all,

Thank you for taking over Michael. Peter in CC will take care of the invite. We are just waiting for the final
confirmation from you concerning the agenda.

Please keep Peter always in the loop as he is co-coordinating this SG from our side.

Best,

Anna

From: Michael Meyer <}lll2 democracy-reporting.org>

Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2024 2:30 PM

To: NG logically.ai>; INNG_G_G_ (CELA) microsoft.com>;
clementwolf G 2o ogle.com>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna (CNECT)
< ) c.curopa.cu>

Cc: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.cu>; [IIIGIGIGNGE ¥
I @ microsoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne (CNECT) ec.europa.eu>
Subject: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out
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Dear colleagues,
with |l away, we should wrap this up.

Can we agree an the following:

Meeting of Working Group on generative Al/ Code of Practice Disinfo

When: Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET

Agenda:

14:00 Opening and Agenda Check

14:10 Detecting/reacting to Al generated mis/disinfo — C2PA and beyond. Focus on the challenges.
Kick-Off statements (5min each): Andy Parson, Prof. Steinebach, an expert from Google

15:15 gAl misinformation — how to prevent hallucination

Kick-off statements: TBC.

Discussion

15:50 A.0.B. and closure

16:00 END

If (CELA) and @_are ok, could you send this out to participants
@KOLODZIEJSKA Anna, so that people can reserve the slot?

| will be in touch on remaining details (who could speak from Google? Could Tjade help to get an industry
expert on LLMs and the hallucination problem).

But for the invite the above should be good enough.
With best wishes,

Michael

From: [N - o ic- |y 2>

Sent: Montag, 13. Mai 2024 16:08
To: Michael Meyer B democracy-reporting.org>; | I (CELA)
G icrosoft.com>; clementwolf <|| B2 c00gle.com>
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Cc: cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ec.europa.eu>; IIEGzGIB

I B icrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne ec.europa.eu>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Thanks Michael, all fine with me. We await the responses from our fellow co-coordinators to get
the ball rolling

S —— o —

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

[:l www.logically. ai
(EU & UK)

On Mon, 13 May 2024 at 15:00, Michael Meyer JJlill2democracy-reporting.org> wrote:

Hi

my proposal is two sessions. The first one longer, with 2 experts (or three; ok for me if they do
not make long presentations). The second one with two experts. As you are pressed for time,
Sophie, why don’t we do misinfo/hallucination which complements the first session; and in the
following meeting we look at behaviour and maybe risk assessments.

| can connect the experts for prep/briefing once confirmed (maybe it is enough to do this
through email; avoiding another meeting).

Cheers, Michael

From: Sophic IIGzNGTE B ogically.ai>

Sent: Montag, 13. Mai 2024 14:34

To: Michael Meyer <Jllll2 democracy-reporting.org>

Cc: I CcLA) B - icrosoft.com>; I

<clementwolf@google.com>; cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna
B ¢ c.curopa.cu>; NN S > icrosoft.com>;
GILLET Jeanne <N - c .curopa.cu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections
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Hi Michael,

Thanks for your email.

Canl confirm that your preference is therefore to have 2 experts speaking on one topic (oris it 3
experts speaking on the topic of "Detecting/reacting gAl mis/disinfo — C2PA and beyond"? | am
struggling to understand your email), and then 2 further experts speaking on two other separate
topics each? Therefore, 4 altogether across 3 presentations? It would be helpful to clearly
quantify what you mean by "too many experts and presentations”.

I think we are still waiting for Il to reply with next steps on reaching out to Andy Parson.

Do we have I (ccLA) and green light to go back to Hans from

Valid tech to reach out to his proposed stakeholders (outlined in my last emails)? | am
interpreting that

Lastly, @Michael Meyer | reiterate from my email on Friday 10th that I will

unfortunately NOT be able to reach out to NATO's principal scientist, Gundars Bergmanis-
Korats. Therefore, unless it would be appropriate to nominate someone from Logically to
speak (which | am happy to do, but | will need this confirmation TODAY to get the ball rolling to
thatend before | go on annual leave).

Remaining action points listed below for your convenience:

e @GILLET Jeanne or @KOLODZIEJSKA Anna to circulate a calendar invitation for this
next Subgroup meeting to take place on Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET

« Once researchers/experts have been identified, reached out to (hopefully with
success) we will need to set up a briefing with them to set out how the meeting will
unfold. The only other acceptable date for our availabilities i.e. Thursday 30th May
between 15:30 - 17:30. Can someone please take responsibility for setting this up
once the researchers are confirmed?

1679
HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-00001081



As | will be on annual leave Tuesday 14th - Tuesday 28th May | am unable to contribute
further to this after today. Can someone else please take on the responsibility of following
up on the above action points?

— o

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

: ‘ www.logically.ai
(EU & UK) D

On Mon, 13 May 2024 at 13:24, Michael Meyer <o democracy-reporting.org> wrote:

Thank you, I and I

I see the problem with too many experts and presentations. Maybe if we can convince them to
be very short it could work. (Otherwise, | would drop Prof. Steinebach)

I suggest a rough agenda along those lines below. Main emphasis then on detection/reaction.

Have a good day, Michael

1. Detecting/reacting gAl mis/disinfo - C2PA and beyond. Focus on the challenges. 75
minutes

Kick off, 4min each: Andy Parson, Prof. Steinebach, an expert from Google (GGG you
said you may have somebody).

Kick-offs should describe what aspects experts consider the mostimportant challenges that
they would like to discuss further in the meeting.

2. Preventing gAl misinformation — how to prevent hallucination 45 minutes this would
be my preference, butl! am also ok to go down the “behavoiur-led” road, Sophie (I am
only not so sure what is genAl specific about it).

4 min. kick-off by platform expert and “| I expert”.
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From: [ B < oically.ai>
Sent: Freitag, 10. Mai 2024 17:19
To: NN CELA) B icrosoft.com>

Cc: Michael Meyer <Bllllll G democracy-reporting. org>; I EKGTczcGEGNG
B - 0 ogle.com>; cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna

I - < c . curopa. eu>; [N B - ic rosoft.com>;
GILLET Jeanne <} cc curopa.cu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Indeed, | think four speakers will be more than enough, so I'm keen to lock in agreement on
names and topics so we can reach out to them and ensure enough time to coordinate ahead
of Monday 3 June (3 weeks away already!).

Many thanks Il

R e r—a—y

Senior Manager, Government Affairs
\
o

u

D www.logically.ai

On Fri, 10 May 2024 at 16:13, I CELA) B ©icrosoft.com> wrote:

Hi lllll Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET, works for me. Thank you for coordinating.

The Adobe suggestion is surely fine. I'll check Hans' suggestions and if i don't get back before
the stated deadline consider them fine.

I do think we should not overload the meeting with too many experts, as between the two
Hans suggested, Adobe, additional [JJlil] and additional Michael suggestion we would end up
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with 5 experts which i doubt will lead to very dynamic discussions but rather a succession of
presentations.

Best,

From: I B - ogically.ai>

Sent: Friday, May 10, 2024 4:59 PM

To: Michael Meyer G d e mocracy-reporting.org>; [ NGczNE
B - ooz c.com>; I (CELA) <tstroband@microsoft.com>

Cc: cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu>;
KOLODZIEJSKA Anna <[ GGG < c.c L ropa.cu>; IS E

B G microsoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne <G C.cLropa.eu>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Hi Michael, I and N

You will have seen that members of the Subgroup are getting in touch to request when this
next meeting will take place. As there has been no objection from (CELA),
can | please ask @GILLET Jeanne or @KOLODZIEJSKA Anna to circulate a calendar
invitation for this next Subgroup meeting to take place on Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00
CET?

Action points:

» |wanted to inform you that, due to internal annual leave dates presenting
difficulties in coordinating with those responsible for the relationship, | will NOT be
able to reach out to NATO's principal scientist, Gundars Bergmanis-Korats
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e We i ement on inviting someone from Adobe to
speak anyou please coordinate with Stefanie to invite Andy
Parsons to speak tous?
« Hans from Valid Tech has proposed the below researchers/experts to partake
o Professor Martin Steinebach from the Fraunhofer Institute for Cybersecurity -

an expertin the field of automated detection of dis- and misinformation (on
platforms)

o Professor Martin Potthast's team who conducted research on the influence
of GenAl content on recommender systems

o Can you please confirm whether you are satisfied with Hans' proposals?

e Incaseldonothearback from you by COB Monday 13th May, can someone
please take responsibility for coordinating with Hans toreach out to these
researchers?

« (@Michael Meyer lwould welcome any proposals of speakers you would have
for the other topics you suggested

o I -\come further speaker recommendations from you
regarding 3P researchers

+ Once researchers/experts have been identified, reached out to (hopefully with
success) we will need to set up a briefing with them to set out how the meeting
will unfold. The only other acceptable date for our availabilities i.e. Thursday 30th
May between 15:30 - 17:30. Can someone please take responsibility for setting
this up once the researchers are confirmed?

Lastly, as already flagged, | will be on annual leave Tuesday 14th - Tuesday 28th May.
Can someone else please take on the responsibility of following up on the above action
points to ensure that we have invited researchers/experts to participate in this
Subgroup meeting on 3 June?

Please let me know by COB Monday 13th whether | can move forward on any of these action
points, otherwise | am grateful for your support in ensuring the next Subgroup meeting can go
ahead.

Wishing you all a lovely weekend!

Best,
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— D-)M@Yﬁ

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

|:| www.logically.ai

(EU & UK)
On Tue, 7 May 2024 at 17:19, Michael Meyer democracy-reporting.org> wrote:
Thank you Il

Speakers on detection: Yes, Adobe would be one. | would also be interested to hear more
from Meta to explain a bit more what Lara told us recently (challenges in detecting synthetic
audio and video).

And would Google or MS be able to bring somebody to talk more about misinformation from
hallucinations?

Cheers, Michael

From: NN - oicaly.ai>

Sent: Dienstag, 7. Mai 2024 17:52

To: I - 00clc.com>

Cc: Michael Meyer @ democracy-reporting.org>; | I (CELA)
<M & microsoft.com>; cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna

I < < c. curopa.cu>; I I > icrosoft.com>;

GILLET Jeanne IR Gcc.curopa.eu>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Hi all,
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Thank you for the helpful information to coordinate! Some follow-up from me below to
progress things:

Logistics

. sorry to miss you on this occasion and looking forward to keeping
you in the loop!

B (CELA) with apologies for being unable to account for your
preferences, could | ask if you can make Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET work?

o @KOLODZIEISKA Anna @GILLET Jeanne pending| ] lkonfirmation,
could | trouble you to forward a meeting invitation for this timeslot?

« Flagging that | will be on annual leave Tuesday 14th - Tuesday 28th May - if we
are unable to resolve the outstanding organisational details for this Subgroup
meeting, could someone please take this on in my stead?

Topics

« @Michael Meyer thank you for your proposed suggestions of political bias of
GenAl, hallucinations, and Al-generated disinfo and the prevention/detection thereof

o Do you think that the proposal to have a speaker on provenance (likely to be
someone from Adobe) satisfies your last suggestion on
"prevention/detection"?

o | would welcome any proposals of speakers you would have for the
other topics you suggested

@I \come further speaker reccommendations from you
regarding 3P researchers

e Also yes you have interpreted my meaning correctly, Logically's
overall view is that the behaviour facilitating the circulation of content in the
information space is as important to assess as the authenticity of the content itself. |
have proposed a speaker below to this end i.e. to discuss the impact of GenAl on
such behaviours used in online campaigns

Speakers

o (I ceLA) if you agree with| S ugsestion of Adobe's Andy

Parsons, | can loop us in Stefanie to ask whether she agrees or had a different
proposalin mind - | am happy to action this once you green light

e | propose reaching out to NATO's principal scientist, Gundars Bergmanis-Korats,
with whom Logically worked on this report in 2023 on the role of Al in online
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campaigns, to speak to the role of GenAl in facilitating the behaviours behind such
campaigns in addition to generating potentially problematic content (pending
successful outreach and follow-up where he may wish to tweak the exact wording of
his contribution) - | am happy to action this if you all green light

« |am happy to canvass the MS Teams Subgroup chat for the purposes of soliciting
further recommendations from Subgroup members, should we not have any further
suggestions ourselves - | await further contributions from you before actioning
this

_ D_@EQM

-

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

www.logically.ai
(EU & UK) D

On Mon, 6 May 2024 at 15:37, | GGG ;o o5 c.com> wiote:

Hiall-

I'm afraid that I'm likely to be on vacation on all three of these dates. You should, of course,
proceed without me -- and I'll be happy to support preparation.

Re: experts -

* Fine with having a C2PA rep presenting content credentials (if it helps - | sit at the
C2PA Steering Committee and can request there directly or support Stefanie's
request once it comes in). Not to put him on the spot but think Adobe's Andy Parsons
would be a great PoC if he's available.

*We should have someone speak to other provenance techniques, as while secure
metadata is helpful it is but one of the available technical options there. There's
someone from Google whom | think could be quite good butl'm not sure if he's
available; and | will think through what 3P researchers could be a good fit otherwise
(it's not that common for someone to be deep in all the relevant techniques and to
have enough practical experience deploying them at scale)
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* In general | agree with you that Gen-Al powered

disinformation, much like any other type of disinformation, can be analyzed both
through the content and through the behavioral lens, the latter having the benefit of
being technology-agnostic to a large extent and therefore being more future proof. I'm
taking from your comment that you may refer to behaviors that are specific to GenAl
technology, but this is a good reminder that the vast majority of the techniques
deployed in other parts of the Code are useful here as well (from elevating
authoritative information to combating coordinated deceptive practices, etc.)

Hope this helps,

On Fri, May 3, 2024 at 11:31 AM Michael Meyer <‘Ddemocracy—reporting.0rg>
wrote:

Dear [l thank you so much for the initiative. As these things go, my availability is:
® not good, but doable if only option
e Fri31/5Impossible
e Mon 3/6 slot preferably, indeed ideal...

| would love us to avoid some kind of conference meeting, where experts give
presentations and then there is a little Q&A. Instead we should discuss some critical
issues to which the experts give their input (Chatham house rule, of course). | see as
critical issues: Political bias of gAl (clearly a complex subject), hallucination in low domain
fields, gAl generated disinfo and prevention/detection. | will consult NGOs signatories also
what they would like to discuss.

Enjoy your weekend, everyone!

Michael

From: [N B - ocically.ai>

Sent: Freitag, 3. Mai 2024 12:56

To: NN (CELA) <BEEE- icrosoft.com>
Cc: I N o oocle.com>; Michael Meyer @ democracy-
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reporting.org>; cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna
. < < c.europa.eu>; NG <

B G nicrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne <\}l5;l5NNElll2cc.curopa.cu>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Hi I

Thanks for your reply and for clarifying the dates, very much appreciated.

Perhaps, given the time constraints, we can set a deadline of Tuesday 7th COB for the
others to reply on the suitability of the time slot on Thursday 30th May from 15:30 -
17:30. If necessary, we can consider an alternative slot between 14:00 and 18:00 on Friday
31st May.

Interms of focus area, | think it makes sense to have one expert focusing on provenance
tools as you set out above, so perhaps for that we can ask Stefanie toreach out to her
proposed stakeholder once we have confirmed the Subgroup date.

From Logically's side, our positioning is that we take a behaviours-led approach to the
issue of disinformation in the information space, whether that be Al-generated or not,
and thus consider it to be both a dissemination and content problem. | have an external
stakeholder in mind to invite to this end, | am just awaiting the Commission's response
separately in case there is any conflict of interest. Should that proposal not work out, |
would be happy to nominate a technical expert internally from Logically to discuss
the perspective of a behaviours-led approach, should that be deemed appropriate by
yourself, Il and Michael.

Considering that this would leave us with 2 expert slots filled with a discussion on
provenance and behaviours, | will be happy for llll and Michael to chime in should
they have suggestions of topics / expert stakeholders for another 1-2 speaking slots.

Let me know if any feedback on the above, and otherwise looking forward to hearing back
by Tuesday 7th May COB on setting the date of Thursday 30th May from 15:30 - 17:30
for the next Subgroup meeting.
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Best,

— Dw

Senior Manager, Government Affairs 3 2
D www.logically. ai

(EU & UK)
On Thu, 2 May 2024 at 11:08, S CEL.A) S icrosoft.com> wrote:
Thanks NI

For the dates:
e Tue 28/5 slot coincides with the Elections WG meeting.
e Thu 30/5slotis fine for me
o Fri31/5 slot also fine for me

° slot preferably not, but could make it work if necessary.

On the experts, happy to look at someone from our side internally but also happy to defer
to Google if they have a good suggestion. Of course, on our side content credentials /
provenance tools are an important part of the work we do in this space, together with
Adobe and others. So would you see the session as focusing on that aspect or would it be
more broad and if so, are there specific aspects you and others would seek to cover in
particular? Just to hone a bit more the theme / content of the session and think about
relevant experts from that perspective?
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Best,

From: N N - ocicaly.ai>

Sent: Wednesday, 1 May 2024 11:03

To: I (C:LA) I icrosoft.com>; ||| G
B 5o ocle.com>; Michael Meyer 2 democracy-reporting.org>
Cc: chect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEISKA Anna
I G c. curopa.cu>; [INEEEG

I & microsoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne <} G cc .curopa.eu>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections

Hi all, and a very happy 1st of May!

As we have set out that the next Subgroup meeting will take place by the end of this
month, we should set a date. Please find proposals below (all in CET):

o Tuesday 28th May 14:00 - 16:00 OR 16:30 - 18:00
e Thursday 30th May 15:30-17:30

« Friday 31st May anytime between 14:00- 18:00

« Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00

We have set out that this Subgroup meeting will gather researchers and/or experts to
better understand the risks at the intersection of generative Al and disinformation, as well
as possible measures to mitigate such risks. Do you have any ideas of whom we could
invite to join us?

o Forexample, Stefanie from Adobe already offered to bring a technical expert to
introduce Content Credentials to the Subgroup

e Inaddition to Adobe's expert, | would propose that we aim to have TWO
external researchers/experts and ONE expert nominated internally from either
Microsoft or Google
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« This would ensure that we limit speakers to ensure meaningful Q&A thereafter,
but | encourage you to put forward other ideas or justifications for more than 4
researchers/experts, or for an alternative composition

« From Logically's side, | am already canvassing internally for suggestions. This is
also work that we have carried out internally, and so we will be happy to nominate
a Logically staff member to speak to the Subgroup on this topic if my co-
coordinators deem this appropriate.

Looking forward to hearing from you.

Best,

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

(EU & UK)

[ O locically . ai

D\vww.logically.ai

* Head of Information Quality x Al

GO gle Strategy

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

Goaogle Trust and Safety
* I ©)qoogle.com
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From: Michael Meyer [l @ democracy-reporting.org)

Sent: 5/30/2024 9:59:36 AM
To: I (N ) ocically.ai]
cc: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; I NG (ccLA) B microsoft.com]; NG

B ©:00g/e.com]; NN B - icrosoft.com]; GILLET Jeanne
I - .curopa.eu); BURIAN Peter [ @ <c.curopa.cu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna
I o -c.curopa.cu); KATZY-REINSHAGEN Anna IR ©-c.curopa.cu]

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Hello Il 2 nd colleagues,

| gave a call to Hans Brorsen who was very interested in this session and had exchanged with Prof Steinebach. He
is confident we will have a good meeting and | am too. | can talk to Andy Parsons for a pre-brief.

The agenda would be as below. We will have more time for the first subject, while we give us 30min at the end to
discuss/sketch possible themes for next meetings, including hallucination. Steinebach can say something there
as well (how to think about hallucination, how to address it in a tuture meeting).

If ok for all, could Commission colleagues send out this update?

With best wishes, Michael

PS: Am in a meeting now until 1330.

Meeting of Working Group on generative Al/ Code of Practice Disinfo
*  When: Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET

Agenda:

¢ 14:00 Opening and Agenda Check

e 14:10 Detecting/reacting to Al generated mis/disinfo — C2PA and beyond. What are the challenges?
How to address them?

o Kick-Off statements (15min each): Andy Parsons, Prof. Steinebach
Q & A and discussions.
¢ 15:30 Outlook on next meetings and discussion of themes to be addressed (such as hallucination)

16:00 END

From: I B @ ogically.ai>

Sent: Donnerstag, 30. Mai 2024 10:07

To: Michael Meyer JlIR® democracy-reporting.org>

Cc: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.cu; I I (CtLA) G microsoft.com>; G
.google.comx_ <H > icrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne

@ec.europa.eu>; BURIAN Peter <\ @ ec.curopa.eu>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna
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< @) -c.curopa.eu>; KATZY-REINSHAGEN Anna <l < C.curopa.eu>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Hi Michael,

For me, the primary issue is the lack of communication and clarity in organising this Subgroup meeting. It
does not fill me with confidence about our ability to use time in people's calendars meaningfully.

« | have still not seen a version of the agenda that is complete, clear and understandable, and that
has approval from all 4 of us

o Clarity regarding the division of responsibilities between the 4 of us and our availability to deliver
on those has only started to become clear as of yesterday, which in my view should have been
clear weeks ago

o Tothe best of my knowledge, there has been no pre-brief set up with any external speaker within a
reasonable time frame; indeed Andy Parson was still not 100% confirmed to attend at the time
that I put me in touch with Andy yesterday. As | had set out before | went on AL, the
deliverable was to arrange a short call with confirmed external speakers to pre-brief them on the
Subgroup, our work and the relevance of their contributions. This is standard practice and would
not have required more than 15-20 minutes.

| would welcome your views to the contrary, and in particular | would be very interested to know about
the steps you think we could take to still hold this Subgroup meeting in an efficient manner. However, |
must be clear that at this point in time | no longer have the capacity to contribute.

Looking forward to hearing from you but please note that | am unable to respond further until the PM.
Best,

=

Senior Manager, Government Affairs
(EU & UK)

www.logically.ai

f1x]injo

On Thu, 30 May 2024 at 08:47, Michael Meyer <lll democracy-reporting.org> wrote:

Dear All, | think there is no problem to have the meeting. We would have experts in this field who know
the spiel. But of course if you feel it's too late, | don't oppose it.
With best wishes, Michael

Gesendet von OQutlook fiir Android

From: NN B @ ogically.ai>
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 9:43:05 AM
To: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu>; Michael Meyer
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B cocracy-reporting.org>

cc:HIEEE ccLA) G icosoft.com>; IEEGEGEGEGE oogle.com>; INGNGNGNGNGNGEGG
4R icrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne I @ ec.curopa.eu>; BURIAN Peter
I G cc.curopa.cu>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna <R ©cc.curopa.eu>; KATZY-REINSHAGEN Anna
4 = <. ropa.eu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Hi Team,
I would still like to give @Michael Meyer an opportunity to weigh in.

Many thanks

— logically.ai

Senior Manager, Government Affairs ) )
www logically.ai

f1X]in]O)|

On Thu, 30 May 2024 at 08:20, CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE®ec.europa.eu <CNECT-COP-TASK-
FORCE@ec.europa.eu> wrote:

Hi everyone,

So what is the final decision on the postponement of the Gen Al Subgroup meeting? Please let us know, so that we
can cancel the calendar invitation if the 3" of June is no longer the date of the meeting.

Best regards,

Cop Task Force

From: I (C:LA) I icrosoft.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 1:01 AM

To: I N © ocicaly.ai>; N B - c oo c.com>; Michael
Mever <Ml @democracy-reporting.org>

Cc: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.cu>; [IIINININIELIEE 48
microsoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne (CNECT) <} G cc.curopa.eu>; BURIAN Peter (CNECT)
N ©cc.curopa.eu>; KOLODZIEISKA Anna (CNECT) < ©cc.curopa.cu>; KATZY-

REINSHAGEN Anna (CNECT) {1 < - . opa.cu>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out
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Hi

Fully appreciate your discomfort and concerns and in particular appreciate your commitment to ensure a well-
prepared and thought-through meeting, and would therefore be fully on board with postponing the subgroup
meeting.

Also apologies from my end for not having had the bandwidth to pick up coordination of this particular meeting
in the past weeks due to other (often election related) urgencies that took precedence.

In terms of my availability for a co-coordinator meeting, based on your and [Jiijjoint availabilities, mine
would be:

e Thursday 13th June 10:00 — 11:30 CET (if needed between 11:30 and 13:00 CET)

» Friday 14th June 10:00 - 12:00 CET

Best,

From: I - o - 2>

Sent: Thursday, 30 May 2024 00:43

To: I R )= oc /= .com>; Michael Meyer G democracy-reporting.org>; [N
B cclA)MEER 0 icrosoft.com>

Cc: cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.cu; G B icrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne
S < uropa.cu>; BURIAN Peter IS @< c.curopa.cu>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna

N © < c.curopa.cu>; KATZY-REINSHAGEN Anna ec.europa.eu>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Thanks for your reply Il looking forward to engaging with Andy (and any other external
stakeholders) in a more suitable time frame the next time we seek to invite him to a Subgroup
meeting.
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I would like to allow @ (CELA) and @Michael Mevyer to give their views on a
postponement, with acknowledgement that I am personally no longer in a position to give any more
time to this over the next 2.5 working days.

Looking forward to also hearing about their availability for a co-coordinators meeting,
thanks (/i for alrcady signalling yours.

Best,

I D —

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

www.logically.ai
(EU & UK) |:| ¥ ¥

On Wed, 29 May 2024 at 23:33, || NG - B 2 0o¢ c.com> wrote:
Hi I -

My apologies (again), I was under the impression that you wanted to be connected to Andy. Very
happy to follow up with him separately and note that the meeting is postponed & to brief him myself
ahead of the new date, it was not my intention to create work for anyone.

Regarding co-coordinators meeting, any of the morning times you offer on Thursday 6/13 or Friday
6/14 would work for me.

Best,
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On Wed, May 29, 2024, 23:25 I NN S |o¢ically.ai> wrote:

Hi all,

Thank you for your messages.

I also acknowledge here receipt of a separate email from [l this evening putting me in touch
with Andy Parsons, and asking me to take over correspondence with Andy in briefing him for this
Subgroup meeting,. _pleasc note that I am not in a position to take this on with such
limited notice.

With 2.5 working days remaining until this Subgroup meeting, I regret the lack of satisfactory
preparation. I no longer belicve that we can in good conscience take up valuable time in people's
calendars for this meeting, as I do not find it appropriate for so much to remain unresolved this close
to a meeting taking place. 1 would respectfully request that we postpone it until the necessary
deliverables can be met within an appropriate time frame. Please note that your (pending)
agreement with this will require communication with the broader Subgroup as well as invited
experts to let them know, I believe this is relevant to ( E 2nd (@Michael Mever in
relation to communication with Hans from Valid.

Please also find below alternative availability on my end for a co-coordinators' meeting to discuss
ways of working going forward:

e Tuesday 1 1th June 15:00 - 18:00 CET
o Thursday 13th June 10:00 - 13:00 CET

e Friday 14th June 10:00 - 12:00 or 15:00 - 16:30 CET

Wishing you all a good evening,

Sophie ININTINGNG = o
|:| logically.ai
Senior Manager, Government Affairs

www.logically.ai
(EU & UK) |:|
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On Wed, 29 May 2024 at 19:52, Michael Meyer I 2 dcmocracy-reporting.org> wrote:

Dear colleagues, dear -

a few points:

o (NN . o 2:c right. We should talk about organization. You have been the
most active to keep us going (thank you for that!) and that’s not fair. TBD (I would like a model
where one of us is in charge of preparing a session based on some parameters with discretion on
details. Then one person/org is in charge, making it clearer). I now have my colleague Daniela, so |
hope DRI can be more consistent.

e [ think we should do the event as planned if Andy Parsons confirms. We then have two speakers
for the first session and could treat the second session (on hallucination) as a variable: If we don’t
find a speaker (we are trying in the academic community; ¢ ElEEEE CELA) could
somebody from MS talk about the hallucination problem and how it is addressed?) we make it a bit
shorter and discuss how to address the issue further in this sub-group (I am happy to kick that off
with some remarks).

o Commission colleagues, I had not checked the invitation, indeed something went wrong. My
suggestion was as below (two main themese; Andy and Prof. Steinebach both for the first theme).

¢ Co-ordinator meeting: The dates don’t work for me, but I would task a DRI colleague to join.

Have a good evening, Michael
e Meeting of Working Group on generative Al/ Code of Practice Disinfo
¢ When: Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET
e Agenda:
e 14:00 Opening and Agenda Check

e 14:10 Detecting/reacting to Al generated mis/disinfo — C2PA and beyond. Focus on the
challenges.

e Kick-Off statements (5Smin each): Andy Parson, Prof. Steinebach, an expert {rom Google
e 15:15 gAl misinformation — how to prevent hallucination

e Kick-off statements: TBC.
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e Discussion
e 15:50 A.O.B. and closure

= 16:00 END

From: I - o c.com>

Sent: Mittwoch, 29. Mai 2024 20:12

To: cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu

Cc: Michael Meyer BN democracy-reporting.org>; NI (CELA)
R @ microsoft.com>; NG oy .oi>;

B @ nicrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne <} cc.curopa.eu>; BURIAN Peter

I < curopa.eu>; KOLODZIEISKA Anna < Ccc.curopa.eu>; KATZY-
REINSHAGEN Anna ec.europa.eu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Hiall -

First, I apologize - I misremembered my action item and thought the Adobe rep in the Permanent
Taskforce was reaching out to Andy. This obviously hasn't happened since it's clear from prior
emails the action was on me.

I'm checking with him now to sce if he could make next Monday work; it seems like that may be
the casc. [l I'! connect him with you over email shortly - noting that he is not 100% confirmed
but it's looking good - that way you and him can answer each other's questions if any without me
playing middle man.

To the other questions - there is no other internal Google speaker 1 would recommend at this stage,
based on the proposed agenda, unless you want to dive into the specifics of SynthID (our
watermarking tech) but I'm not sure it'd be the best use of time for the group.

As for postponing vs not + meeting as co-coordinators: would defer to the group here given that as
previously mentioned I'm OOO (starting yesterday and until June 10th -- I'll be working on FR
hours week of June 10th if you'd like to meet then, but shouldn't be a bottleneck if you'd like to
meet earlier).
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Hope this helps -

On Wed, May 29, 2024, 13:04 CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu <CNECT-COP-
TASK-FORCE@ecc.curopa.cu> wrote:

Dear all,

We have updated the agenda according to [l suggestions. Please let us know if any further
changes need to be made. Professor Steinebach has been confirmed by Hans via email to us.
However, we are still waiting for confirmation for the other speaker slots. Please let us know
which other speakers will be presenting, so that we can give them access to the meeting.

Best regards,

CoP Task Force

From: Michael Meyer <l democracy-reporting.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 1:49 PM

To: I (CELA) microsoft.com>; [ D
@logically.ai>; R ) ¢oo¢le.com>

Cc: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE(@ec.europa.cu™>;
Catalina Gemanari <t-cgemanari@microsoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne (CNECT)
B (©cc.curopa.cu>; BURIAN Peter (CNECT)
Y o cc curopa.cu>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna (CNECT)
< c.curopa.cu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Hello colleagues, I am in meetings. Just to say that Prof Steinebach is confirmed (info:
Hans). More later. Cheers, Michacl

Gesendet von Qutlook fiir Android
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From: |G C:LA) B @ nicrosoft.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 1:31:06 PM

To: <-éJ;l_OgM>; Michael Meyer

4 @ dcrocracy-reporting.org>; [N B < ¢ ooglc.com>

Ce: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.curopa.cu <CNECT-COP-TASK-
FORCE@ec.curopa.cu>; [ININGTGNGE S . icrosoft.com>; GILLET
Jeanne ¥R (@ cc.curopa.cu™>; BURIAN Peter

< .curopa.cu>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna

I (. cc.curopa.cu>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Hi -

I had understood that Prof Steinbach was an expert in the field of automated detection of
dis- and misinformation (on platforms), hence I thought Michael’s order of topics made
sense. I see you have now placed Steinbach in the “prevention” bucket in the new agenda.
Was that for a particular reason?

Wrt possible correspondence with Adobe and Hans, 1 have not been in the loop on this.
On a co-coordinators meeting, 1 could do:

e Friday 7th June 14:30-15:00 CET

e Monday 10th June 14:00 — 15:00 CET

e Tuesday 11th June 15:00 — 16:00 CET

Best,

From: N S @ ozically 2i>
Sent: Tuesday, 28 May 2024 18:510n

To: I CELA) I icrosofi.com>; Michacl Meyer

< ) democracy-reporting.org>; [N B ) o 0oglc.com>
Cec: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.curopa.cu; [INGTGNGNGTNGE <4

I icrosoft.com™; GILLET Jeanne I 2<c.curopa.cu>;
BURIAN Peter GG -c.cuopa.cu>; KOLODZICJISKA Anna

B - cC .curopa.cu>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out
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Hi [l thanks for confirming that.

Some outstanding requests:

e [ don't believe that the agenda contained within the calendar invitation is clear
enough to have been sent to Subgroup members, I am struggling to understand it
myself. Please find a tidied version below, I would appreciate

confirmation from you all as to whether this was indeed how the agenda was
intended to come across. If so, I would kindly ask if @KOLODZIEJSKA

Anna could update the calendar invitation with this version of the agenda.

o 1see that we are missing one speaker, whom 1 belicve (G2
intended to propose - is this correct? Can I ask who the final speaker is?

¢ Can someone kindly include me in the correspondence with Andy Parson
or relay on this thread the discussion that was had with Andy about his
contribution?

e As1 had flagged before I went on AL, Hans from Valid Tech had proposed the
below researchers/experts to partake. Can anyone direct me to the follow up with
Hans? Did we only confirm Prof. Steinebach?

o Can anyone direct me to any oral/written discussion we have had with any
of the invited external speakers regarding their contributions?

e 1 think it would be helpful for us to meet again as the 4 of us to discuss our
ways of working, as I have found the organisation of this latest Subgroup meeting
quite time-consuming. Please find some proposed slots for such a conversation
below, I would be grateful if you could signal your availability. I welcome the
Commission's participation in such a meeting.

Agenda (updated version):

1. Opening remarks & approval of the agenda
2. Contributions from researchers/experts (kick-off statements and discussion)

e The challenges of detecting/reacting to Al generated mis/disinformation —
C2PA and beyond. Andy Parson

¢ Generative Al misinformation - how to prevent hallucinations. Professor
Martin Steinebach from the Fraunhofer Institute for Cybersecurity

e XXX (an expert from Google?)
» Discussion

3. AOB
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Co-Coordinators' meeting slot proposals:

e Friday 7th June anytime after 14:30 CET
e Monday 10th June anytime after 14:00 CET

e Tuesday 11th June anytime after 15:00 CET

o ] ] G oicaiy.a

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

: : D www.logically.ai
(EU & UK)

On Tue, 28 May 2024 at 17:20, | ] (cELA) R @ microsoft.com>

Wrote:

Hi -

Welcome back.

The Commission sent out a outlook invite including the agenda, so you should have that
in your calendar.

I didn’t see any response from Hans in response to your earlier email.

Best,
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From: [N B ) ogically.ai>

Sent: Tuesday, 28 May 2024 17:16

To: Michael Meyer <l @democracy-reporting.org>; I Il (CELA)
R @ microsoft.com>; I W) cooglc.com>
Ce: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.curopa.cu; IIGcGczNIIH 8
B ) icrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne <N )cc.curopa.cu>;
BURIAN Peter N cuopa.cu>; KOLODZIEJISKA Anna

< < c. curopa.cu>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Next subgroup on gAl (3 Junc) - get invitation out

Hi all,

Just catching up on my emails from the last couple of weeks - I don't see any
confirmations from |l or I rcgarding the agenda or clarifying that proposed
speakers have been invited, not correspondence with Hans from Valid Tech regarding his
proposed speakers. Can someone please forward me those confirmation messages or
kindly update me on the state of play? In particular, it would be great to confirm the
final agenda for circulation to the wider Subgroup ahead of the meeting next Monday.

I believe it is my turn to chair this meeting, but please correct me if [ am wrong or if
someone else would prefer to do so.

Very much looking forward to hearing from you and to these important discussions with
key stakeholders.

Best,

E— o

Senior Manager, Government Affairs

D www.logically.ai
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On Thu, 23 May 2024 at 16:54, KOLODZIEIJSKA Anna
</ . . U10p5.CU> WIOte:

Dear all,

Thank you for taking over Michael. Peter in CC will take care of the invite. We are just
waiting for the final confirmation from you concerning the agenda.

Please keep Peter always in the loop as he is co-coordinating this SG from our side.

Best,

Anna

From: Michael Meyer </liJill:@democracy-reporting.org>

Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2024 2:30 PM

To: <{R) ocically.oi>; I (CELA)
SR @microsoft. cor>; IR W) 0ol c com>;
KOLODZIEJSKA Anna (CNECT) 4lllIININGGEGEGEGEGEGEGEE. ) cc.curopa.cu>
Cc: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-
FORCE@ec.curopa.cu>; [IINIEGTGNGNGNGNG GGG 0 microsoft.com™>;
GILLET Jeanne (CNECT) NG (< cc.curopa.cu>

Subject: Next subgroup on gAl (3 June) - get invitation out

Dear colleagues,
with [l away, we should wrap this up.

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

14:10 Detecting/reacting 10 Al generated mis/disinfo — C2PA and beyond. Focus
on the challenges.

Kick-Off statements (Smin each): Andy Parson, Prof. Steinebach, an expert from
Google

15:15 gAl misinformation — how to prevent hallucination
Kick-off statements: TBC.

Discussion
15:50 A.O.B. and closure

16:00 END

lf_ (CELA) and _arc ok, could you send this out

to participants @KOLODZIEJSKA Anna, so that people can reserve the slot?

I will be in touch on remaining details (who could speak from Google? Could
Tjade help to get an industry expert on LLMs and the hallucination problem).

But for the invite the above should be good enough.
With best wishes,

Michael

From: [IIGENEEE - B ) ogically.ai>

Sent: Montag, 13. Mai 2024 16:08

To: Michael Meyer S democracy-reporting.org=>; [ I GcGczNEG
(CELA) S @microsoft.com>; I - 00 |c. o>
Cc: cnect-cop-task-force(@ec.europa.cu; KOLODZIEJISKA Anna
< /. cc.curopa.cu>; I B

B icrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne <R <c.curopa.cu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European

clections
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Thanks Michael, all fine with me. We await the responses from our fellow co-
coordinators to get the ball rolling

R — S —

Senior Manager,

(EU & UK)

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

overnment Affairs

|:| www.logically.ai

On Mon, 13 May 2024 at 15:00, Michael Meyer <m.meyer{@democracy-
reporting.org> wrote:

Hi [

my proposal is two sessions. The first one longer, with 2 experts (or three; ok for
me if they do not make long presentations). The second one with two experts.
As you are pressed for time, why don’t we do misinfo/hallucination
which complements the first session; and in the following meeting we look at
behaviour and maybe risk assessments.

I can connect the experts for prep/briefing once confirmed (maybe it is enough
to do this through email; avoiding another meeting).

Cheers, Michael

wlogically.ai>

From: NN

Sent: Montag, 13. Mai 2024 14:34

To: Michacl Mcyer 2 dcmocracy-reporting.org>
Ce:IlEEEE c:LA) I @ nmicrosoft.com>; INGNG
B o oo2ic.com>; cnect-cop-task-force@ec.curopa.cu;
KOLODZIEJSKA Anna <1 - c curopa.cu>; I
B icrosoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne
I - curopa cu>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European

clections

Hi Michael,
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Thanks for your email.

Can I confirm that your preference is therefore to have 2 experts speaking on
one topic (or is it 3 experts speaking on the topic of "Detecting/reacting gAl
mis/disinfo — C2PA and beyond"? I am struggling to understand your email),
and then 2 further experts speaking on two other separate topics cach?
Therefore, 4 altogether across 3 presentations? It would be helpful to clearly
quantify what you mean by "too many experts and presentations”.

I think we are still waiting for [ to reply with next steps on reaching out
to Andy Parson.

Do we have CELA) and (N o' ccn light to go

back to Hans from Valid tech to reach out to his proposed stakeholders (outlined
in my last emails)? I am interpreting that

Lastly, @Michaecl Meyer I reiterate from my email on Friday 10th that T will
unfortunately NOT be able to reach out to NATO's principal

scientist, Gundars Bergmanis-Korats. Therefore, unless it would be
appropriate to nominate someone from Logically to speak (which I am happy to
do, but I will need this confirmation TODAY to get the ball rolling to that end
before 1 go on annual leave).

Remaining action points listed below for your convenience:

e (@GILLET Jeanne or @KOLODZIEISKA Anna to circulate a
calendar invitation for this next Subgroup meeting to take place
on Monday 3rd June 14:00 - 16:00 CET

«Once researchers/experts have been identified, reached out to
(hopefully with success) we will need to set up a briefing with them to
set out how the meeting will unfold. The only other acceptable date
for our availabilities i.e. Thursday 30th May between 15:30 -

17:30. Can someone please take responsibility for setting this up
once the researchers are confirmed?

As I will be on annual leave Tuesday 14th - Tuesday 28th May I am unable
to contribute further to this after today. Can someone else please take on
the responsibility of following up on the above action points?
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Senior Manager, Government Affairs

(EU & UK)

logically.ai

waw.logicalfy.ai

On Mon, 13 May 2024 at 13:24, Michael Meyer I @ democracy-
reporting.org> wrote:

Thank you, - and -

I see the problem with too many experts and presentations. Maybe if we can

convince them to be very short it could work. (Otherwise, 1 would drop Prof.
Steinebach)
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From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu]

Sent: 6/6/2024 4:20:08 PM
To: i Redacted @disinformationindex.org]; Redacted L
Redacted ‘demagog.org.pl]i Redacted fidu.it]; Redacted iactivefence.co m} Reclactecl-
] Redacted irsf.org]? Redacted iarcom.fr]! Redacted fidu. It],.Redacted.
] ifeedback.org]; Redacted lessurligneurs. eu], Redacted |
i Hogically.co. uk]j»iiéa;&'é-a i(TikTok) [~ "Redacted _itiktok.com];  Redacted i
:Rodacmﬁ}aﬁorensms org: Redacted legitimate.net]; Redacted maldita.es];
] Redacted tiktok.com]i Redacted imicrosoft.com]; Redacted i
{Rodactoakreakom.d k]| Redacted igoogle.com]; Redacted ;
_'glessurllgneurs eul; Redacted inewsguardtech. com]a Redacted :
] Redacted disinformationindex.org]; Redacted tiktok.com]} '""E;'&;gi:&“m i
Redacted ‘eaca.eui Redacted izoogle.com]; Redacted idemocracy-
reporting.orgl; Redacted idoubleverify.com]i Redacted {GDI)
| “Redacted _disinformationindex.org]: Redacted activefence.com]; Redacted
i Redacted !globsec.org];f Redacted leui.eu]; Redacted funky.ongl  Redacted |
[ “Redacted _ ifidu.it]; Redacted doteurope.eul; Redacted Dfeedback.org]; i
Redacted Vimeo.com]; Redacted iabeurope.eu)i  Redacted |
__Redacted wfanet. org} Redacted alliancedeurope.eu}  Redacted
. 'Redacted Dlegitimate. net]; Redacted inewsguardtech.com]; Redacted
i;ﬁéié&;&mlhr)kedm com], Redacted ieeas.europa.eu; Redacted idoteurope.eu] ,:" R
! Redacted waild tech]ﬁ Redacted sdernocracy reporting. org],.

""Dcrlspthmkmg com]; Redacted vosteurope. org]L Redacted |

Redacted fiabeurope.eu] Redacted inewtral.es]; Redacted inewsguardtech.com];
i Redacted eui. eu}' Redacted ivosteurope. org]LRedacted (CMS/ERGA)

Jrpms.sk]i Redacted The Bright Appiredactea'thebrightapp.com]; Redacted democracy-
Redacted globsec.org]i Redacted Bfaktograf.nr];__ Redacted |

Redacted vimeo. com} Redacted'(Ebiqmty) Redacted .eblqmty com];

ivosteumpe.org]& Redacted igoogle. comi Redacted
Redacted globsec.org];; Redacted i

Redacted idemagog.org.pl]; " Redacted eeas.europa. eu; Redacted ;

i Redacted rsforgli T __Redacted lavaaz.org]i Redacted !
i Redacted ‘eui.eu]; Redacted vimeo.com]; Redacted eui.eu];
! Redacted logicallyfacts.com];: Redacted avaaz.org]; Redacted |
i Redacted @firma.seznam.cz];i Redacted google.com]! Redacted aiforensics.org];
] Redacted lafp.com];i Redacted newtral.es]; Redacted
i _Redacted _imaldita.es]; Redacted ;*fb.com];é Redacted :
i Redacted iebiquity. com];; Redacted @twitch.tv]i Redacted i
[ Redacted _imicrosoft.com]i Redacted finkedin.com; Redacted idemocracy-
reporting.orgl;  Redacted  «ch-c.eul; Redacted igoogle.com]; Redacted i
i Redacted ieaca.eul; Redacted favaaz.orgli T Redacted justin.tv];
i Redacted alliancedeurope.eulj Redacted bfirma.seznam.cz]i Redacted ;
i Redacted fb.com]; Redacted irsf.org]. Redacted leui.eu]i  Redacted |
; Redacted idemagog.org.pl];i Redacted INCRTV/ERGA! Redacted @iag.gr]i Redacted !
Redacted 2firma.seznam.cz]; Redacted activefence.com];  Redacted
Redacted icrispthinking.com];i Redacted Ddisinformationindex.org]; Redacted |

fanet. org]' Redacted inewsguardtech.com]‘ Redacted !

;i Redacted iaiforensics.org Redacted @whotargets.me];
-alllance4europe.eu},. Redacted Dlogically.co.uk]; ___Redacted __ {Active
Redacted kreakom.dk]i Redacted :
{ Redacted ftl ktok.com]‘ Redacted logically.co.uk]; Redacted
o Redacted irvr.sk];t Redacted iadobe.com];i Redacted
Redacted idoubleverify.com]; Redacted ieeas.europa.euj Redacted
Redacted Eeaca euli Redacted IERGA)T Redacted irvrsk];  Redacted
-_B_g_qggggg_imlcrosoft com]; Redacted -PageIIaPolltica [;tﬁ;éj;’_ég{e'_ii:_,pagellapo!|t1ca it]; Redacted ]
Redacted jabeurope.eu]; Redacted Dalliancedeurope.eu]] _Redacted !
{ __Redacted _ﬂewsguardtech.com];i Redacted  maldita.es]i Redacted idebunk.org];
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Redacted llessurligneurs.eu];; Redacted |

Redacted inewsguardtech.com]: Redacted ‘@ec.europa.eu]i Redacted
i  Redacted @ec.europa.eu]j Redacted :@ec.europa.eu]ﬁ Redacted !
' Redacted lec.europa.eu); Redacted iec.europa.eu} Redacted |
‘__Bg_q_ggsgg___;@ec.europa.eu]i Redacted ;@ec‘eumpa.eu];& Redacted
i Redacted Eec.europa‘euﬁ Redacted iec.europa.eu]j Redacted :
Redacted {@ec.europa.eu]
Subject: Extraordinary CoP Plenary - Code's conversion // 3rd meeting
Location: webex
Start: 6/14/2024 1:00:00 PM
End: 6/14/2024 2:30:00 PM

Show Time As: Tentative

Recurrence: (none)

Dear Signatories,

We would like to invite you to the third extraordinary Plenary meeting of the Code’s signatories about the process of the
conversion of the Code of Practice on Disinformation into a Code of Conduct under Article 45 of the DSA. We would like
to update you on the latest developments in this regard.

The meeting will take place on 14 June {Fri) at 15:00 ~ 16:30. The webex connection details will follow,

Please note that for the moment you are not required to send your submission forms by 10 June.

Kind regards,
CoP Team
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Appointment

To: cNEecT-coP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; [ G B G co.com);
B Tccas.curopa.eu [ @ccas.europa.cul; G cc2s.evropa.ey;
B -c:s.curopz.cu [ << curopa.cu); G cc 25 curopa.eu;
‘eeas.europa.eu; Alexis Bley _@eaca.eu]; Ania Helseth -@meta.com]; Bastien
carniel (Science Feedback) ([ @fecdback.orgl; BIRGER Albin ([ <c.curopa.eu); BLASCHKE
Yannic [ G <c.curopa.eu); BRAIDA Mattia (] ] @<c.europa.eu); Carlos Hernandez
O <), N S oo, S
_@microsoft.com]; Chine Labbe _@newsguardtech.com]; Claudie Moreau
R ——
Dominika Hadju [ @</ obsec.org); Elena Calistru [JJlj@funky.ong]; Emmanuel Vincent (Science
Feedback) [ @feedback.org; GILLET Jeanne [ G<c.curor2.cul; | EENEGEGEGE
B G inkedin.com]; Heather Dannyelle Thompson [l @ democracy-reporting.org]; Ines Narciso
G osteurope.org); Irene Larraz [ @ newtal.es); [ (Gt vitch tv]; Jana
Kazaz G s /obsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic ([ @ -«tograf.hr); N
i o.com]; Joao Ribeiro (R @ vosteurope.org); N
R G <rispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes |G vosteurope.org]; NG B G -2
labs.com]; Katarina Klingova ([ I @</ obsec.org); Katya Viadziorchyk ([ @aiforensics.org);
koLoDzIEISKA Anna (GG G <c.curopa.cu); KUKUS Lubos |G <c.curopa.cu); IR
B @ eta.com; Laura Le Roho [ s .orc); I B 2 b < d2nce .com);
Luca Nicotra [i@avaaz.org); | N B @ ooz ¢ com]; Marilin Gonzalo

TG vtrales); Marina Sacristan ([ @maldica.os); GG

N cta.com); I B tvitch. o) ;

I icrosoft.com]; Maud Sacquet ([ ll@'inkedin.com]; Michael Meyer [[Jlf@democracy-
reporting.org]; || Gz B @<oogle.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral [ii@avaaz.org); | N
@justin.tv]; Paul Coppin _@rsf.org]; Gori, Paula _@eui.eu]; Pawel Terpilowski
I & o< magog.org.pl]; Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA) (R @<s.2r); RABBACHIN
Alberto (CNECT) _n@ec.europa.eu]; Richard Stansfield _@crispthinking.com];
salvatore Romano ([l @ziforensics.org]; [ (Goog'e) I @2008!e.com]; Stanislav Matjeka
_@rw.bk]; STUMP Krisztina _@ec.eulupa.eu]; Timea Cervenova
< I B icrosoft.com); Tommaso Canetta

I G pacelapolitica.it); |GG S G5 tcdance.com]; Veena Mccoole
_@newsguardtech.com]; Vincent Berthier -@rsf.org]; Virginia Pavodese

S < \vscuardtech.com]; | @25 2r; DERIVRY Tamian
_@ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter _@ec.europa‘eu];_
I G :ooslc.com]; 'David Reis' [f@activefence.com]

CC: -@spotif\/‘com; Timea Cervenova —@rpms.sk]; Victor Rico -@maldita.es];
MR <o

Start: 6/12/2024 7:30:00 AM

End: 6/12/2024 9:00:00 AM

Show Time As: Free

Recurrence: (none)

This Message Is From an External Sender
Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup,
In accordance with the latest agreement, we send you the recurring meeting invitation for our monthly meetings.
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Looking forward to seeing you, kind regards,
Kind regards,

The CoP Disinfo Team

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to loin the mesting

Meeting 10
Passcode: -

Download Teams | joinenthe web

Join with a video conferencing device
B o echeceuropa.ey

Video Conference ID: ||| EGTGTGcGcNR

fternate VIC instructions

Joining is avaiiable only from a Commission videoconferencing system.

Learn More | Help | Meeting options
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Message

From: MPIL DSA [l @meta.com]

Sent: 7/10/2024 2:18:39 AM

To: B o curopaceu

cc: Meta DSA Compliance Office ([ EC ~<tz-com); Gz EC <t2-com); N
T ceta.com]; G TG eta.com]

Subject: Response to Third technical roundtable European Elections (Online) on July 10, 2024

Private and Confidential

10 July 2024

Attention: Prabhat Agarwal, Head of Unit

Response to Third technical roundtable European Elections (Online) on July 10, 2024
Dear Mr. Agarwal,

We refer to your email and letter dated 10 June 2024 requesting a written response noting Meta Platforms
Ireland Ltd’s (“MPIL”) plans for finalising a post-election review of our 2024 European Parliamentary Elections
(“EP Elections”) efforts and any other relevant information before the roundtable scheduled on July 10, 2024,

As mentioned in our previous responses dated 17 May 2024 and 3 June 2024, MPIL takes the integrity of
electoral processes very seriously. The conclusion of the EP elections on June 9, 2024 drew to a close year-long
preparations by teams across MPIL to identify and mitigate the most pressing platform risks posed by the
electoral period. These elections took place against a backdrop of over 90 scheduled elections globally, and
were the first EU-wide elections to take place in the context of the Digital Services Act, and its associated
Elections Guidelines (“Guidelines”) published in the spring.

For the EP elections, MPIL utilised election management processes refined over many years, by teams with
expertise in electoral risk mitigation as well as local knowledge and context. We worked hard to adopt
feedback from the Commission, Digital Services Coordinators, election authorities, and civil society, making
additional adjustments and improvements to our processes in light of the Guidelines and direct discussions
undertaken at EC hosted roundtables and a cross-sector tabletop exercise.

Whilst we experienced no major incidents during this electoral period, it was not without its complexity and
learnings. As recommended in the Guidelines, MPIL plans to compile a post-election report and publish a
public version of this report mid-late September, but in the interim below is a non-exhaustive overview of
Meta’s impact during the EP election.

Meta’s Impact During the EP Elections

Over many years, MPIL has developed a range of tools and processes designed to ensure that platform risks
arising from ongoing electoral processes are accurately identified and effectively mitigated. We continuously
improve these measures to make sure they remain responsive to risks as they emerge, as well as external
feedback. Several of our processes and tools mirror the measures outlined in the Commission’s election
guidelines.

1718
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001101

NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY



For the EP elections, we prioritised efforts aimed at addressing risks from adversarial threats (such as the
Russia-origin network known as Doppelganger), infringement of our transparency requirements for political
advertisements, and misinformation, including Al-generated misleading content. We deployed mitigation
measures to tackle each of these risk areas, as well as running standard mitigation for other election-relevant
risks, such as hostile speech.

1. Connecting People to Reliable Information on the Electoral Process

MPIL launched in-app Voter Information Units and Election Day Reminders on Facebook and Instagram,
reminding people of the day they can vote in their Member States and re-directing them to local authoritative
sources on how and where to vote.

These were complemented by two supporting media literacy efforts, namely a campaign by the European
Fact-Checking Standards Network (EFCSN) on how to spot Al-generated and digitally altered media, and the
European Regulators Group for Audiovisual Media Services’ (ERGA) awareness raising campaign against
disinformation.

2, Cooperating with Stakeholders

Our efforts were strengthened by close cooperation with both civil society and election authorities. We
onboarded 26 election authorities to a dedicated reporting channel. In addition, we took active part in the EU
Disinformation Code Taskforce’s Elections Working Group and its Rapid Alert System, with both an email alias
and an online form for working group members to report content and trends that were time sensitive, serious
or related to protecting the integrity of the electoral process.

3. Combatting Adversarial Threats

At Meta, we have specialised global teams who are focused on stopping coordinated inauthentic behaviour on
our platforms. Since 2017, more than 200 Coordinated Inauthentic Behaviour (CIB) networks have been
identified and removed by this team. Their efforts are detailed in quarterly Adversarial Threat Reports, the
latest of which was published on May 29, 2024. These teams are part of our elections cross-functional team,
and work to identify and disrupt specific threats targeting public discourse globally, including ahead of major
elections.

In preparation for the 2024 EP elections, these specialist teams conducted a threat ideation session to focus
on threats specifically associated with Europe and its elections; arganised deep dive sessions with the relevant
national authorities in France, Germany and Poland as well as the Commission’s team in charge of the
Disinformation Code; and designed proactive measures to minimise online risk.

This work included our continued efforts to combat a long running cross-internet covert influence operation
from Russia, known as Doppelganger, using a combination of automated technology and manual investigation
to stop the majority of Doppelganger’s attempts to place ads and typically remove the successfully placed ads
within hours of their creation. This allowed us to reject the majority of Doppelganger’s attempts to place ads,
and led to this operation attempting to evade detection by degrading the quality of their ads — some to a point
of illegibility. We provided our contemporary insights on major changes in the Doppelganger network’s tactics
on our services in our Q1 2024 Adversarial Threat Report.
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In addition, whilst public discourse ahead of the EU parliamentary elections focused primarily on foreign
threats like Doppelganger, the majority of EU-focused inauthentic behaviour we disrupted ahead of our Q2
Threat Report in May was domestic in nature. This included Coordinated Inauthentic Behaviour in Croatia and
more simple inauthentic clusters removed in France, Germany, Poland and Italy — an insight we included in our
Q1 2024 Adversarial Threat Report. These clusters and networks had small numbers of assets, primarily
targeted audiences in their own countries, were more focused on domestic local elections rather than the EU
parliamentary elections, and many were linked to individuals associated with local campaigns or candidates.
Where we did see some targeting by foreign actors, including Doppelganger and a handful of simpler
inauthentic behaviour clusters, they were primarily focused on undermining support for Ukraine in the EU
member states, rather than directly targeting the parliamentary elections.

4, Political Advertisements

Meta provides industry-leading transparency for ads about social issues, elections or politics (SIEP ads), and
we reject ads that encourage people not to vote or call into question the legitimacy of upcoming elections.
Advertisers who run SIEP ads are required to complete an authorisation process and include a “paid for by”
disclaimer, and we remove them if they don’t. Advertisers can only run ads in the countries they are
authorised in. Cross-border advertising within the EU is allowed for the EU institutions and registered
European political parties and groups.

As the EP elections approached, there were additional measures we adopted to identify and if necessary
prevent undeclared political advertisements from being posted on our platforms.These steps included using
automation to identify as SIEP any advertisements that contained certain keywords likely to be political in
nature, and any advertisements posted by political actors. We also provided extra information to our content
reviewers to ensure they had country-level and election-specific contextual information to identify undeclared
political advertisements. Finally, we made sure reviewers had tooling that automatically highlighted the names
of EP elections candidates, so that content was easier to identify, and improved monitoring of the ads library
to check for undeclared SIEP advertisements, misinformation and smear campaigns.

5 Combating Misinformation

We continued to work with our network of 29 fact-checkers in the EU, which is the largest network of any
provider. We increased their capacity to rate and review content during the elections. We used keyword
detection to group potential misinformation content related to the election in one place to facilitate their
work, and organised refresher sessions on our policies attended by 21 organisations. We are seeing
encouraging results of this approach, such as Fundacién Maldita’s recent report which estimates that over
88% of the election-related misinformation on Facebook, and over 70% on Instagram, received visible action -
out-perfarming all other providers.

6. Efforts to detect and enforce on Deceptive Generative Al

As previously outlined, MPIL's Community Standards and Advertising Standards apply to content generated by
Al. Those policies are complemented by (a) labels on photorealistic images created using Meta Al, (b) tools to
detect Al generated images from Google, Microsoft, Adobe, MidJourney, and Shutterstock posted on
Facebook, Instagram, or Threads, (c) a feature for people to disclose when they share Al-generated video or
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audio, and (d) an obligation on advertisers running ads related to social issues, elections, or politics with Meta
to disclose if they use a photorealistic image or video or realistic sounding audio created or altered digitally
including with Al. This approach to automatically labelling Al-generated images represents the cutting edge of
what’s technically possible right now. But it’s not yet possible to identify all Al-generated content, and there
are ways that people can strip out invisible markers. We're working hard to develop classifiers that can help us
to automatically detect Al-generated content, even if the content lacks invisible markets.

MPIL appreciates the opportunity to provide comments on its efforts to manage the EP Elections, and values
the constructive, multi-stakeholder and multi-pronged approach that the Commission repeatedly
demonstrates in its election readiness work.

* %k ok
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Appointment

To: cNEecT-coP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; || GG B G co.com);
lutz.guellnerATeeas.europa.eu [ R @ceas.europa.cu); G cc2s.europa.ey;
I ;.o cu [ << curopa.cu); G << 25 curopa.eu;
‘eeas.europa.eu; Alexis Bley _@eaca.eu];_ _@meta.com]; Bastien
carniel (Science Feedback) ([ @fecdback.orgl; BIRGER Albin ([ <c.curopa.eu); BLASCHKE
Yannic [ G <c.curopa.eu); BRAIDA Mattia (] ] @<c.europa.eu); Carlos Hernandez

O <), N S <ocon), S O
_@microsoft.com]; Chine Labbe _@newsguardtech.com]; Claudie Moreau

I - - I S < - o), S . o c oot com)
Dominika Hadju [ @</ obsec.org); Elena Calistru [Jlj@funky.ong]; Emmanuel Vincent (Science
Feedback) [ @feedback.org; GILLET Jeanne [ G<c.curor2.cul; | EENEGEGEGE
B G inkedin.com]; Heather Dannyelle Thompson [l @ democracy-reporting.org]; Ines Narciso
B ostcurope.org); irene Larraz ([ G newtral.es); I BC: vitch.tv]; Jana
Kazaz @ ¢ obsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic [ @ -ktograf.hr);
i <o.com]; Jozo Ribeiro (R @ vosteurope.org); NN TN
R G <rispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes |G vosteurope.org]; NG B G -2
labs.com]; Katarina Klingova ([ ] @</ obsec.org); Katya Viadziorchyk ([ @aiforensics.org);
koLoDzIEISKA Anna (I G <c.curopa.cu); KUKUS Lubos (G <c.curopa.cu); R
I @ eta.com); Laura Le Roho [l @ s ore); I B G5 tcd2nce.com);
Luca Nicotra [i@avaaz.org); | B @200z ¢ com]; Marilin Gonzalo

T vtrales); Marina Sacristan ([ @maldica.es); GGG

N cta.com); I B tvitch. o) ;

T e icrosoft.com]; [ R B G/ kedin.com]; Michael Meyer [[Jilf@democracy-
reporting.org]; || GGz I @<oogle.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral [il@avaaz.org); | N
_@justin.tv]; Paul Coppin _@rsf.org]; Gori, Paula _@eui.eu]; Pawel Terpilowski
I G oo magog.org.pl; Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA) I @<5r.21); RABBACHIN
Alberto (CNECT) —@ec.europa.eu]; Richard Stansfield _@crispthinking.com];
salvatore Romano [l @ziforensics.org]; | (Goog'e) I @2008!e.com]; Stanislav Matjeka
_@rw.bk]; STUMP Krisztina —@ec.eulupa.eu]; Timea Cervenova
< I B G icrosoft.com); Tommaso Canetta

I @ 02celizpolitica.it); [ S @b tcdance.com]; Veena Mccoole
_@newsguardtech.com]; Vincent Berthier -@rsf.org]; Virginia Pavodese

S < \vscuardtech.com]; | @25 2r; DERIVRY Tamian
_@ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter _@ec.europa‘eu];_
B 5 :00clc.com]; 'David Reis' [if@activefence.com]

CC: -@spotif\/‘com; Timea Cervenova —@rpms.sk]; Victor Rico -@maldita.es];
MR <o

Start: 7/10/2024 7:30:00 AM

End: 7/10/2024 9:00:00 AM

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
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From: O'DWYER Mick I @ consilium.europa.eu]

Sent: 7/17/2024 11:40:45 AM

To: I o B ©cxeter.ac.uk; NG 2 thomsonreuters.com; [N @ifes.org;
I ) /b be; IEEG nature.com; Stavroula Kousta G ature.com]

cc VON POLENZ Beatrix | R @ consilium.europa.eu]; GONZALEZSOLAR Llarina

I 2 consilium europa.eu); Council Library (COMM2C) @ consilium.europa.eu]; Timon Qefelein

springer.com]; Annika Dirks [N springer.com]
Subject: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - introduction message
Attachments: Springer Nature Council Library panel discussion event abstract.docx

Dear colleagues,

I hope this message finds you well.

My name is Mick O’Dwyer and I am a librarian in the Council of the European Union. I contacting you in
relation to the upcoming joint event being organised by the Council Library, Springer Nature and its
journal Nature Human Behaviour.

We are delighted that you all agreed to participate as a panelistand | am messaging to say hello and
provide some basic information on the event. Our event with Springer Nature last year was one of the
most well received events we organised in the library in the Council. This year looks set to be even better!

e Topic: Disinformation : how new communication technologies are influencing elections and the
information landscape

e Date: October 10, 2024 (Panel discussion: 13:00 —14:30)

e |ocation: JL Press Room, Council of the European Union Brussels, Belgium

¢ Audience: Policy officers and other staff of the Council staff (plus some colleagues from the
Parliament and Commission) and delegates from the EU 27 Permanent Representations
to the EU

The goal of the panel discussion is to offer cutting edge insights into this topic to policy officers and other staff
in the Council of the European Union by leading experts in industry, academia, and civil society.

Based on previous events, we expect strong participation from EU officials and staff, and a lively and informed
Q&A with the audience. The panel discussion will be followed by a small networking reception, providing
opportunity for further interaction with attendees.

I have attached the abstract for the event.

My colleague Beatrix Von Polenz in cc will forward you information on accessing the Council premises in the
coming weeks.

*To obtain a visitors badge to enter the building you will need to provide your DOB and Passport number/National
ID card number to enter the building. Please send this to me ASAP and | can register you on the system™* This
will speed up the process for when you visit on October 10.
We will arrange a follow up meeting in September. Please let us know if you have any questions prior to that.
With kind regards, and have a nice summer.
Mick
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Mick O'Dwyer
Librarian

e
———
-

General Secretariat of the Council / Secrétariat Général du Conseil
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Information and Public Activities/ Informations et Activités publiques

Council Library / Bibliothéque du Conseil

JL02 40 GH 20
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@consilium.europa.eu | www,consilium.europa,eu

Mick O'Dwyer
Librarian

General Secretariat of the Council/ Secrétariat Général du Conseil
Communication and Information / Communication et Information

Information and Public Activities/ Informations et Activités publiques
Council Library / Bibliothéque du Conseil

(]}
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I < consilium. europa.eu | www.consilium.europa.eu
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Appointment

To: cNEecT-coP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; [ GG B G co.com);
B ccas.curopa.cu [ @ccas.curopa.eu); G ce2s.europa.eu;
sabrina.spielederATeeas.europa.cu || I ©<cas.curopa.cu); G c<2s.curopa.cu;
‘eeas.europa.eu; Alexis Bley _@eaca.eu];_ _@meta.com]; Bastien
carniel (Science Feedback) ([ @fecdback.orgl; BIRGER Albin ([ <c.curopa.eu); BLASCHKE
Yannic [ G <c.curopa.eu); BRAIDA Mattia (] @<c.europa.eu); Carlos Hernandez

O .-, I S oo S
_@microsoft.com]; Chine Labbe _@newsguardtech.com]; Claudie Moreau
T ———
Dominika Hadju [ @</ obsec.org); Elena Calistru [Jlj@funky.ong]; Emmanuel Vincent (Science
Feedback) [ @feedback.org]; GILLET Jeanne | @<c.curor2.cu); | EENEGEGE
B G inkedin.com]; Heather Dannyelle Thompson [l @ democracy-reporting.org]; Ines Narciso
B osteurope.org); Irene Larraz [ @ newtal.es); [ (Gt vitch.tv]; Jana
Kazaz (@ s/obsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic [ @ f-«tograf.hr);
i <o.com]; Jozo Ribeiro (R @ vosteurope.org; N

I @ <rispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes | @ vosteurope.org]; [ G B G <v--
labs.com]; Katarina Klingova ([ ] I @</ obsec.org); Katya Viadziorchyk [ @aiforensics.org);
koLoDzIEISKA Anna (I G <c.curopa.cu); KUKUS Lubos (G <c.curopa.cu); R
I @ eta.com); Laura Le Roho [ @rs ore); I B G5 (e 2nce.com);
Luca Nicotra [i@avaaz.org); | B @200z ¢ com]; Marilin Gonzalo

T vtrales); Marina Sacristan ([ @maldica.es); GGG

N cta.com); I B tvitch. o) ;

I e icrosoft.com]; [ R B ©'inkedin.com]; Michael Meyer [[Jilf@democracy-
reporting.org]; | | NN B @<oogle.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral [ii@avaaz.org); | N
@justin.tv]; Paul Coppin _@rsf.org]; Gori, Paula _@eui.eu]; Pawel Terpilowski
I G oo magog.org.pl]; Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA) [ @<5r.21); RABBACHIN
Alberto (CNECT) _@ec.europa.eu]; Richard Stansfield _@crispthinking.com];
salvatore Romano ([l @ziforensics.org]; | (Goos'e) I @2008!e.com]; Stanislav Matjeka
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

CC: -@spotif\/‘com; Timea Cervenova _@rpms.sk]; Victor Rico -@maldita.es];
MR <o

Start: 8/7/2024 7:30:00 AM

End: 8/7/2024 9:00:00 AM

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
Click here to oin the mesting

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

1730
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002853

NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY



Exhibit 170

1731



From: BURIAN Peter I @ <c.curopa.eu]

Sent: 9/4/2024 1:22:45 PM

To: 'Michael Meyer' 2 democracy-reporting.org); NG GGG - ooc <.com); NG
I icrosoft.com]

ccC: KOLODZIEJSKA Anna I © - .curopa.eu]

Subject: Gen Al WG meeting

Hello Il Michael, and I

The Gen Al WG meeting is scheduled for Monday. The high-level agenda is in the meeting invite, however we were
wondering whether there are any other points to add? We were also wondering how you want to run it, and whether
you foresee Powerpoint presentations for the point on elections, or whether it will be more freestyle. At the end of the
meeting, it might also be good to ask the participants whether there are any specific topics linked to generative Al and
disinformation they would like to discuss in the future. That way, we can then put it into the pipeline of future meetings,
and maybe see what types of experts to invite to address these topics.

Best regards,
Peter
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Appointment

To: cNEecT-coP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; [ GG B G co.com);
B ccas.curopa.cu [ @ccas.curopa.eu; G ce2s.europa.eu;
B <c:s.curopz.cu [ ©c<:s.curopa.cu); G c< 25 .curopa.eu;
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
Feedback) [ @feedback.org; GILLET Jeanne | @<c.curor2.cu); | EENEGE
B G inkedin.com]; Heather Dannyelle Thompson [l @ democracy-reporting.org]; Ines Narciso
G osteurope.org); Irene Larraz [ @ newtal.es); [ (Gt vitch tv]; Jana
Kazaz G s /obsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic ([ @ -ktograf.hr);
i <o.com]; Joao Ribeiro [ R @ vosteurope.org); NN

I G <rispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes [l @ vosteurope.org); Karolina Pietkiewicz [ li@neva-
labs.com]; Katarina Klingova ([ ] ] @</ obsec.org); Katya Viadziorchyk ([ @aiforensics.org);
koLoDzIEISKA Anna [ G <c.curopa.cu); KUKUS Lubos (G <c.curopa.cu); IR
B @ eta.com; Laura Le Roho ([ Erst o) I B o d2nce.com);
Luca Nicotra [i@avaaz.org); | N B @ ooz ¢ com]; Marilin Gonzalo

TG vtrales); Marina Sacristan ([ @maldica.os); GGG

N cta.com); I B it ch. o) ;

I e icrosoft.com]; | R B G/ kedin.com]; Michael Meyer [[Jilf@democracy-
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
salvatore Romano ([l @ziforensics.org]; | (Goog'e) I @2008!e.com]; Stanislav Matjeka
_@rw.bk]; STUMP Krisztina _@ec.eulupa.eu]; Timea Cervenova

T < G icosoft.com]; Tommaso Canetta

I G pacellapolitica.it]; B 2bytedance.com); Veena Mccoole
_@newsguardtech.com]; Vincent Berthier -@rsf.org]; Virginia Pavodese

I 2 < vscuardtech.com]; [ @22 r; DERIVRY Tamian
_@ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter _@ec.europa‘eu];_
I G :ooslc.com]; 'David Reis' [f@activefence.com]

CC: -@spotif\/‘com; Timea Cervenova _@rpms.sk]; Victor Rico -@maldita.es];
MR <o

Start: 9/4/2024 7:30:00 AM

End: 9/4/2024 9:00:00 AM

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

Sent: 9/9/2024 4:21:07 PM

To: I N <o oce.com); [N - ;oo e.com)
Subject: Re: Julia joins the CoP task-force for Google

Dear I

Thank you for your message.

Dear N

Welcome back ! | already sent you a calendar invitation for the Extraordinary Plenary meeting on the Code
Conversion scheduled next Monday 16 September from 15:00 to 17:00 CET.

In order to make sure that you receive information that is relevant to you, would it be possible to confirm
which of the subgroups below you intend to be involved in?

. Monitoring and Reporting

. Transparency Centre

. Integrity of services

. Scrutiny of advertising

. Crisis response (+ elections)

. Outreach and Integration of New Signatories

. Empowering Fact-checkers

. Generative Al

O ~NOYU B WM =

Thank you very much in advance.
Best regards,

Soraya forthe CoP team

From: I B © : oogle.com>
Sent: 09 September 2024 14:21
To: CNECT COP TASK FORCE

Cc: IS
Subject: [l joins the CoP task-force for Google
Dear all,

| hope you all had a nice summer!

Please allow me to re-introduce I, who is no stranger to most of you:) Julia has just returned from
her maternity leave and she'll help cover some aspects of the Code of Practice moving forward (yay!).

Can | kindly ask you to add Il on all relevant communication, invites and documents?

Many thanks and kind regards,

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-00000641
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From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu]

Sent: 9/16/2024 9:36:50 AM
To: i Redacted h@disinformationindex.org];i Redacted :
[ Redacted idemagog.org.pl]; £ Redacted fidu.it]; ! Redacted iactivefence.com];
i Redacted irsf.org);l Redacted iarcom. fr];i Redacted idu.it];; Redacted
i Redacted ifeedback.org];i Redacted lessurligneurs.eu];i Redacted i
Redacted _ilogically.co.uk]; Redacted itiktok.com]; i Redacted i
Ireasceai@aiforensics.org];| Redacted jegitimate.net]; Redacted imaldita.es];
! ' Redacted ttiktok.com];i Redacted imicrosoft.com];i Redacted :
[fresscscikreakom.d k];i Redacted igoogle.com];: Redacted i
lessurligneurs.euli Redacted inewsguardtech.com] i
idisinformationindex.org);! Redacted itiktok.com]; Redacted E
Redacted i@google.com]; Redacted idemocracy-
doubleverify.com];{ Redacted |
Redacted activefence.com]:i  Redacted |
Redacted ieui.eu]; Redacted funky.ongli Redacted i
Redacted idoteurope.eul} Redacted i@feedback.org];
liabeurope.eu]; Redacted wfanet.orgl; i Redacted |
Redacted legitimate.net];i  Redacted
Redacted linkedin.com];
Redacted idoteurope.eul; Redacted @valid.tech];
i Redacted idemocracy-reporting.orgl; i ;
“lerispthinking.com];] Redacted vosteurope.org); ki
______ dacted jiabeurope.eu]; Redacted inewtral.es)i " Redacted inewsguardtech.com];
Redacted eui.eul; Redacted ivosteurope.org); Redacted i
] Redacted vimeo.com]; Redacted i
Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org]; Redacted “~globsec.org];
ifaktograf.hr];i Redacted wvalid.tech]; Redacted :
Redacted osteurope.org); i " Redacted Google.com];
wvosteurope.org];! Redacted i Redacted iglobsec.org];i Redacted ;
Redacted idemagog.org.pll; |~ “Redacted  eeas.europa.euj . Redacted |
Redacted i@rsf.org]; | Redacted iavaaz.org};i _____ Redacted |
Redacted ivimeo.com]; Redacted ieui.eu]; Redacted |
] Redacted ilogicallyfacts.com]t Redacted lavaaz.org]; Redacted @firma.seznam.cz];
! Redaciad i Redacted _igoogle.com]} Redacted Daiforensics.org]i”  Redacted i
. Redacted @afp.com]; Redacted hewtral.es);i” " Redacted !
| 'Redacted_ maldita.es];i Redacted ifb.com];i. Redacted i
[TR _imicrosoft.com];i Redacted llinkedin.com]; i Redacted idemocracy-
reporting.orgl;i Redacted ich-c.euls Redacted igoogle.com];: Redacted |
[""Redacted ~ “leaca.eul;i Redacted avaazorgli Redacted '
[ Redacted fiabeurope.eu;i Redacted justin.tv];i "Redacted ialliance4europe.eu);
i Redacted firma.seznam.cz]; Redacted ffb.com];i Redacted !
[[""Redacted _irsf.org); R~ Redscicd i Redacted ieui.eu];i Redacted Redacted idemagog.org.pl];
i Redacted iiag.grl; Redacted firma.seznam.cz};
] Redacted @activefence.com]; Redacted icrispthinking.com];;  Redacted |
_____________ Redacted wfanet.orgl;! Redacted |
Redacted igoogle.com}; :’
whotargets.me]i Redacted
_____________________________ Redacted  activefence.com];
Redacted itiktok.com]; | Redacted : '

...........

Redacted rvr.s k]; Redacted i
Redacted iefcsn.com] ". ™ Redacted ;
Redacted leeas.europaeul;  Redacted i
Redacted Cirvrskl;i Redacted |
Redacted ipageliapolitica.it];]  Redacted
Redacted i@alliancedeurope.eul;i __ Redacted |
.......... Redacted ~_~‘maldita.es];i """~ "Redacted "~~~ “idebunk.org;
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i Redacted ilessurligneurs.eul;i Redacted i

] Redacted inewsguardtech.com]
cc g Redacted bdacted ec.europa.eu]; i Redacted @ec.europa.eu];’ Redacted |
i Redacted lec.europa.eu); Redacted lec.europa.eu; Redacted
Redacted iWec.europa.eu]; Redacted @ec.europa.eul;i  ~Rédacted i
Redacted  @ec.europa.eu];! Redacted lec.europa.eu); ! "Redacted |

Redacted iec.europa.eu]; i Redacted iec.europa.eu]i Redacted |
[ )
_iec.europa.eul;i Redacted iec.europa.eu]; Redacted |

od _llogically.ail;i Redacted rpms.sk]; i Redacted efcsn.com];
0 Redacted iarcom.fr]; i Redacted logically.ai]; | Redacted :
[[___Redacted ~ imeta.com]; Redacted meta.com];{ Redacted jgo0gle.com;i  Redacted |
[ Redacted irpms.sk];! Redacted newsguardtech.com]
Subject: Extraordinary Plenary on CoP Conversion

Attachments: Disinfo Code - preamble amendments - v. 2024.09.05_VLOPSEs.docx; ERGA-ed_Disinformation Code - proposed
amendments to preamble (002}.docx; Disinformation Code - proposed amendments to preamble_2024.07.25.docx;
Webex_meeting.ics

Location: Webex
Start: 9/16/2024 1:00:00 PM
End: 9/16/2024 3:00:00 PM

Show Time As: Tentative
Recurrence:  (none)

Dear Members of the Task-force,

Please note that at a request of some of you we have moved this afternoon meeting to Webex. Please find the updated
connection details below and attached.

We kindly remind you that for your convenience we have attached to this invitation:
- revised Preamble and the Technical Amendments proposed by the Commission at the Plenary in July
- comments to the revised Preamble and the Technical Amendments of ERGA
- comments to the revised Preamble and the Technical Amendments of VLOPSEs signatories

We are looking forward to our call this afternoon.

Kind regards,
CoP Team

DG CONNECT CNECT.1.4 is inviting you to a scheduled Webex meeting.
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More ways to join:

Join from the meeting link

Join by meeting number

Meeting number (access code): [

Meeting password: _ when dialing from a phone)

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only)

I ©<im Tol
A <embourg Tol

Some mobile devices may ask atlendees to enter a numeric password.

Join by phone

I s Tol
B o< bourg Toll

Global call-in numbers

Join from a video system or application

Dial 77 Redacted . i@ecconf.webhex.com

You can also dial [ 2-¢ enter your meeting number.
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Need help? Go to htips://help.webex.com

Dear Members of the Task-force,

We have been approached by the VLOPSE signatories’ with a request to reschedule the next Plenary meeting in view of
the deadline for the submission of the Code’s reports. Therefore, we propose to move the Plenary meeting to Monday,
16.09 at 15:00-17:00. We apologise for all the inconvenience it may cause. Please find the connection details below.

Thank you for all the comments to the revised Preamble and the Technical Amendments. Please find in the attachment
the documents we have received — from Code’s VLOPSE signatories and from ERGA.

We are looking forward to our discussions.
Kind regards,
CoP Team

Dear members of the Code’s Task-force,

As agreed at the last Plenary meeting on the Code’s conversion of 11 July, the DDL to send potential comments to the
revised Preamble and the closed list of the Technical Amendments is today (5 Sept). Should you have such comments to
share with us, please do it by today COB.

In order to progress swiftly with the Code’s conversion, we are inviting you to a next Plenary meeting on the Code’s
conversion on Friday, 13.09 at 14:00 — 16:00. The aim of the meeting is to discuss your potential comments on the
Preamble and agree on its final text as well as on the Technical Amendments.

Please find below the connection details.

Kind regards,
CoP Team

From: CNECT COP TASK FORCE
Sent: Thursday, july 25,2024 4:52 PM

Redacted ddisinformationindex.org>; Redacted i
Redacted idemagog.org.pl>i " Redacted " fidu.it>{ " " " Redacted activefence.com>;
Redacted " irsf.org>; {7 Redacted arcom.fr>;i Redacted 1
" “Redacted _Hidu.it>; | Redacted T feedback.org>i Redacted
< Redacted___Hessurligneurs.eu>; Redacted i Redacted glogicany.co.ulo"?_ Redacted _
: Redacted @tiktok.cong Redacted Redacteataiforensics.org>; | Redacted
fELRedacted5@Iegitimate.net>;2 Redacted " Redacted maldita.es>;!  Redacted
22:::::?35;&’t'é'ci""";tikto k.com>; i Redacted I "Redacted _‘microsoft.com>;i Redacted i
<reworakreakom.dk>; i “"Redacted google.com>;i Redacted i
i TRedacted _ Hlessurligneurs.eu>; “'Redacted newsguardtech.com> — i
< ""Redacted idisinformationindex.org>; i " TRedacted itiktok.com>; Redacted
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<i Redacted ieaca.eu>; Redacted google.com>;§ Redacted i

< "Redacted _idemocracy-reporting.org>; i Redacted idoubleverify.com>;! Redacted
Redacted idisinformationindex.org>; * Redacted i@activefence.com>;i Redacted !
< Redacted iglobsec.org>; 1 Redacted ieui.eu>; 'E....Redacted ___ iRedactedifunky.ong>;
3 Redacted fidu.it>; | Redacted Redsceaidoteurope.eus;i Redacted E
< feedback.org>; i Redacted iabeurope.eu>;i Redacted
<" Redacted @alliance4europe.eu>; Redacted
<i Redacted ‘;Iegitimate.neb; b Redacted inewsguardtech.com?
i Redacted @linkedin.com>;i Redacted ieeas.europa.eu>;i Redacted ;
< Redacted Nalid.tech:*;g Redacted
< ‘democracy-reporting.org>; { Redacted icrispthinking.com>; ﬁedacted
i "Redacted _ivosteurope.org>; i Redacted iiabeurope.eu>;i" ke i . ’
inewtral.es>; | Redacted inewsguardtech.com>;! Redacted |
Jleui.eu>; Redacted ivosteurope.org>; Redacted
irpms.sk>; | Redacted vimeo.com>; Redacted i
<dreacwaithebrightapp.com>; ¥ Redacted Edemocracy-reporting.org>;g Redacted !
< “Redacted iglobsec.org>;i Redacted faktograf.hr>;i Redacted wvalid.tech>;
Redacted i@ebiguity.com>; § Redacted ?vosteurope.org>;§f_' __________________
i Redacted igoogle.com>; 'i Redacted vosteurope.org>
<i Redacted iglobsec.org>; " Redacted iaiforensics.org>; RedaCted
idemagog.org.pl>; ! Redacted Deeas.europa.eu>; ':R
ifb.com>; i Redacted @rsf.org>; Redacted
i Redacted ieui.eu>; i Redacted vimeo.com>;{
i Redacted i@eui.eu>; 1 Redacted ilogicallyfacts.com>; 'i lavaaz.org>;
Redacted @firma.seznam.cz>; Redacted gle.cc __Redacted |
<iRedacted D @iforensics.org>; " Redacted iafp.com>;  Redacted
< Redacted inewtral.es>; | Redacted imaldita.es>; |  Redacted
<i Redacted ifb.com>; * Redacted imicrosoft.com>;!  Redacted !
< "Redacted__ilinkedin.com>; § Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org>; " Redacted @ch-
c.eu>;i Redacted igoogle.com>; ¥ Redacted ieaca.eu>;/ Redacted
i Redacted iavaaz.org>; i Redacted iabeurope.eu>;: Redacted |
<[ Redacted _ijustin.tv>; { Redacted alliancedeurope.eu>;i  Redacted
< "Redacted __ifirma.seznam.cz>; | Redacted ifb.com>;i Redacted irsf.org>;
i Redacted eui.eu>; ! Redacted Edemggog.org.pl>;i_3§g_a_§_t__e_g_§
i Redacted liag.gr>; ¢ Redacted firma.seznam.cz>;
Redacted _activefence.com>; | Redacted
Redacted i@disinformationindex.org>; | Redacted wfanet.org>;i Redacted :
<R EEEZ:'E&’; """ inewsguardtech.com>} Redacted igoogle.com>; | Redacted i
i Redacted @aiforensics.org>;! Redacted iwhotargets.me>; | Redacted |
< ""Redacted _ Valliancedeurope.eu>; ! cemRadacted logically.co.uk>; Redacted
i Redacted lactivefence.com>; i Redacted ikreakom.dk>; ¢ Redacted i
< Redacted itiktok.com>; % Redacted dogically.co.uk>; | Redacted
< Redacted irvr.sk>; i Redacted :adobe.com>; ! Redacted i
i "Redacted _i@efcsn.com>; | Redacted idoubleverify.com>; ! Redacted !
< Redacted ieeas.europa.eu>; | Redacted leaca.eu>;! Redacted
< Redacted irvr.sk>; § Redacted imicrosoft.com>;: Redacted !
< “Redacted »pagellapolitica.it>;! Redacted iiabeurope.eu>;i Redacted i
< Redacted ialliancedeurope.eu>; © Redacted inewsguardtech.com>; U “Redacted |
<iRedactedimaldita.es>; ! Redacted idebunk.org>; ¥ Redacted
i Redacted @|essurligneurs.eu>; i Redacted newsguardtech.com>
Ce:i .Redacted i@ec.europa.eu>;i Redacted
i Redacted i@ec.europa.eu>; Redacted lec.europa.eu>;i  Redacted |
[ Redacted iec.europa.eu>;i Redacted
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| Redacted !@ec.europa.euxg Redacted é@ec.europa.euxé Redacted

< Redacted iec.europa.eu>;i Redacted iec.europa.eu>;
i Redacted iec.europa.eu>i Redacted
Redacted i@ec.europa.eu>; Redacted i@ec.europa.eu>

Subject: CoP Conversion // Preamble
Dear Signatories,
We are following up on the last Plenary meeting on the Code’s conversion on the 11 of July.

Firstly, to recall, the following way forward was agreed at the meeting:

- Conversion of the Code to a Code of Conduct on 1 January 2025 — process for the conversion to start in
autumn while the date of the entry into force fixed to the 1** of January 2025

- Aroundtable dedicated to the question of audit will be organised between Signatories, auditors, and
the Commission as facilitator. The agenda of the meeting will be consulted with you in advance. As
discussed at the Plenary meeting, there will be written minutes/takeaways of the meeting.

- Arevised Preamble + a closed list of technical amendments to address concerns raised by industry
signatories on the interplay between the Code, the Digital Services Act and the Transparency and
Targeting of Political Advertising Regulation with the following new elements:

o Revised preamble language on the interplay with the DSA

o Addition of an additional clause to clarify the links with the Transparency and Targeting of
Political Advertising Regulation

o Deletion of Commitment 44 as a technical amendment - as this is the only commitment in the
Code which fully duplicates a DSA requirement without bringing a complementary added value.
To be done via the technical amendment list.

Please find attached our proposed additions and clarifications to the Preamble, as well as the suggested
Technical Amendments. Please note that, in view of the summer break, this is a preliminary suggestion that is
still under review by our Legal Service.

Thirdly, please find below a timeline of the next steps and deadlines to move the process forward decisively:

- 5September: Signatories to send their comments on the proposed language for the Preamble and
technical amendments

- 10 September: Written agreement by VLOPs on the way forward / on the package

- Asap after the Summer break [Date to be agreed]: Audit Roundtable

- 30 September: Submission forms to be sent to the EC

- 1January 2025: Entry into force of the Code as a Code of Conduct

As indicated, we are awaiting your potential comments to the preamble by the 5" of September the latest.
We stay at your disposal should you have any question,

Kind regards,
The CoP and DSA teams
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Summary of the Roundtable on
Auditing Commitments of the Code of Practice on Disinformation
30 September 2024 (Brussels / Webex)

1. Background

Article 45 of the Digital Services Act (DSA)* encourages the development of voluntary codes of conduct at
Union level that can contribute to the proper application of the regulation, taking into account in
particular the specific challenges of tackling different types of illegal content and systemic risks. The
Code of Practice on Disinformation (hereafter ‘the Code’) was revised and strengthened in 2022 with this

in mind, based on the Commission’s Guidance’ and anticipating the entry into force of the DSA. The
Signatories to the Code aim to convert the Code into a code of conduct under Article 45.

The purpose of the audit roundtable, that took place on 30 September 2024, was to discuss the audit of
the Code once converted into a code of conduct against the background of Article 37 DSA and the
Delegated Regulation on Audits (DR)®. The meeting was chaired by the Commission services and attended
by members of the Permanent Task-force to the Code, including Signatories who are providers of very
large online platforms or very large online search engines (VLOPSEs), representatives of civil society
organisations (CSOs) and other non-platforms signatories of the Code, auditing organisations and
representatives of the European Board for Digital Services ( ‘the Board').

Based on input from VLOPSE signatories, the Commission services had suggested to structure the
roundtable around three over-arching topics: the general approach to Code auditing; interactions
between the Code and the DSA from the auditing perspective; and auditing in view of the specificity of
commitments and of the nature of the services. The present summary of the meeting does not follow the
above structure, but rather reflects the main remarks and proposals that emerged during the discussion,
They are grouped by topic for a better overview.

This document solely aims to reflect the discussion and cannot be constructed as a legal interpretation
or guidance from the Commission on the discussed matters. Statements made by the Commission
services at the roundtable and summarised in this document do not represent a formal position of the
European Commission. The reference to “auditors” and “VLOPSEs” in this document should be
understood as summarising positions or statements made by individual participants from the respective
groups and not necessarily as a joint or common position of all the participants representing the group.

2. Introduction to the Roundtable

key role of the Code as an important element of the DSA framework and emphasised that the level of
ambition of the Code should not be reduced throughout the process of conversion. The Commission
noted that the meeting was not to discuss the Year 1 DSA audit, and that learnings from this process

t Regulation (EU) 2022/2065 of 19 October 2022 on a Single Market For Digital Services and amending Directive 2000/31/EC (Digital Services
Act).

2 COM(2021) 262 final https://digital-strategy.ec.europa.eu/en/library/guidance-strengthening-code-practice-disinformation

* Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2024/436 of 20 October 2023 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2022/2065 of the European Parliament

d of the Counc il, aying down rules on the performance of audit rvery large o line platforms and very large online search e Jnes.
an fth uncil, by | 1 rud I nang iddits fo | n d W d 1 ngin
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could be gathered at a later time. Providing an overview, the Commission services introduced the key
features of codes of conduct and of audits under the DSA and DR and provided some background on the

Code. The Commission services underlined that they see the Code as an important and ambitious
instrument to address the spread of online disinformation. The Code commitments and measures
releventfor VLORSEs if properly implemented, gancould represent a strong risk H&k mitigation measure by
VLOPSEs to address Article 34 DSA systemic risks the-systemicrisks linked to-disinformation, depending

on the results of the VLOPSES' risk assessment exercises. Morecver, the Commission services recalled

could be taken into account, where relevant, when determining whether the grovrder MLORSE is
complying with the obligations laid down by the DSA. At the same time, it is important to note that not
all commitments may be relevant, pertinent and practicable to all signatories, and that a negative audit
outcome regarding the Code does not equal an infringement of DSA obligations.

The Commission services recalled that auditing the Code should follow the requirements found in the DSA
and the DR. Providers of VLOPSE are subject, at least once a year, to independent audits that assess
compliance with Commitments undertaken pursuant to codes of conduct (Article 37{1)(b) DSA).

Prior to any audit procedure, the audited provider shall transmit to the selected auditing organisation a
description of any-the internal controls and benchmarks for each audited Code commitment (Article 5
DR). The audited provider must make specific additional information available to the auditing organisation
regarding codes of conduct to which it is a signatory (Article 17(1) DR).

Prior to the audit procedure, the auditing organisation must carry out a risk analysis. This shall take into
account in particular the nature of the audited service and the nature of the audited commitments, among
other things (Article 8 DR). The auditing organisation must use appropriate auditing methodologies to
reduce the assessed audit risks to a level that enables reaching audit conclusions with a reasonable level
of assurance (Article 10 DR).

The audit opinion on compliance with the DSA is separate from audit opinions on each code of conduct
under the DSA (Article 8 DR).

Regarding the timing of the audit, the Commission services explained that the audit period for signatories
starts as soon as reasonably possible {with the date to be published for certainty} once the Code is
converted. If the Code is converted, as agreed, as of 1 January 2025, the first audit period maysheuid be
shorter, to align it with the DSA audit for the following year. It is important to note that these timescales
do not contemplate how the Code would apply for later signatories to the Code.

When it comes to CSOs and non-platform signatories of the Code, Global Disinformation Index and Science
Feedback noted their unique roles as non-platform signatories to the Code and expressed their willingness
to provide support during the auditing process, where possible.
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3. Discussion on auditing the Code commitments

3.1 Level of audit and definition of benchmarks

The Commission services indicated that Article 37 DSA and Article 10 DR require VLOPSEs to be audited
on their compliance with all commitments they sign up to under the Code. The commitments and the
corresponding measures that are relevant or pertinent to their services are identified in the signatories’
respective subscription documents to the Code. Auditors indicated that, ahsent Commission guidance,

assessing compliance with a given commitment would take into account these corresponding measures,
Qualitative Reporting Elements (QREs) and Service Level Indicators (SLIs). Hence, absent Commission
guidance, individual VLOPSESs subject to the auditing obligation will be asked tosheuld provide auditors
with documentation related to the QREs and SLIs for all the measures they, as a provider of a specific

service, have individually subscribed to. Auditors also pointed out that the various commitments,

expected to make the audit a challenging process. Auditors invited the Commission o come up with
standards or a framework to facilitate this process.

The Commission services explained that these measures describe the specific means through which
signatories intend to achieve the objective of the commitment, and QREs and SLlIs provide the evidence
that the measures have been implemented, with the QREs and SLIs featuring in the regular reporting
under the Code.

VLOPSEs aiso voiced concerns about the challenges with the preparation and anticipated burden of the

commitments, measures, and QREs and SLis. They noted uncertainty about being able to document their
internal controls in time for the first audit for all the commitments they are have signed up to in-2022 To
sase-the-burden, VLOPSEs proposed to only consider a subset of QREs and SLIs that each provider would
identify as the most relevant benchmark(s) for its audited service(s) for the purpose of the audit inthe
Hrst-nudit.

Auditors indicated that reaching audit conclusions with a reasonable level of assurance, as required under
the DR, is too high a standard and will may-be difficult to achieve especially for the first audit. They
acknowledged that even if platforms have internal controls for each commitment in place, these may not

vet be ‘mature’ enough to serve as basis for the audit and therefore they most likely have to switch to a
substantive approach.

The Commission services flagged the need to preserve compliance with the reasonable assurance
requirement as defined in the DR. At the same time, they stressed that YLOPSEs enjoy seme flexibility in
interpreting and further defining commitments, measures, QREs and Siis they sign up to under ¢he OREs
and-Stis-set-in the Code, in particular for the purposes of the first audit. Notably, Article 5 DR requires
and empowers VLOPSEs to determine their internal controls and benchmarks for the various

commitments and transmit those to the auditor prior to the beginning of the audit procedure. This helps
to ensure that the audit accounts for the specific nature of the audited service, including between VLOPs

and VLOSEs. Nevertheless, the Commission services and auditors stressed that the relevant benchmarks
and internal controls defined by the individual VLOPSEs for each commitment under Article 5 DR should
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not excessively depart from measures and QREs/SLIs and should take inspiration from them, not least
to prepare the Code audit reports for public scrutiny.

Auditors explained that they will assess the information provided by the VLOPSE, which should be
appropriate and sufficient to reduce audit risks and is the basis to form an audit conclusion and opinion
(Article 11 DR). If they cannot rely on the information provided and on testing internal controls, they will
have to conduct more substantive procedures such as test samples, data analysis, etc. to reach audit
conclusions at commitment level with a reasonable level of assurance. Whereas Therefore, having

documentation on internal controls in place from the beginning of the audit procedure would help to
reduce the burden for both auditors and VLOPSEs, hoth auditors and VLOPSEs indicated to the
Commission this is unlikely to happen in light of the timing the Commission is pursuing for the
conversion process.

identifvinga-construs angding. prthe fisst-voaraudit ofthe Code whereby the task for VLOPSEs
would consist mainly in providing a detailed explanation of the internal contrels and benchmarks prior
to the beginning of the audit procedure, maintaining flexibility in the interpretation of the Code
commitments as applied to the relevant service. Without prejudice to the independence and

professional judggment of the auditors, the Commission services stated pointed-gut that the more precise
the information provided by VLOPSEs prior to the audit procedure is, the less likely it is that auditors may
need to ask for more information. For the first audit of the Code, auditors indicated that they may then
show some flexibility in how they follow up to the information received, without prejudice to their
professional judgement on a case-by-case basis. For example, auditors explained that there is flexibility

in designing how often metrics should be run as long as this meets the benchmark set by the VLOPSEs

themselves. The-Lommission-services-indicated-thattaken-topether-this-approach-is-aunected

3.2 Comparability and Consistency of Code audits

Auditors considered that guidance for setting materiality thresholds may help increase the consistency
and comparability of the Code audit. In their view, the biggest challenge will be to assess the point beyond
which compliance with Code commitments is considered sufficient. They considered that when thresholds
are not clear, auditors typically feel obliged to go very far in documenting their audits to be on the safe
side, which may result in unnecessarily burdensome audits for industry {including significant work to
confirm systems, processes, and practices), as well as lengthy audit opinions.

Upon inquiry from VLOPSEs and auditors about a potential Commission Guidance or revision of the DR
on Audiis, the Commission services pointed out that the first round of Code audit reports will be a useful
basis to decide whether additional guidance or revisions are is needed.

3.3 Other elements discussed, including interactions between Code commitments and the DSA

As foreseen in the agenda, the discussion also focused on how to audit specific cases where Code
commitments partly overlap with DSA obligations and where the implementation of Code commitments

depends on third parties other than the audited company.
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Regarding the first point, the Commission services stated that, in the EC's view poted-that there are no
conflicts between commitments under the Code and obligations under the DSA, only partial overlaps that
will be addressed in the preamble to the Code. VLOPSEs disagreed, pointing out, e.g., the apparent
conflict between the vetting process gutlined in Article 40 of the DSA as opposed to Commitment 27 of
the Code.

Using the example of the relation of Commitment 19 on transparency of recommender systems to the
obligations under Article 27 DSA, the Commission pointed out that commitments under the Code
overlapping with the DSA obligations add value to the latter e.g
requirements.

The discussion also explored ways to avoid duplications between DSA and Code auditing. The Commission
services pointed out that in cases where there are reiatively minor eabpsmall variations in language

and interpreted in favour of the legislation. For instance, if a VLOPSE has internal controls in place to
comply with Article 27 DSA, the same documentation will likely be reused for the purposes of auditing the
overlapping elements of Commitment 19.

VLOPSEs also inquired about auditing commitments where the implementation of certain elements is
dependent on third parties. In this context, the Commission’s services highlighted that certain elements
of Commitment 27 will have to take into account mechanisms that have yet to be defined in the upcoming
Delegated Act on Data Access and include cooperation with third parties. Auditors noted that services
can scope out provisions where relevant means of compliance {such as the vetted researcher process}
are not yet set up, and should therefore not be audited under the Code.

On a more general level, the Commission services pointed out that regarding commitments to support a
collaborative process, it may be most appropriate to focus on auditing internal controls/governance
processes that platforms have put in place, subject to the professional judgement of the auditor. Auditors
confirmed that for commitments to “cooperate”, VLOPSEs could explain how they interpret this
cooperation and auditors would then assess whether a VLOPSE has met this definition in its cooperation
actions. Moreover, auditors noted that if VLOPSEs indicate that they consider a certain element of a
commitment to be out of scope of the audit, it will be marked as such in the audit report.
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From: I o oc /e com)

Sent: 10/2/2024 7:38:14 AM

To: I <00 <.com]; N I - : o o: | <.com); I
- o0z e com); I B @ coocle.com); NN M- = 0oc/e.com)

Subject: Re: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10

Attachments: Springer Nature Council Library panel discussion event abstract.docx

Hi [l and all,

This panel seems to be growingly challenging, given the ongoing conversations re fact-checking, both in terms
of framing of the conversation and participants - see the agenda attached.

So I'm inclined to step out, unless people think it's too late to decline or the people invelved are too important.

Thanks in advance for your thoughts.

On Mon, Sep 23, 2024 at 9:48 PM [ ‘T coo:c.com> wrote:
Hello

As i will not be in Brussels, my collcaguc [l il replace me
Thanks
=

On Mon, Sep 23, 2024, 20:50 Stavroula |GG :(urc.com> wrote:
Dear I

Thank you very much once again for agreeing to participate in the panel event on disinformation and elections,
taking place in Brussels on October 10™. | will be moderating the panel discussion and look very much forward to
meeting you and to your contribution on the day.

| have attached the information leaflet for the event. As a reminder, each panellist will be making a brief ‘opening
statement’ on the topic (5-8 minutes), followed by questions by myself and the audience.

Based on my prior experience with moderating panels, discussions tend to be more productive and flow much
mare smoothly if we have the opportunity to meet and discuss briefly ahead of the event. These brief
discussions also help me determine the best order of opening statements. With this in mind, | was wondering
whether you could spare no more than 15-20 minutes for a brief conversation next week (i.e., the week of Sep
30th). If you could let me know your availability during the week of Sep 30th, | will arrange a slot for us. If you
would prefer to have this brief conversation this week instead, that would also be possible.
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Many thanks in advance and best wishes,

Stavroula

Stavroula Kousta, PhD
Chief Editor, Nature Human Behaviour

Nature Portfolio

orciD: I

My pronouns: she/her

I work flexible hours, so if this email arrives in your inbox out of hours, | don’t expect you to read, action, or reply
to it outside of your working hours.

From: O'DWYER Mick R -onsilium.curopa.cu>
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2024 12:41 PM
To: I 2 oogle.com; R cxcter.ac.uk ; NN homsonreuters.com; [ Qifes.org;

I ) ub.be; Kate Shea Hll@nature.com>: Stavroula Kousta <) nature.com>
Cc: VON POLENZ Beatrix <}l5lNGEGEGEGEGEGER . consilium.curopa.cu>; GONZALEZ SOLAR Llarina

4 consilium.curopa.eu>; Council Library (COMM 2C) 4 consilium.europa.eu>; Timon
Oefelein <NENENGNGgNER . spinger.com>; Annika Dirks < {@springer.com>

Subject: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - introduction message

Dearcolleagues,
I hope this message finds you well.
My name 1s Mick O’Dwyer and | am a librarian in the Council of the European Union. | contacting you in

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
most well received events we organised in the library in the Council. This year looks setto be even
better!
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e Topic: Disinformation : how new communication technologies are influencing elections and the
information landscape

e Date: October 10, 2024 (Panel discussion: 13:00 - 14:30)

e Location: JL Press Room, Council of the European Union Brussels, Belgium

e Audience: Policy officers and other staff of the Council staff (plus some colleagues from the
Parliament and Commission) and delegates from the EU 27 Permanent Representations
to the EU

The goal of the panel discussion is to offer cutting edge insights into this topic to policy officers and other
staff in the Council of the European Union by leading experts in industry, academia, and civil society.

Based on previous events, we expect strong participation from EU officials and staff, and a lively and
informed Q&A with the audience. The panel discussion will be followed by a small networking reception,
providing opportunity for further interaction with attendees.

[ have attached the abstract for the event.

My colleague Beatrix Von Polenz in cc will forward you information on accessing the Council premises in
the coming weeks.

*To obtain a visitors badge to enter the building you will need to provide your DOB and Passport
number/National ID card number to enter the building. Please send this to me ASAP and | can register you on
the system™* This will speed up the process for when you visit on October 10.

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
Information and Public Activities / Informations et Activités publiques

Council Library / Bibliothéque du Conseil
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JL0240GH 20
Rue de |a Lol/Wetstraat 175 - 1048 Bruxelles/Brussel - Belgigue/Belgie

I G consilium. europa.eu | www.consilium.europa.eu

Mick O'Dwyer

Librarian

General Secretariat of the Council / Secrétariat Général du Conseil
Communicetion and Information/ Communication et Information
Information and Public Activities / Informations et Activités publiques

Council Library / Bibliothéque du Conseil

L0240 GH20
Ruede |a Loi/Wetstraat 175 - 1048 Bruxelles/Brussel - Belgigue/Belgie

I G consilium.europa.eu | www.consilium.europa.eu
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Appointment

To: cNEecT-coP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; [ GG B G co.com);
B Tccas.curopa.eu [ @ccas.europa.cu); G 225 .europa.ey;
B ;o0 v [ ©cc:s curopa.cu); G e =5 .curopa.eu;
‘eeas.europa.eu; Alexis Bley _@eaca.eu];_ _@meta.com]; Bastien
carniel (Science Feedback) ([ @fecdback.orgl; BIRGER Albin ([ <c.curopa.eu); BLASCHKE
Yannic [ G <c.curopa.eu); BRAIDA Mattia (] @<c.europa.eu); Carlos Hernandez
O .-, I O oo
_@microsoft.com]; Chine Labbe _@newsguardtech.com]; Claudie Moreau
T e —
Dominika Hadju [l I @z obsec.org]; Elena Calistru [[ilj@funky.ong); [ (Science
Feedback) [ @feedback.org]; GILLET Jeanne [ G<c.curor2.cu); NG
B G inkedin.com]; Heather Dannyelle Thompson [l @ democracy-reporting.org]; Ines Narciso
G osteurope.org); Irene Larraz [ G newtal.es); I Gt vitch tv]; Jana
Kazaz (G g/obsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic ([ @ 2ktograf.hr);
B ©ineo.com]; Joao Ribeiro [ R @ vosteurope.org); N
R G <rispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes |G vosteurope.org]; NG B G <v--
labs.com]; Katarina Klingova ([ ] ] @</ obsec.org); Katya Viadziorchyk ([ @aiforensics.org);
koLoDzIEISKA Anna I G <c.curopa.cu); KUKUS Lubos (G <c.curopa.cu); IR
I @ eta.com); Laura Le Roho [ @ s ore); I B G5 (e 2nce.com);
Luca Nicotra [Ji@avaaz.org); | B @200z e com]; Marilin Gonzalo
T vtrales); Marina Sacristan ([ @maldica.es); GG
N cta.com); I B tvitch. o) ;
T e icrosoft.com]; [ R B G/ kedin.com]; Michael Meyer [[Jilf@democracy-
reporting.org]; | | GGz T @<oogle.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral [ii@avaaz.org); |
@justin.tv]; Paul Coppin _@rsf.org]; Gori, Paula _@eui.eu]; Pawel Terpilowski
I G oo magog.org.pl; Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA) (I @<5r.21); RABBACHIN
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
I G pacellapolitica.it); B 2bytedance.com); Veena Mccoole
_@newsguardtech.com]; Vincent Berthier -@rsf.org]; Virginia Pavodese
S < \vscuardtech.com]; | @25 2r; DERIVRY Tamian
_@ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter _@ec.europa‘eu];_
B G :00clc.com]; 'David Reis' [f@activefence.com]

[

CC: Timea Cervenova @rpms.sk]; Victor Rico _];-Darcom.fr

Start: 10/2/2024 7:30:00 AM
End: 10/2/2024 9:00:00 AM
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
Click here 1o ioin the meeting

vieeting 1> SN
Passcode: |||

Download Teams | Join on the web

Join with a video conferencing device
B cans echeceuropasy

Video Conference ID; _

Alternate VTC insbructions

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system.

Learn Mors KMeeting antions
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From: I - :oocic.com]

Sent: 10/7/2024 1:02:04 PM

To: I B ©coogle.com]

cc: I o oc|c.com)

Subject: Fwd: FW: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10
Hi

Timon reached out to me as well about the disinfo event at the Council.

Given the previous discussion on our internal thread and the current disinfo flux, I would decline it - but let me
know please if you think we should reconsider (or if you declined it already for the second time).

Thanks and safe travels!

B | Government Affairs and Public Policy - EU | M +

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Timon Oefelein <\ )springer.com>

Date: Mon, Oct 7, 2024 at 12:53 PM

Subject: FW: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10

To: -d‘-googlc.com _c})googlc.com>

FYl — Please see below.. As [l is sending out of office.

All the best, Timon

From: Timon Oefelein -@_slmgw>

Sent: Monday, October 7, 2024 12:31 PM

To: I SN - - o <.com>; Stavroula Kousta G nature.com>
Cc: I B~ oozl e.com>; Annika Dirks S springer.com>; Constantin Gissler

doteurope.eu>

Subject: RE: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10
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Your email was forwarded to me. I'm the event organizer, our side. Thanks so much for letting us know that [l can't
join after all, and thank you also for offering an alternative. After giving the matter the most careful consideration we
have jointly agreed with our co-organizers at the EU Council, to decline the offer for DOT Europe to join the panel. It's
very last minute and honestly, we have always said that we want a panel speaker directly from a company in the
industry — that adds a lot of value to the panel.. Therefore, | did want to check in with you again, is there any chance at
all that somebody from Google could join us on the panel? It’s really not too late and we’d be super thrilled to have
somebody from Google join us. In case that’s not possible, we do of course do understand..

All good wishes,

Timon

Timon Oefelein

Head of Academic Affairs, Northern and Central Europe

Springer Nature

Heidelberger Platz 3, 14197 Berlin, Germany
T

M +

B ©s)ringernature.com

springernature.com/group

Springer Nature AG & Co. KGaA

Registered Office: Berlin / Amtsgericht Berlin-Charlottenburg, HRB 195463 B

General Partner: Springer Nature Management AG

Registered Office: Berlin/Amtsgericht Berlin-Charlottenburg, HRB 188032 B

Management Board: Franciscus Vrancken Peeters (chairman), Marc Spenlé, Alexandra Dambeck,

Rachel Jacobs, Harsh Jegadeesan, Carolyn Honour
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Chairman of the Supervisory Board: Dr. Stefan von Holtzbrinck

From: I - 0 oc | c.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 2, 2024 6:41 PM

To: Stavroula Kousta nature.com>
Cc: I A 0 0: c.com>; Timon Oefelein = soringer.com>; Annika Dirks
M Crincer.com>; Constantin Gissler <JN@ doteurope.eu>

Subject: Re: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10

Dear Stavroula, Thank you for your email. Unfortunately, due to unforeseen circumstances, [JJJJlj will no longer be able
to participate in the panel. However, Constantin Gissler, Director General of DOT Europe (copied here), could be a
potential replacement. DOT Europe is a signatory of the EU Code of Practice on Disinformation, and Constantin would be
happy to contribute to the discussion. Kind regards,

On Tue, Oct 1. 2024 at 4:46 PM Stavroula Kousta <—@w> wrote:
Dear N

Just a quick note to follow up on my earlier messages. We will be delighted if you are able to join us in [N stcad
and look forward to your participation. As the date of the event is approaching fast, we are anxious to finalize the list of
speakers (so that the programme can be finalized and our EU partners can circulate it among potential attendees). I would
be most grateful if you were able to confirm your participation at your earliest convenience, indicating also a day and
time you would be available this week for a very brief, pre-event conversation.

(I | would be very grateful if you could confirm that B :iail address is correct above, just in case my

messages are not reaching him).

Many thanks in advance and best wishes,

Stavroula
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Stavroula Kousta, PhD
Chief Editor, Nature Human Behaviour
Nature Portfolio

ORCID: I

My pronouns: she/her

I'work flexible hours, so if this email arrives in your inbox out of hours, I don't expect you to read, action, or reply (o it
outside of your working hours.

From: Stavroula Kousta [ 2ture.com>

Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2024 12:55 PM

To: I A oo o.com>; [ B = oo¢le.com>
Cc: Timon Oefelein [N soringer.com>; Annika Dirks <[INEEB@ springer.com>

Subject: Re: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10

Dear

Many thanks for letting us know - I am sorry you will not be able to join us on the day, but we are grateful for the
alternative suggestion.

Dear I

We will be delighted to have you join us for this panel discussion. Many thanks in advance for your participation.

I have attached to this message an information leaflet about the event. Please do let me know if any further information
would be useful at this point. As I explained to [l in my message below, it is extremely useful to have a brief
conversation ahead of the event so that [ can better coordinate the discussion (and also identify the most cohesive order
or opening statements). I was wondering whether you would be available next week for a brief conversation?

Many thanks in advance and | look forward to hearing from you.
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Best wishes,

Stavroula

Stavroula Kousta, PhD

Chief Editor, Nature Human Behaviour

From: I N - ooc e com>

Sent: Monday, September 23, 2024 20:48

To: Stavroula Kousta <G nature.com>; [N - - ooz c.com>
Cc: Timon Oefelein R @ soringer.com>; Annika Dirks <}l soringer.com>

Subject: Re: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10

Hello

As i will not be in Brussels, my colleaguc | GGz il replace me

Thanks

On Mon, Sep 23, 2024, 20:50 Stavroula Kousta </ R ) ature.com> wrote:
Dear N

Thank you very much once again for agreeing to participate in the panel event on disinformation and elections, taking
place in Brussels on October 10", I will be moderating the panel discussion and look very much forward to meeting you
and to your contribution on the day.

| have attached the information leaflet for the event. As a reminder, cach panellist will be making a brief “opening
statement’ on the topic (5-8 minutes), followed by questions by myself and the audience.
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Based on my prior experience with moderating panels, discussions tend to be more productive and flow much more
smoothly if we have the opportunity to meet and discuss briefly ahead of the event. These brief discussions also help me
determine the best order of opening statements. With this in mind, I was wondering whether you could spare no more
than 15-20 minutes for a brief conversation next week (i.e., the week of Sep 30th). If you could let me know your
availability during the week of Sep 30th. [ will arrange a slot for us. If you would prefer to have this brief conversation
this week instead, that would also be possible.

Many thanks in advance and best wishes,

Stavroula

Stavroula Kousta, PhD
Chief Editor, Nature Human Behaviour

Nature Portfolio

OrCID: I

My pronouns: she/her

I'work flexible hours, so if this email arrives in your inbox out of hours, I don't expect you to read, action, or reply to it
outside of your working hours.

From: O'DWYER Mick —ﬁlconsilium.europa.eu>
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2024 12:41 PM
To: I ) cooglc.com; G cxcter.ac.uk ; [N ©)thomsonreuters.com; wifes.org;

@vub.be; Kate Shea Il nature.com>; Stavroula Kousta <\ nature.com>
Cc: VON POLENZ Beatrix <|}lGEEEE consilium.curopa.cu>; GONZALEZ SOLAR Llarina

HEEE ) consilium.curopa.cu>; Council Library (COMM 2C) Bl @consilium.europa.cu>; Timon
Oefelein yspringer.com>; Annika Dirks {@springer.com>

Subject: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - introduction message

Dear colleagues,

I hope this message finds you well.

My name is Mick O'Dwyer and | am a librarian in the Council of the European Union. 1 contacting you in
relation to the upcoming joint event being organised by the Council Library, Springer Nature and its
journal Nature Human Behaviour.
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We are delighted that you all agreed to participate as a panelist and | am messaging to say hello and provide
some basic information on the event. Our event with Springer Nature last vear was one of the most well
received events we organised in the library in the Council. This year looks set to be even better!

e Topic: Disinformation : how new communication technologies are influencing elections and the
information landscape

e Date: October 10, 2024 (Panel discussion: 13:00 — 14:30)

e Location: JL Press Room, Council of the European Union Brussels, Belgium

¢ Audience: Policy officers and other staff of the Council staff (plus some colleagues from the Parliament and
Commission) and delegates from the EU 27 Permanent Representations
to the EU

The goal of the pancl discussion is to offer cutting edge insights into this topic to policy officers and other
staff in the Council of the European Union by lcading experts in industry, academia, and civil socicty.

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
ID card number to enter the building. Please send this to me ASAP and 1 can register you on the system™ This will
speed up the process for when you visit on October 10.

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

JL 02 46.GH 20
Rue de la Loi/Wetstraat 175 - 1048 Bruxelles/Brussel - Belgique/Belgié
I onsilium.curopa.cu | www.consilium.curopa.cu

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

JL 02 40 GH 20
Rue de la Loi/Wetstraat 175 - 048 Bruxelles'Brussel - Belgique/Belgié
I < consilium.curopa.eu | www.consilium.europa.cu
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From: Timon Oefelein I @ springer.com]

Sent: 10/8/2024 8:58:48 AM
To: I B coocle.com); Stavroula Kousta |GG nature.com); @ google.com
cC I -0 0clc.com); Annika Dirks IINEEEE @springer.com]; Constantin Gissler
B @ doteurope.eul
Subject: RE: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10
Hi again,

| just wanted to add in case you didn’t already know: the panel will not be recorded, there is no streaming, no
press/publicity, etc.. It’s a totally closed event. We’ve had reps of other major global social media platforms join past
panels and never had any issues. In fact, they all enjoyed the discussions and insights and networking.. | am therefore
really confident you too would enjoy the event. And of course, we all (audience and other panelists) would love for
Google to join the session.. Also, you’d be most welcome to join us for dinner on the event day.

All the best from Berlin,

Timon

Timon Oefelein
Head of Academic Affairs, Northern and Central Europe

Springer Nature

Heidelberger Platz 3, 14197 Rerlin, Germany

T

v

B <ingernature.com

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

From: Timon Oefelein I @springer.com>
Sent: Monday, October 7, 2024 12:31 PM

To: GG - o o /<. com>; Stavroula Kousta </EEEEG nature.com>
_-google com>; Annika Dirks <}l @springer.com>; Constantin Gissler
”doteurope eu>

Subject: RE: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10

Dear-
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Your email was forwarded to me. I’'m the event organizer, our side. Thanks so much for letting us know that [l can’t
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
7 -

v -

B Gs)ringernature.com

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

Management Board: Franciscus Vrancken Peeters (chairman), Mare Spenlé, Alexandra Dambeck,
Rachel Jacobs, Harsh Jegadeesan, Carolyn Honour

Chairman of the Supervisory Board: Dr. Stefan von Holtzbrinck

From: [ N ©cooc/c.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 2, 2024 6:41 PM

To: Stavroula Kousta <} @ nature.com>
Cc: I A - coocle.com>; Timon Oefelein [N springer.com>; Annika Dirks
< ;o1 inger.com>; Constantin Gissler [N dote urope. eu>

Subject: Re: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10

Dear Stavroula, Thank you for your email. Unfortunately, due to unforeseen circumstances, [l will no longer be able to
participate in the panel. However, Constantin Gissler, Director General of DOT Europe (copied here), could be a potential
replacement. DOT Europe is a signatory of the EU Code of Practice on Disinformation, and Constantin would be happy to
contribute to the discussion. Kind regards,

Karen

On Tue, Oct 1, 2024 at 4:46 PM Stavroula Kousta <llIlINNGEGEGEGEE- 2 turs.com> wrote:

Dear -

1770
HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-00000668



Just a quick note to follow up on my earlier messages. We will be delighted if you are able to joinus in Karen’s
stead and look forward to your participation. As the date of the event is approaching fast, we are anxious to
finalize the list of speakers (so that the programme can be finalized and our EU partners can circulate itamong
potential attendees). | would be most grateful if you were able to confirm your participation at your earliest
convenience, indicating also a day and time you would be available this week for a very brief, pre-event
conversation.

(I - | would be very grateful if you could confirm that [l email address is correct above, justin case my
messages are not reaching him).

Many thanks in advance and best wishes,

Stavroula

Stavroula Kousta, PhD
Chief Editor, Nature Human Behaviour
Nature Portfolio

ORCID: I

My pronouns: she/her

| work flexible hours, so if this email arrives in your inbox out of hours, | don't expect you to read, action, or reply to
it outside of your working hours.

From: Stavroula Kousta IR - ture.com>

Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2024 12:55 PM
To: NG S oo c.com>; I N ooz lc.com>
Cc: Timon Oefelein <A soringer.com>; Annika Dirks <N @soringer.com>

Subject: Re: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10

Dear I

1771
HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-00000669



Many thanks for letting us know - | am sorry you will not be able to join us on the day, but we are grateful for the
alternative suggestion.

Dear I

We will be delighted to have you join us for this panel discussion. Many thanks in advance for your participation.

| have attached to this message an information leaflet about the event. Please do let me know if any further
information would be useful at this point. As | explained to [l in my message below, it is extremely useful to
have a brief conversation ahead of the event so that | can better coordinate the discussion (and also identify the
most cohesive order or opening statements). | was wondering whether you would be available next week for a
brief conversation?

Many thanks in advance and | look forward to hearing from you.
Best wishes,
Stavroula

Stavroula Kousta, PhD

Chief Editor, Nature Human Behaviour

From: I T - - oo - o>

Sent: Monday, September 23, 2024 20:48

To: Stavroula Kousta < nature.com>; [N 8- coosle.com>
Cc: Timon Oefelein < soringer.com>; Annika Dirks <5 @soringer.com>

Subject: Re: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - Brussels, Oct 10

Hello

As i will not be in Brussels, my colleague | ] ] i\ replace me
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Thanks

On Mon, Sep 23, 2024, 20:50 Stavroula Kousta <}lIlIININNNNIIE ) n 2 t ure.com > wrote:

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
mare smoothly if we have the opportunity to meet and discuss briefly anead of the event. These brief
discussions also help me determine the best arder of opening statements. With this in mind, | was wondering
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

ORCID: 0000- G

My pronouns: she/her
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| work flexible hours, so if this email arrives in your inbox out of hours, | don't expect you to read, action, or reply
to it outside of your working hours.

From: O'DWYER Mick I ©@consilium.europa.eu>

Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2024 12:41 PM

To: oogle.com; [l @exeter.ac.uk; G tho nsonreuters.com;

B Gies.org; G/ b .be; Kate Shea S nature.com>; Stavroula Kousta
I o tu re.com>

Cc: VON POLENZ Beatrix </ - consilium.europa.eu>; GONZALEZ SOLAR Llarina
I <> onsilium.europa.eu>; Council Library (COMM 2C) Il @consilium.europa.eu>; Timon
Oefelein I ©soringer.com>; Annika Dirks <}555lljlllEEll @ springer.com>

Subject: Council of the European Union/Springer Nature event - introduction message

Dearcolleagues,
1 hope this message finds you well.
My name is Mick O’'Dwyer and [ am a librarian in the Council of the European Union. I contacting you in

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

¢ Date: October 10, 2024 (Panel discussion: 13:00 - 14:30)

¢ Location: JL Press Room, Council of the European Union Brussels, Belgium

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
informed Q& A with the audience. The panel discussion will be followed by a small networking reception,

providing opportunity for further interaction with attendees.

| have attached the abstract for the event.
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
the system™ This will speed up the process for when you visiton October 10.

We will arrange a follow up meeting in September. Please let us know if you have any questions prior to that.
With kind regards, and have a nice summer.

Mick

Mick O'Dwyer

Librarian

Ceneral Secretariat of the Council / Secrétariat Général du Conseil
Communication and Information/ Communication et Information
Information and Public Activites / Informations et Activités publiques
Council Library / Bibliotheque du Conseil

JLO24C CGH 20
Rue de |a Loi/Wetstraat 175 - 1048 Bruxelles/Brussel - RBelgigue/Belgie

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

JLO240GH 20
Rue de la Loi/Wetstraat 175 - 1048 Bruxelles/Brussel - Belgique/Belgié

I G consilium.europa.eu | www.consilium.europa.eu
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SPRINGER NATURE %“ Council of the European Union

General Secretariat

Panel discussion event

“Disinformation : how new communication technologies are influencing elections and the
information landscape”

Title: Disinformation: how new communication technologies are
influencing elections and the information landscape

Co-organised by: Springer Nature and the Council Library, with the support of ORG.1,
EU Consilium

Audience: Internal event open to staff members from GSC, Permanent
Representations and EU institutions

Moderated by: Editor in Chief, Nature Human Behaviour, Stavroula Kousta
Overall objective: Provide a range of views and insight from experts across this field

Date: 10 October 2024, JL press room (capacity 320), followed by a networking
opportunity

Background:

2024 is a pivotal year, with over 40 national elections scheduled. Countries including the US, UK,
India, Brazil, and EU member states (Finland, France, Portugal, Slovakia, Belgium, Croatia, Austria,
Lithuania and Romania) are heading to the polls. Notably, the EU Parliament elections took place on

6-9 June this year.

These elections will directly influence our global response to pressing issues such as climate change,
trade wars, mass migration, geopolitical tensions, and crime.

Given the stakes, it is crucial for countries to monitor their online environments to ensure elections
are free from interference and manipulation. Existing — but limited — evidence suggests that
misinformation may have thus far had a more limited impact on political behaviour than initially
feared. However, new Al-driven disinformation tools have become increasingly accessible and
affordable, posing a threat to democracy.

The rise of (political) bots and computational propaganda involves the “use of algorithms,
automation, and human curation to purposefully distribute misleading information over social media
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From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu]

Sent: 12/4/2024 4:42:36 PM
To: i Redacted disinformationindex.org]; Redacted igoogle. com],~ Re
Redacted idemagog.org.pl]; Redacted 2fidu.it];i Redacted
E'EEHEEEEG'sactlvefence com} Redacted rsf.org]; Redacted fidu.it} Redacted !
i Redacted _ ‘feedback.org]; Redacted lessurligneurs.eu];;  Redacted
0 ec.europa. eu); Redacted ;TnkTok) [ "Redacted itiktok.com]i = Redacted |
redacwd Daiforensics.orgl;i Redacted isoogle.com) Redacted igoogle.com]; Redacted :
i Redacted i@ legitimate.net];! Redacted imaldita.es]; Redacted tiktok.com];
i Redacted imicrosoft.com]; Redacted google. com], E Redgg_t_e__dﬂm_'j
i Redacted lessurligneurs.euli Redacted inewsguardtech.com}_ Redacted |

“idisinformationindex.org]; Redacted leaca.eu];i__ Redacted |
emocracy-reporting.org]: Redacted ‘doubleverify. com],L Redacted i(Resolver)

r “resolver.com];! Redacted disinformationindex. org],; Redacted i
B vefence.com];i Redacted iglobsec.org]; i Redacted ieui. eu]iRe_dact_edj
" ""Redacted ___Hfunky.ongk Redacted fidu.it]s Redacted doteurope. édj: ''''
Redacted ifeedback.org]; Redacted iabeurope.euls Redacted :
Redacted ®@alliancedeurope.cu]; Redacted |
Iegmmate net; Redacted @ec.europa.eu];i Redacted Drsf.org);
i Redacted newsguardtech.com] Redacted llinkedin.com];
P Redacted __ ieeas.europa,.eul Redacted . idoteurope.eu];i Redacted :
i Redacted democracy-reporting.orgl;; Redacted {Resolver)
Redacted liabeurope.eul Redacted inewtral.es];

Redacted aeun eu];i Redacted

Redacted iLogically)
i Redacted -Ioglcallv a:]‘ Redacted iglobsec, org]i Redacted ffaktograf.hr; 153‘:5:3-
Redacted ®valid.tech]; Redacted vimeo.com]: Redacted {Ebiquity) "'ﬁ"edéi&'iéd"'-eblquxty com];
Redacted vosteurope.org]; Redacted igoogle.com]; Redacted !
| __Redacted _vosteurope.orgl;i Redacted {Google} Redacted google.com];! Redacted iarcom.fr;i | Redacted |

Redacted Bglobsec.orgl! Redacted aiforensics.org]; Redacted |

I """Redacted __demagog.org. pl} Redacted Bec.europa. eul;i Redacted :

L Redacted leui.eu];;  Redacted eeas.europa.eu;i  Redacted _ leeas.europa. eu, Redacted |

i Redacted @ @fb. com]: Redacted ieui.euli Redacted \vimeo.com]; Redacted | i

Redacted leui.euli Redacted @logicallyfacts.com]; Redacted avaaz.org) Redacted
Redacted bflrma seznam.cz]; Redacted igoogle.com]; Redacted @Daiforensics.org);

i Reda cted iafp.com];i Redacted inewtral.es];: Redacted i
Redacted ita.es]i Redacted fb.com]; Redacted

| Redacted linkedin.com];  Redacted  leeas.europa. eu, Redacted~
Redacted ‘democracy- reporting.org];i Redacted ich-c.eul;i Redacted J'google com];

Redacted google com] Redacted leaca.eu] i Redacted g
Redacted iavaaz. org]; Redacted AB) Redacted Biabeurope. eu)i Redacted justin.tv];i Redacted |

‘""Redacted flliancedeurope.euf Redacted firma.seznam.cz;i Redacted Deui.eu];
Redacted demagog.org.pl]i Redacted INCRTV/ERGA)
Redacted  liag.gr]; ____Redacted ffirma.seznam.cz]; Redacted érsf.org]’

Redacted :@activefence com]; _ Redacted  iResolver) [} Redacted resolver.com} Redacted |

] Redacted disinformationindex. org,] oo Redacted rgoogle. com] Redacted '
; Redacted ‘aiforensics. org]4 Redacted @whotargets me]

;'__‘______,qug,t_:.t_gq ________________ jogacally ar] Redacted [Active Fence)‘

: Redacted tiktok.com]; Redacted irvr. sk] Redacted ;
 Redacted 'adobe.com]; Redacted efcsncom];  Redacted |

' Redacted .doubleverify.com]i Redacted .e@as euro;:;aeu] ------ Redacted ------ '
Redacted ieaca.eul; Redacted i }

Redacted 'mrcrosott com]‘ Redacted : PageHaPolltica- Redacted -pagellapohtica lt],_

Redacted .alllancetleurope.eu};' Redacted

'Redacled'mdldlta esj Redacted -debunk org]
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i Redacted llessurligneurs.eul; Redacted ?newsguardtech.com]i Redacted

i Redacted Jec.europa.eul;! Redacted lec.europa.eu;: Redacted
Redacted i@ec.europa.eul: Redacted iec.europa.eul! Redacted 2
1 Redacted Dec.europa.eul: Redacted Dec.europa.eu]; Redacted |
"""Redacted __ec.europa.eul;: Redacted ec.europa.eu]; Redacted
Redacted Dec.europa.eul;: Redacted iec.europa.eu]; Redacted :
Redacted @ec.europa.eu];i Redacted Sec.europa.eul; Redacted P
Redacted Dec.europa.eul; Redacted iec.europa.euli Redacted |

Subject: Plenary Meeting of the Task-Force of the Code of Practice on Disinformation on the Code’s conversion
Location: https://ecconf.webex.com/ecconf/j.php?MTID=md573260019caeedefa88cflafdal2ac3

Start: 12/13/2024 2:30:00 PM

End: 12/13/2024 4:00:00 PM

Show Time As: Tentative

Recurrence:  (hohe)

Dear CoP Signatories,

We would like to invite you to the next Plenary Meeting of the Task-Force of the Code of Practice on Disinformation on

.................

the Code’s conversion taking place on Friday 13 December 2024 from 15:30 to 17:00 (CET) in the presence of§ RedactedE

..................

The aim of the meeting is to discuss next steps regarding the Code’s conversion into the Code of Conduct under the
DSA including the timeline for final subscription documents.

We look forward to your participation!

In the meantime, please don’t hesitate to reach out to us in case of any questions, comments or concerns.
Best regards,

The CoP team

Technical details:

Meeting link httns://

Meeting number (access code): || V'cetire password: || T < dialing from a

phone)

Mobile device (attendees only) +|| | Gz

When dialling in, please make sure to respect the following rules:

1. indicate your full name and organisation so that you can be identified and allowed in the virtual room.

2. mute your microphone during the entire event, except when you are presenting. To ask a question, use the hand sign
to request the fioor.
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From: COP Rapid Response System [cop-rrs-elections@tiktok.com]

Sent: 12/12/2024 12:31:18 PM

To: Redacted funky.ong]

CC: { Redacted iec.europa.eu];i Redacted gate-ai.eu);i Redacted funky.ong];
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; i Redacted Vosteurope.orgl;i  Redacted
[ Redacted itiktok.com]; i Redacted itiktok.com]

Subject: Re: [External] RRS Romania

Hifoosced]

Thanks for your email.

We would like to follow up on the RRS report received 9.12.2024. We are happy to discuss this during our next sub-group

meeting.

e 65 links received referring to 64 TikTok unique video/photo posts (1 iink 1f from Facebook platform); Among the 64
video/photo posts reported:
o 45 videos/photo posts in violation of Misinformation and Bullving policies.
o 18 videos/photo posts were already removed by TikTok or permanently deleted by the user by the time they reached us

We are also happy to bring to your attention two blogposts recently shared, including Continuing to protect the mtegrity of
TikTok during Romanian clections and How TikTok counters deceptive behaviour.

Thanks,
TikTok T&S Team
From: i Redacted ifunky.ong>

Date: Mon, Dec 9, 2024, 15:26

Subject: [External] RRS Romania

To: <cop-rrs-clections{@tiktok.com>

Ce:i Redacted iec.curopa.cu>, ! Redacted
Redacted funky.ong>, "cnect-cop-task-force@ec.curopa.cu"<CNECT-COP-TASK-
FORCE@ec.curopa.cu>, < Redacted _idemocracy-reporting.org>, Redacted {@)democracy-
reporting.org"<t Redacted :democracy-reporting.org™, T i

E_Redacted {@vosteurope.org"  Redacted _ }vosteurope.org:>,

" Redacted _‘alliancedeurope.cu™ Redacted  ialliancedeurope.cu>

Good evening,

We continue to see false narratives that link the cancel of elections to war narratives in Romania. Please find
enclosed the flags that appeared in our narratives:
Report Tik Tok 09.12.xlsx - Google Sheets

Also, kindly note that we think that the following account is not marked as being of a
politician: https://www tiktok.com/@calin.georgescu.real? t=8s4jim5GrOY& r=1

Thank you,

Redacted
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From: CNECT-COP-TASK-{ Redacted iec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-{ Redacted jec.europa.eu]
Sent: 12/16/2024 10:45:42 AM
To: i Redacted disinformationindex.org]; 4 Redacted igoogle.com];f:ﬁggéféa-j
Redacted idemagog.org.pl]; Redacted fidu.it]; { Redacted |
Redacted irsf.org); Redacted fidu.it]]  Redacted i
Redacted lessurligneurs.euf Redacted i
{ lec.europa.eul;i Redacted ttiktok.com];i Redacted i
Redacted Redacted
Redacted Redacted __itiktok.com];

newsguardtech.com

i Redacted imicrosoft.com] ,:

i Redacted 5Iessuriigneurs.eu];€; Redacted !
[ “idisinformationindex.orgl; | Redacted  &... Redacted
[Redacted _democracy-reporting.orgl;{ _Redacted | Redacted

i |

resolver.com];i

Redacted

jeaca.eul;

‘doubleverify.com];
Redacted { ___Redacted __disinformationindex.org];

Redacted i

Redacted

activefence.com];i” " "Redacted  |...Redacted __iglobsec.org];i Redacted leui.eul; Redacledl
"""" “ifunky.ong); ¥ Redacted fidu.itf Redacted doteurope.eul;
edacted ifeedback.org]i Redacted iabeurope.eul;i Redacted i
‘wfanet.org];i Redacted alliance4europe.eu);; Redacted i
| Redacted 1@ legitimate.net]; | Redacted i@ec.europa.eul;! ' Redacted @rsf.org];
H Redacted i inewsguardtech.com);i Redacted inkedin.com];
[T Redacted ieeas.europa.eu;] Redacted idoteurope.eu];i  Redacted |
¥ Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org]; Redacted i
iresolver.com]; i Redacted iiabeurope.eul;{ Redacted inewtral.es];
Redacted newsguardtech.com]; Redacted
[[ Redacted “vosteurope.org];! Redacted
““Wimeo.com]; § Redacted ithebrightapp.com]i Redacted |
[i{Regacted logically.ail; | Redacted globsec.org]; | Redacted ]
i Redacted {jens@valid.tech]; Redacted ivimeo.com]; i Redacted iebiquity.com];
Redacted iosteurope.org];i

Redacted

iglobsec.org]; !

Redacted idemagog.org.pl];:!

Redacted

d @eeas.europa.eu;!” Redacted  leeas.europa.eu;

Redacted

fb.com);i

......................... 5
L F—

Redacted

| SO gl ) TR -
vimeo.com];:

Redacted

leui.eu];: Redacted |

i Redacted dogicallyfacts.com];i Redacted iavaaz.orgl; Redacted @firma.seznam.cz);
i Redacted igoogle.com];i Redacted @aiforensics.org];i Redacted |

i Redacted i@afp.com];{ Redacted newtral.esl;i Redacted !

g ‘maldita.es);i Redacted ifb.com];! Redacted

[[TRedacted __imicrosoft.com]; i Redacted Elinkedin.zzom];; ________ Redacted ___ie€as.europa.eu; fRedacted|
: Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org]; i Redacted ch-ceul; { Redacted igoogle.com];

i Redacted igoogle.com]; K Redacted leaca.eu];i Redacted ;

I ] Redacted liabeurope.eu]; ¢ Redacted justin.tv];i Redacted |

i “Redacted ialliancedeurope.eul;i Redacted ffirma.seznam.cz]; & Redacted leui.eu];

F Redacted demagog.org.pll;t Redacted -

[ Redacted  Hag.prl;i Redacted firma.seznam.cz;  Redacted |
{"""Redacted @activefence.coml;§ Redacted 77T iresolver.com]; i

¥ Redacted ‘@disinformationindex.org]; [ Redacted igoogle.com];i Redacted :
[ Redacted aiforensics.orgl;i” Redacted _@whotargets.me]; i Redacted alliancedeurope.eul;
i Redacted logically.ail;! Redacted ‘Redacted iactivefence.com];i

Redacted TTTitiktok.com] T i -

i iadobe.com); i Redacted
[ Redacted doubleverify.com]; !
............... Redacted i
_Redacted
Redacted
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: Redacted ilessurligneurs.eul; | Redacted i

[ Redacted inewsguardtech.com]; Redacted @ec.europa.eu]
Ce: P Redacted __iec.europa.eu]; Redacted Dec.europa.eul;
i Redacted i@ec.europa.eu]; Redacted lec.europa.eul; i Redacted |
Redacted iec.europa.eu;i Redacted @ec.europa.eg_},;‘é Redacted
[ Redacted iec.europa.eul; | Redacted iec.europa.eu);: "Redacted
i  Redacted  @ec.europa.eul;i Redacted @ec.europa.eu];i Redacted

cted lec.europa.eul; Redacted @ec.europa.eu); { Redacted
“@ec.europa.eul; Redacted @ec.europa.eu]
Subject: Plenary Meeting of the Task-Force of the Code of Practice on Disinformation on the Code’s conversion
Attachments: Webex_meeting.ics
Location: Webex
Start: 12/19/2024 2:30:00 PM
End: 12/19/2024 4:00:00 PM

Show Time As: Tentative

Recurrence: (none)

Dear CoP Signatories,

We would like to invite you to the next Plenary Meeting of the Task-Force of the Code of Practice on Disinformation on
the Code’s conversion taking place on Thursday, 19 December 2024 from 15:30 to 17:00 (CET).

The purpose of the meeting is to conclude the discussion on the draft subscription documents and to discuss the next
steps regarding the conversion of the Code into the Code of Conduct under the DSA.

Please find Webex connection details below and attached. When dialling in, please indicate your full name and
organisation so that you can be identified and allowed in the virtual room.

in the meantime, please don’t hesitate to reach out to us in case of any questions, comments or concerns.
We look forward to your participation.
Best regards,

iRedsctedifor the CoP team

DG CONNECT CNECT.1.4 is inviting you to a scheduled Webex meeting.
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More ways to join:

Join from the meeting link

nttps:/
—

Join by meeting number

Meeting number (access code): ||| GG
Meeting password: ||| | |G TR < diaing from a phone)

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only)
A  5<iurn Tol
N . uxerbourg Tol

Some mobile devices may ask atlendees to enter a numeric password.

Join by phone

S /o o
I .. <cmbourg Toll

Global call-in numbers

Join from a video system or application

Dial G ccconf webexcom

You can also dial [ 2-¢ enter your meeting number.
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Need help? Go to htips://heip.webex.com
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From: COP Rapid Response System [cop-rrs-elections@tiktok.com]

Sent: 12/19/2024 10:28:07 PM

To: Redacted funky.ong]

CC: i Redacted iec.europa.eu]; | Redacted igate-ai.eul;i Redacted funky.ong];
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu;i  Redacted _ vosteurope.org;! Redacted ;
15 Redacted itiktok.com];i Redacted itiktok.com]

Subject: Re: [External] RRS Romania

Hi{Redacted

Thanks for your email.

We would like to follow up on the RRS report received on 16.12.2024.
e 28 links received referring to 28 TikTok unique video/photo posts; Among the 28 video/photo posts reported:
o 24 videos/photo posts were in violation of our Misinformation, Violent and Crininal Behavior, Civic and Blection
ftegrity and Haie speech policies.

Kind regards,
TikTok T&S Tcam
From: | Redacted funky.ong>

Date: Mon, Dec 16, 2024, 07:12

Subject: [External] RRS Romania

To: <cop-rrs-elections(@tiktok.com>

Ce: | Redacted lec.europa.eu>, | Redacted lgate-ai.eu>, Redacted!
; Redacted ’funky ong>, "cnect- -cop- -task- forw(&‘m curopa. cu"<CNECT COP TASK-

Redacted
' Redacted §alliance4europe.eu‘§ Redacted @) alhance4europe.eu>

Good morning,

Please find some flags we would like to bring to your attention: Report 16.12 TikTok.xIsx - Google Sheets

Kind regards,

Redacted

e ————

R ety

Funk) szens
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From: COP Rapid Response System [cop-rrs-elections@tiktok.com]

Sent: 12/19/2024 10:24:02 PM

To: i Redacted funky.ong]

CC: Redacted Redacted gate-ai.eul;! Redacted ifunky.ong];
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu;]  Redacted _ vosteurope.org;i  Redacted |
[ Redacted itiktok.com]; Redacted itiktok.com]

Subject: Re: [External] RRS Romania

Hi| Redacted!

Thanks for your email.

We would like to follow up on the RRS report received 13.12.2024.
e 38 links received referring to 38 TikTok unique video/photo posts; Among the 38 video/photo reported:
o 23 videos/photo posts were in violation of our Misinformation, Violent and Criminal Behavior and Civie and Election
ftegrity policies.
o Access to 7 videos/photos was blocked in Romania for violating local law.

Thanks,
TikTok T&S Team
From: " Redacted funky.ong>

Date: Fri, Dec 13, 2024, 11:11

Subject: [External] RRS Romania

To: <cop-rrs-elections(@tiktok.com>

Ce: Redacted lec.europa.ew>, | Redacted loate-ai.eu>, |Redacted!
! Redacted funky.ong>, "cnect-cop-task-force@ec.curopa.cu"<CNECT-COP-TASK-

Redacted vosteurope.org”<i  Redacted  vosteurope.org>,
{"Redacted _ alliancedeurope.cu’! Redacted i@alliancedeurope.cu>

Good morning,

Unfortunately, it does seem that there is a starting narrative that incites especially the Romanian diaspora that
come home for the holidays to go do a "revolution™ because of the elections being annuled. For context, please
note that the Romanian revolution started in 15 December 1989 and culminated with 22 December. We see
several references to this, as well as sometimes people dressed in military apparel.

The flags are here and we put in red the most troubling ones: Report_TikTok 13.12.xlsx - Google Sheets

Thank you,

Redacted

Funky Citizens
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From: COP Rapid Response System [cop-rrs-elections@tiktok.com]

Sent: 12/20/2024 6:33:08 PM

To: Redacted funky.ong]

CC: i Redacted i@ec. europa eul; Redacted gate-ai.eu);: Redacted ifunky.ong];
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Redacted @vosteurope.orgl;i  Redacted |
i Redacted Btiktok.com]; € Redacted @tiktok.com]

Subject: Re: [External] RRS Romania

Hi{ Redastes)

............

As per our conversation during the last meeting, we would like to follow up on the RRS report received on 3.12.2024.

e On top of previously communicated community guidelines violations, access to 1 video was blocked in Romania for violating
local law.

Kind Regards,
TikTok T&S Team

From: "COP Rapid Response System"<cop-trs-elections(@tiktok.com>
Date: Thu, Dec 12, 2024, 13:28
Subject: Re: [External] RRS Romania

To: b Redacted funkv.one>
Ce: ™ Redacted iec.europa.eu>, | Redacted igate-ai.cu>, '_Ei‘,’_.a.ﬁtff.'
i Redacted ifunky.ong>, "cnect-cop-task-force(@ec.curopa.cu"<CNECT-COP-TASK-
FORCE@ec.europa.eu>, | Redacted ivosteurope.org>,! Redacted |

i Redacted tiktok.com=>, ! Redacted fiktok.com>

HifRedacted!

Thanks for your email.

We would like to follow up on the RRS report received on 8.12.2024. We are happy to discuss this during our next sub-group
meeting.

e 37 links received referring to 35 unique video/photo posts (2 duplicates); Among the 35 video/photo posts reported:
o 32 videos/photo posts in violation of Hate specch, Misinformation, Civic and Election Integrity policies.
o | videos/photo posts were already removed by TikTok or permanently deleted by the user by the time they reached us

We are also happy to bring to your attention two blogposts recently shared, including Continuing to protect the integrity of
FikTok during Romanian elections and How TikTok counters deceptive behaviour.

Thanks,
TikTok T&S Team
From: Redacted ifunky.ong>

Date: Sun, Dec 8, 2024, 17:04

Subject: [External] RRS Romania

To: <cop-rrs-clections{@tiktok.com™>

Ceit Redacted {@Wec.curopa.cu>, | Redacted Joate-ai.cus>, | Redacted!
i "Redacted ifunkv.on,q‘: "“nc.ct wp -task- foru.(a)eu europa Lu" <CNECT- COP TASK-

....................................................
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! Redacted i@vosteurope.org"<i Redacted  jvosteurope.org>>,
" ___Redacted __lallianced4curope.cu™  Redacted  alliancedecurope.cu>

Good evening,
Please see in the spreadsheet some flags identified by my colleagues on their elections monitoring in RO:

Report 08.12.xlsx - Google Sheets

Please note that we will be sending another batch of flags in the coming day because we see an increase in posts
related to the annulment of the elections.

Also, please kindly note a very specific rise in disinformation and misinformation related to war being
started or mobilization for war. In our view, a particular attention should be paid to posts with #razboi
getting viral at this point in association to the decision to cancel the elections (the narrative goes that the
elections were canceled because the establishment didn't want candidate Calin Georgescu to

become president because this stops their plans to start war/ draw Romania into a war).

_Thank you,

i Redacted|

| SUEER

'Redacted

Funky Citizens

1798
CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. TT_HJC_004800
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED



Exhibit 186

1799



From: cop Rapid Response System ||| G ti ktok.com)

Sent: 12/20/2024 6:31:13 PM

To: i Redacted funky.ong]

& ol i Redacted lec.europa.eu; Redacted igate-ai.eu]; i Redacted ifunky.ong];
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; i Redacted Mosteurope.orglj Redacted :
H Redacted itiktok.com]; € Redacted itiktok.com]

Subject: Re: [External] RRS Romania

i Redactea

As per our conversation during the last meeting, we would like to follow up on the RRS report received on 1.12.2024 (second
submission).

e On top of previously communicated communiiy guidelines violations, access to further 52 videos/photo posts were blocked in
Romania for violating local law.

Kind Regards,
TikTok T&S Team

From: "COP Rapid Response System’ awtiktok.com>

Date: Thu, Dec 12, 2024, 13:22
Subject: Re: [External] RRS Romania

To: ! Redacted funky.ong>

Ce: Redacted @Wec.curopa.cu>, | Redacted bgate-ai.cu™, | Redacted]
Redacted funky.ong>, "cnect-cop-task-force(@ec.curopa.cu"<CNECT-COP-TASK-
FORCE(@ec.curopa.cu>, ' Redacted bvosteurope.ore=>,i Redacted :

i Redacted tiktok.com™, i Redacted Katiktok.com>

Hi{Redacted]

Thanks for your email.

We would like to follow up on the RRS report received on 2.12.2024, discussed during our sub-group meeting.
e 72 links received referring to 72 video/photo posts; Among the 72 video/photo posts reported:

o 17 videos/photo posts in violation of Hate specch, Misinformation, Civic and Election Integrity policies.

We are also happy to bring to your attention two blogposts recently shared, including Continuing to protect the infegrity of
TikTok during Romanian clections and How TikTok covnters deceptive behaviour,

Thanks,
TikTok T&S Team
From: i Redacted funky.ong>

Date: Mon, Dec 2, 2024, 16:33
Subject: [External] RRS Romania

To: _”Zi'tiktok. com>
Cci ted i{@ec.curopa.cu>, 't Redacted )gate-ai.cu™, Redacted!

Redacted funky.ong>, "cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.cu"<CNECT-COP-TASK-
FORCE(@ec.curopa.cu™>, < Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org™,! Redacted {@democracy-

reporting.org"< Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org™,
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Good evening,

Please sce in the spreadsheet some flags identified by my colleagues on their elections monitoring in RO:

Report Tik Tok 02.12.xlsx - Google Sheets

Thank you,

: Redacted

Funky Citizens

www.funky.ong
Teli....._Redacted ‘

i unky ong
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CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu]

From:
Sent: 1/16/2025 4:48:33 PM
To: | ___Redacted i@disinformationindex.org]; | Redacted igoogle.com]; .
i ceeddw. org; i Redacted idemagog.org.pl]; Redacted ifidu.it]; E:Rudamdg
0 iactivefence.com]; Redacted @rsf.org]; | Redacted fidu.it]; {Redacted;
i Redacted ffeedback.org]; i Redacted lessurligneurs.eu]; i Redacted |
i Redacted jec.europa.eul;i Redacted
""""" i@aiforensics.org]; i Redacted Isoogle.com) [ Redacted | Redacted !
________________ @legitimate.net]; | Redacted imaldita.es]; € itiktok.com];
i Redacted ‘microsoft.com];i Redacted __ google.com]; | > 4. & .4
i Redacted lessurligneurs.eu];i Redacted newsguardtech.comi Redacted
“idisinformationindex.org]; ¢ Redacted ieaca.eu];i  Redacted |
i "Redacted _idemocracy-reporting.org];i Redacted doubleverify.com];i” Redacted |
) “lcrispthinking.com];i Redacted disinformationindex.org]i
activefence.com]; | Redacted globsec.org]; Redacted
[ Redacted “ifunky.ong);! Redacted fidu.it]; | Redacted idoteurope.eu];
i edacted ifeedback.org];{ Redacted iabeurope.eul; Redacted
wfanet.org]; | Redacted alliancedeurope.eul;i Redacted
| Redacted @ legitimate.net]; Redacted @ec.europa.eul;i Redacted @rsf.org];
Redacted inewsguardtech.com);i Redacted inkedin.com];
| ... Redacted ieeas.europa.eu; i Redacted idoteurope.eu];{ " "Redacted
i Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org);: Redacted :
iresolver.com]; { Redacted iabeurope.eu]; Redacted
leui.eul; Redacted wosteurope.org]; Redacted
Redacted iceeddw.org]; i Redacted vimeo.com]
‘thebrightapp.com];i Redacted ®logically.ai]]  Reda
] Redacted faktograf.hrl; [ Redacted valid.tech];{_Redacted_
i Redacted imeo.com];i 7T Redacted iebiquity.com];i Redacted |
osteurope.orgl;i Redacted igoogle.com]; i~
________________________ vosteurope.orgl; £~ Redacted google.com]; IR “"“larcom.fr; | Redacted |
i Redacted globsec.org]; Redacted I"Redacted ifeedback.orgl; Redacted .
[[Redactedfaiforensics.org]; { Redacted idemagog.org.pl]: Redacted ;
Redacted ;@ec.europa.eu};i Redacted @eui.eu];
_____ Redacted @eeas.europa.eu; | Redacted fb.com];i Redacted jeui.eu]i Redacted
{  Redacted “wimeo.com];i Redacted ieui.eul; | Redacted logicallyfacts.com];
i Redacted lavaaz.org]} Redacted @firma.seznam.cz];i Redacted
[ Redacted igoogle.com]; i Redacted iaiforensics.org]; Redacted i@afp.com];
i Redacted inewtral.es]; i Redacted imaldita.es];i  Redacted |
[~ Redacted __ ifb.com];i Redacted imicrosoft.com];i __Redacted |
i Redacted @linkedin.com]; {"Redacted _leeas.europa.eu; R Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org];
i Redacted ich-c.eu]; i Redacted igoogle.com];i Redacted leaca.eu]; {Redacted |
Redacted @avaaz.orgl;| Redacted iabeurope.eu;i Redacted !
Redacted  justin.tv]; { Redacted ialliancedeurope.eu]; !~ Redacted |
Redacted leui.eu); Redacted
i Redacted idemagog.org.pl];: Redacted : __Redacted _ fag.gr]i Redacted |
] Redacted i@activefence.com];
. Redacted
igoogle.com; Redacted
iforensics.orgll  Redacted :@wh:}targets‘me];g ____________________ Redacted ialliancedeurope.eul;
{ Redacted logically.ails Redacted IRedacted_iactivefence.com| Redacted;
B Redacted itiktok.com];i” Redacted rvr.sk]; Redacted i
i Redacted jadobe.com];i Redacted efcsn.com); | Redacted :
[ Redacted doubleverify.com]; Redacted ieaca.eul;: Redacted :
""""""""""""""" imicrosoft.com]i Redackd !
T Redacted | iabeurope.eul Redacted
Redacted !
“"idebunk.org];
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i Redacted jessurligneurs.eu;i Redacted :

] Redacted newsguardtech.com]: Redacted
cc i Redacted lec.europa.eul;i Redacted
i Redacted iec.europa.eul;i Redacted @ec.europa.eul; Redacted !
] Redacted iec.europa.eu]
Subject: Plenary Meeting of the Task-Force of the Code of Practice on Disinformation on the Code’s conversion
Attachments: image001.png; Webex_meeting.ics
Location: Webex
Start: 1/23/2025 1:30:00 PM
End: 1/23/2025 3:00:00 PM

Show Time As: Tentative

Recurrence:  (none)

Dear Members of the Task-force,

We would like to invite you to the next Plenary Meeting of the Task-Force of the Code of Practice on Disinformation
taking place on Thursday, 23 January from 14:30 to 16:00 (CET).

The purpose of the meeting is to discuss the state of play and the way forward on the Code's conversion.

Please find Webex connection details below and attached. When dialling in, please indicate your full name and
organisation so that you can be identified and allowed in the virtual room.

Kind regards,

{Redacted fOr the CoP Disinfo Team

i
i
Limimimimimimad

DG CONNECT CNECT.1.4 is inviting you to a scheduled Webex meeting.

Thursday, January 23, 2025

230 PM | (UTC+01.00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madvid, Paris | 1 bhr 30 ming

More ways to join:
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Join from the meeting link

—
—

Join by meeting number

Meeting number (access code): ||| GG
Meeting password: ||| | N S e cialing from a phone)

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only)

N 55 Tol
Y < bourg Tol

Some mobile devices may ask atiendees 1o enter a numeric password.

Join by phone

I 5<\gium Toll
I . <cmbourg Toll

Global call-in numbers

Join from a video system or application

Dial _@emoniwebex.com

You can aiso dial [ ¢ enter your meeting number.

Need help? Go to hittps://help.webex.com

From: CNECT COP TASK FORCE
Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2025 5:07 PM
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To:; Redacted idisinformationindex.org>;i Redacted igoogle.com>;

Redacted idemagog.org.pl>;
:2 Redacted ghdu.lt>, i Redacted iactivefence.com>; % Redacted irsf.org>;
i Redacied @fidu.it>; | Redacted feedback.org>;{ Redacted |
. & Redacted lec.europa.eu>; Redacted |
Redacted i@tiktok.com>; * Redacted iaiforensics.org>;: R edacted ] '
({__Redacted _igoogle.com)' < " Redacted _igoogle.com>;; Redacted {@legitimate.net>;! Redacted
i Redacted imaldita.es>; ! Redacted itiktok.com>; Redacted i
i icrosoft.com>; ! Redacted ‘google.com>; Redacted
lessurligneurs.eu>;; Redacted inewsguardtech.com>;! Redacted
P i@disinformationindex.org>; i Redacted leaca.eu>; ! Redacted i
: idemocracy-reporting org>;§ Redacted idoubleverify.com>;{

___________ ‘crispthinking.com>; Redacted gd|S|nformatnonmdex.org>;€
i i@activefence.com>; | Redacted iglobsec.org>; i Redacted ieui.eu>;
i Redacted ifunky.ong>; Redacted fidu.it>; Redacted
< RedactedidOtEUrOpE.EU>; ! Redacted @feedback. org>; R d ; d
iabeurope.eu>; | Redacted iwfanet. org>e edacte
""""""""""""""""""""" @alhance4europe eu>;i Redacted ;Iegltlmate.net>,; Redacted
{Redacted . lec.europa.eus; | Redacted rsf.org>;l Redacted i
< Redacted inewsguardtech.com>;i Redacted linkedin.com>;i Redacted i
i Redacted ieeas.europa.eu>; | Redacted ;doteurope.eu>"' 1
R ivalid.tech>; | Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org>;! ___Redacted
i Redacted iresolver.com>; i Redacted iiabeurope.eu>;; Redacted 5
i newtral.es>; | Redacted deui.eu>; | Redacted
i Redacted irpms.sk>; i Redacted iceeddw.org>;
“vimeo.com>; Redacted ithebrightapp.com>; ' Redacted ;
I Redacted i@Ioglcally.ap;g Redacted iglobsec.org>;i Redacted !
'<§ Redacted .gfaktograf.hr>;§ Redacted ivalid.tech>; | Redacted ivimeo.com>;
i Redacted ‘ebiquity.com>; Redacted vosteurope.org>; [ _Redacted |
] Redacted igoogle com>; i Redacted ivosteurope.org>; R e d a Ct e d
< Redacted igoogle.com>; Redacted iarcom.fr'i Redacted iarcom.fr>
< Redacted -globsec.org>;g Redacted feedback.org>;i____ . Redacted ;
<{Redactediaiforensics.org>; | Redacted idemagog.org.pl>;i Redacted
< Redacted iec.europa.eu>; ¥ Redacted leui.eu>; |
] Redacted ieeas.europa.eu>;i Redacted {@eeas.europa. eu>
i Redacted fb.com>; | Redacted ieui.eu>; Redacted -wmeo com>
i Redacted ieui.eu>; § Redacted llogicallyfacts.com>;| Redacted
<iRedactediavaaz.org>; i Redacted ifirma.seznam.cz>; { Redacted igoogle.com>;
i Redacted iaiforensics.org>; ! Redacted iafp.com>;i Redacted i
<i ___Redacted inewtral.es>; { Redacted imaldita.es>;i Redacted
< ""Redacted __ iffb.com>;i Redacted imicrosoft.com>;  Redacted !

Jlinkedin.com>;i Redacted leeas.europa.eu>; | Redacted ;

idemocracy-reporting.org>; Redacted ich-c.eu>; i Redacted i oogle com>;
Redacted ieaca.eu>; i Redacted i
] Redacted iiabeurope.eu>; T "Redacted  Ki Redacted _justin. tv>,; Redacted
<" "Redacted __ialliancedeurope.eu>; { Redacted ifirma.séznam. ¢z>; "Redacted |
3 Redacted idemagog.org.pl>;i | Redacted ?
jag.gr>; | Redacted firma.seznam.cz>;i
Redacted iactivefence.com>;! Redacted
< Redacted ;resolver.com>;§ Redacted 'disinformationindex.org>; | |
{ Redacted igoogle.com>; i Redacted iaiforensics.org>; i
whotargets.me>; | Redacted iallianced4europe.eu>;i  Redacted |
Redacted iactivefence.com>;§ Redacted |
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< Redacted tiktok.com>; | Redacted irvr.sk>; | Redacted :
< Redacted tadobe.com>;} Redacted iefcsn.com>; Redacted i
< Redacted idoubleverify.com>;i Redacted ieaca.eu>; | Redacted i
i Redacted irvr.sk>;i Redacted imicrosoft.com>;: Redacted ;
! Redacted ipagellapolitica.it>;{ Redacted iabeurope.eu>;!  Redacted |
i Redacted leui.eu>;: Redacted @alliancedeurope.eu>; | " “Redacted '
< Redacted inewsguardtech.com>; | Redacted imaldita.es>; | Redacted ]
< “Redacted idebunk.org>; i Redacted lessurligneurs.eu>; Redacted
< Redacted inewsguardtech.com>;i Redacted :
Redacted @ec.europa.eu>
(o(H] _Redacted @ec.europa.eu>

Subject: RE: Submission of subscription documents & request to convert the Code - publication on Transparency

Centre

Dear Members of the Task-force,

We would like to inform you that based on a request received from platform-signatories we extended the
deadline for submitting the subscription documents until the end of the week (i.e. until Fri 17.01 cob).

At the same time the publication date for the subscription documents through the transparency centre shall

remain unchanged, i.e. scheduled for Wed 22.01 at noon.

We take this occasion to remind you of the “silence period” agreed in the Task-force, during which all
signatories are requested not to disclose the information contained in the subscription documents to the public

and to time any communication related to this matter no

Kind regards,

From: CNECT COP TASK FORCE
Sent: Monday, January 13, 2025 6:30 PM

earlier than the agreed date.

To:! Redacted idisinformationindex.org>;i” Redacted |

<i Redacted igoogle.com>; iRedacted iceeddw.org; | Redacted idemagog.org.pl>;
i Redacted fidu.it>; 1 Redacted iactivefence.com>; Redacted ;

<i “Redacted irsf.org>; i Redacted fidu.it>; Redacted ;

<i Redacted feedback.org>;i Redacted i@lessurligneurs.eu>; Redacted i
Redacted iec.europa.eu>; Redacted Dtiktok.com>; Redacted!
i Redacted iaiforensics.org>; ! Redacted igoogle.com) eI i

< "Redacted _ igoogle.com>;! Redacted @legitimate.net>; ¢ Redacted i

<i"Redacted __maldita.es>;i Redacted itiktok.com>;i Redacted 1
["“Redacted _imicrosoft.com>; i Redacted igoogle.com>;i Redacted :

i Redacted llessurligneurs.eu>;i Redacted @newsguardtech.com>;iRedacted!
Redacted i@disinformationindex.org>; | Redacted leaca.eu>;
Redacted E@democracv-reporting.org> o Redacted !

< Redacted idoubleverify.com>; [ Redacted icrispthinking.com>; Re dacte d
] Redacted disinformationindex.org>; | Redacted iactivefence.com>;

< Redacted iglobsec.org>;: Redacted ieui.eu>; Redacted funky.ong>;

i Redacted fidu.it>; § Redacted idoteurope.eu>; | Redacted ;

<[ "Redacted __ifeedback.org>;i Redacted iabeurope.eu>;! Redacted |

<""Redacted wfanet.org>; i Redacted ialliancedeurope.eu>; *

<i Redacted legitimate.net>; i Redacted iec.europa.eu>; RedaCted

Redacted i@rsf.org>;1 Redacted inewsguardtech.com>;i Redacted !
”ﬁg&“;éf;a""z@Iinkedin.com>;g Redacted leeas.europa.eu>;
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i Redacted idoteurope.eu>; i Redacted valid.tech>;: Redacted i

i Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org>; Redacted i
<i " "Redacted _resolver.com>;i Redacted iiabeurope.eu>;i #
<i " Redacted  inewtral.es>;i Redacted ieui.eu>;i Redacted vosteurope.org>;
i Redacted irpms.sk>; Redacted iceeddw.org>; Redacted !
< Redacted _ vimeo.com>;i Redacted ithebrightapp.com>; Redacted
{ Redacted @logically.ai>;! Redacted iglobsec.org>; Redacted
< Redacted ifaktograf.hr>; Redacted valid.tech>;i  Redacted !
vimeo.com>;i Redacted i@ebiquity.com>; Redacted |
wosteurope.org>; | Redacted igoogle.com>;l_ Redacted !
ivosteurope.org>; Redacted igoogle.com>;
@arcom.fr; Redacted iglobsec.org>; Redacted i
feedback.org>; i Redacted iaiforensics.org>;i.._._. Redacted i
“idemagog.org.pl>; [ Redacted iec.europa.eu>;
! Redacted /Redacted leUi.eu> Redacted i
i Redacted 5@eeas.europa.eu>,‘,i Redacted §@eeas.europa.eu>;{‘-'§éa-a‘-€t-éa"§
<{"Redacted ifb.com>;i Redacted leui.eu>; i Redacted ivimeo.com>;
Redacted @eui.eu>; Redacted . Blogicallyfacts.com>;; Redacted
<iRedacted!AVAAZ.OrZ>} Redacted @firma.seznam.cz>;:
Redacted laiforensics.org>;!  Redacted |
Redacted inewtral.es>; i Redacted i
Redacted ifb.com>;! Redacted :
Redacted flinkedin.com>; Redacted |
i Redacted ieeas.europa.eu>; Redacted idemocracy-reporting.org>;__ Redacted )
< Redacted ICH-C.EU>; | Redacted igoogle.com>; | Redacted ieaca.eu>;
1 Redacted i Redacted |avaaz.org>;! Redacted iabeurope.eu>; | Redacted!
Redacted ljustin.tv>; € Redacted | Redacted ialliancedeurope.eu>;:
<" ""Redacted ___ifirma.seznam.cz>; i Redacted ieui.eu>;§ Redacted
<i Redacted idemagog.org.pl>;i Redacted
| Redacted firma.seznam.cz>; i Redacted irsf.org>; i
{Redacted Dactivefence.com>;| Redacied resolver.com>; {Redacted]
P Redacted @disinformationindex.org>; | Redacted igoogle.com>;
i Redacted Eaiforensics.org>;§ Redacted §whotargets.me>;§ Redacted !
<" ""Redacted _ialliancedeurope.eu>; Redacted logically.ai>; Redacted
i Redacted @activefence.com>;i Redacted ttiktok.com>;i Redacted
Redacted irvr.sk>;i Redacted iadobe.com>} Redacted i
Redacted idoubleverify.com>;: Redacted ;
Redacted irvr.sk>; | Redacted
imicrosoft.com>; i Redacted ipagellapolitica.it>;
i Redacted iiabeurope.eu>; f Redacted leui.eu>; Redacted !
i Redacted ialliancedeurope.eu>;i Redacted inewsguardtech.com>;
i Redacted imaldita.es>; i Redacted idebunk.org>;: Redacted i
<i Redacted ilessurligneurs.eu>; Redacted inewsguardtech.com>;
i Redacted ‘ec.europa.eu>

Subject: Submission of subscription documents & request to convert the Code - publication on
Transparency Centre

Dear signatories of the Code of Practice on Disinformation,

We are writing to remind you of the upcoming deadline of 15 January, close of business, for submitting
your subscription documents, should you wish to update them ahead of the Code’s conversion to a
Code of Conduct. As agreed at the last Plenary meeting of 19 December, we kindly remind you (i.e.
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VLOPSEs) to add to your submission a written request for the converted Code to enter into force as a
Code of Conduct, effective from 1 July 2025, to reflect your related demand. As a reminder, please find
below the proposed language for this:

“Iname of service] hereby submits the final subscription document listing its commitment and
measures. This document replaces the earlier draft submitted to and discussed within the Task-
force. Further to the discussions at the Task-Force meetings of 13 and 18 December 2024, [name
of service] requests that, subject to o positive assessment from the European Commission and
the European Board for Digital Services, the submitted Code enters into force os a Code of
Conduct as of the 1 July 2025.”

As agreed during the plenary, the subscription forms of all current signatories will be uploaded to the
Transparency Center website. To this extent, VOST has created an additional section for the
Transparency Center, where both the original and the revised subscription forms will become available
to the public on 22 January. Besides submitting your subscription form to the CoP functional mailbox,
no further action is needed from your side.

In this regard we also would like to remind you of the agreed silence period until 22 January, until
when contents of the submitted forms will remain confidential, and during which (all) signatories are
kindly requested not to disclose the information contained in the submissions to the public.

Under the following link, you will find the slides that were presented at the last Plenary meeting:
@] plenary_2024.12.19 (002).pptx

Thank you all, and kind regards,

The CoP Disinfo Team
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DELIVERABLE - New SLI on demonetisation efforts, capturing the

financial value (€Euros) of actions taken

Content:
Context: Goal for this group and process/key considerations
Method agreed for developing and reporting on the new SLI

Objective

Under commitment 1 of the Code, Signatories are expected to report quantitatively, on actions they took
to remove, block, or otherwise restrict advertising on pages and/or domains that disseminate harmful
Disinformation, at the Member State or language level (existing SLI 1.1.1).

In addition, according to the same commitment, Signatories should develop a methodology to report on
demonetisation efforts, including data related to the velume of advertising supporting Disinformation
sources. To that end, they should propose, within 6 months, a new Service Level Indicator that provides
insight into the impact of actions taken, at service and Member States levels — to be included in the first
reporting exercise (as a new SLI1 1.1.2).

Process and key considerations

Since July, the Ad-Scrutiny/Demonetisation Subgroup has held sessions to identify activities pertinent to
demonetizing disinformation. The group ran a series of workshops that uncovered two main actions to
take towards demonetising disinformation:
1. Preventing the flow of legitimate advertising investment to sites or content that are designated as
disinformation (on which the SG is expected to deliver a new SLI, as required by Measure 1.1),
2. Preventing the flow of advertising investment from designated sources of disinformation.

The SG has agreed that financial values are the best way of expressing the impact of actions taken.
However, we recognize that financial measures may be difficult for all signatories to divulge or produce.
For that reason, and based on the diversity of the types of companies that are signatories we have
identified best practice metrics for all members to work towards, while accepting that signatories will
progress towards best practices over time:
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Preventing Legitimate Advertising to Sites or Content Designated as Disinformation (focus
of the SG’s work, in line with the request of the Code)

Authorized Metric Authorized Next Best Metric
(Best Practice) (Acceptable Practice)
Media Measure' Query / Bid? Impression?
Reporting Territory* Member State Member State
Media Format/Unit Type® Media format Media format

Preventing Advertising from Sites or Designated Sources of Disinformation (to be further

discussed)
Authorized Metric Authorized Next Best Metric
(Best Practice) (Acceptable Practice)
Media Measure Euro Query / Impression
Reporting Territory Member State Member State
Media Format/Unit Type Media format Media format

In the event that a signatory is submitting a media metric (e.g., query / bid, impression), the SG has
agreed to onboard an agreed-upon conversion factor (e.g., normative cost-per-thousand) to translate the
media metric to a financial value. The SG has agreed that at the very least it must recognize Territory,
and in the best case recognize Territory and Unit Type.

The SG also spent considerable time discussing and reviewing the lookback window for historical actions
(such as impressions) and whether or not the CoP monitoring efforts should take into account previous
harms rendered (e.g., advertising that was inadvertently in support of disinformation). The SG considered
that a particular challenge in this context concerns the observed patterns where a persistent purveyor
may deceive industry actors by acting as a legitimate entity and then shift to illegitimate activities.
Pinpointing the precise date when the transition happens may prove difficult and could bring potential
inaccuracies into the process (over or underestimation). The SG nevertheless concluded that impressions
are an important and insightful metric to take forward and will work towards establishing an appropriate
lookback window that sufficiently mitigates the risk of potential over or underestimation, in time for
incorporation into the baseline reports.

Method for developing and reporting on the SLI

Method developed

1 Metric submitted

2 Request placed between a seller and buyer of advertising that can detail amongst other things website, specific content, targeting
data inclusive of audience or content, impressions

3 Comprehensive calculation of the number of people who have been reached by a piece of media content by passive exposure
(viewing a piece of content) or active engagement (visiting a destination)

4 Geographical unit for reporting purposes (e.g., Italy, Spain, France, Germany, etc.)

5 Media format (e.g., Online video, Display banner unit, Story unit, In-stream audio)
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In our review of signatory activities, we identified that the queries and bids are a common practice that
brings together industry participants in the purchase or sale of media inventory. This is a common metric
that is shared by ad buyers (agencies and advertisers), and ad sellers (platforms, publishers) and
placement services such as adtech.

However, in our discovery of this common method we identified that costs or value are not associated
with this metric as it is a pre-monetization or pre-transaction measure. In other words a query or bid is a
signal on media purchasing or sale before a cost estimate is provided.

As such a conversion factor needs to be used to develop a value for the media metric (be it query / bid or
impression) using a database of normative media costs at the most specific level as possible: at the
market level and at the unit level.

In identifying this need, the SG has agreed that the provider must have a transparent and accepted
methodology for estimating media costs that should be available to members and stakeholders of the
code of practice.

Step 1: Conversions Third party estimator updates normative media costs at market level and/or
updated unit level (e.g., conversion factor)
Step 2: Conversion Third party estimator distributes conversion factor output to signatories

factors distributed
Step 3: Signatories apply | Signatories apply conversion factor to media metric related to their actions

conversion factor during the reporting period

Step 4: Signatories fill in Signatories provide the results of the calculation (inserting the financial value)
reporting in the approved monitoring template to report on activity

Step 5: Monitoring quality | Subgroup convenes a meeting with the signatories and third-party estimator
assurance to verify accuracy

As a result, signatories will be able to attest a certain number of euros related to demonetisation of
legitimate advertising to disinformation actors in Member States, through:

SLI 1.1.2 Signatories will report on the financial value (in euros) of the actions taken to
demonetise disinformation actors (as reported under SLI 1.1.1), based on media metrics
available to them (query/bid or impression) and applying an agreed-upon conversion
factor provided by a third party designated by the Task-force. Reporting will be provided at
Member State level.

The SG will continue to explore the possibility to develop an additional SLI in relation to demonetization of
advertising investment from disinformation actors in its future discussions.

inalisation steps (ongoing)

In terms of finalizing the proposal, we need to confirm:

1. Final sign-off by signatories on the level of metrics provided by organizations
2. SG leaders to confirm that component media metric will not be distributed outside of key
personnel involved in the code, monitoring, or conversion process
3. SG tofinalize the selection/designation of an official third party estimator
a. SG to clarify the operational designation of the estimator within the code

3
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b. SG to confirm if any commercial requirements are necessary to compensate the third
party estimator
4. SG to engage in ongoing discussions to determine steps taken to harmonize future submissions
5. 8G to document reporting timelines for benchmark and subsequent waves with signatories
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EUROPEAN COMMISSION
DIRECTORATE-GENERAL FOR COMMUNICATIONS NETWORKS, CONTENT AND TECHNOLOGY

Media Policy
Media Convergence and Social Media

AGENDA

FIRST MEETING OF THE PERMANENT TASK-FORCE
CRISIS RESPONSE SUBGROUP

10 August
16:30 —18:00

1. Opening and Welcoming remarks
2. Discussion of Draft Terms of Reference for the Subgroup

3. Tour de table on actions taken related to fighting disinformation on the
war in Ukraine (all subgroup members)

a. Overview of actions laken by each signatory

b. Current cooperation between signatories and identifying further
possibilities for cooperation

¢. Main learnings so far and possibilities for further action

d. Cooperation opportunities based on previously successful cooperation
workflow implemented bilaterally

4. Any other business
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EUROPEAN COMMISSION
DIRECTORATE-GENERAL FOR COMMUNICATIONS NETWORKS, CONTENT AND TECHNOLOGY

Media Policy
Media Convergence and Social Media

AGENDA

MEETING OF THE PERMANENT TASK-FORCE
CRISIS RESPONSE SUBGROUP

21 September
16:30 —18:00

1. Opening and Welcoming remarks
2. Tour de table on actions taken related to fighting disinformation

a. War in Ukraine: Disinformation narratives about Ukrainian offensive,
targeting support for sanctions, etc. and new actions taken by
signatories to limit disinformation around the war (including any

policy changes).

b. Public Health and Pandemic: Disinformation narratives related to
COVID-19 and Monkeypox and new actions taken by signatories to
limit disinformation around the war (including any policy changes).

Please share as much as possible input ahead of the meeting in writing (o keep the
discussion round efficient and concentrate in the oral interventions on new
developments and priority issues.

3. Discussion on pre-emptive actions on emergent crises on the basis of the
proposal submitted by VOST

4. Discussion of sharing practices in the subgroup (if time allows)

a. Sharing of input about disinformation narratives ahead of the SG
meetings

b. Sharing of relevant reports

5. Any other business
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

7 September
16:30 —18:00

1. Opening and Welcoming remarks

2. Tour de table on actions taken related to fighting disinformation on the
war in Ukraine, as well as other current crises such as COVID-19

a. Overview of actions laken by each signatory

b. Current cooperation between signalories and identifving further
possibilities for cooperation

¢. Main learnings so far and possibilities for further action

d. Cooperation opportunities based on previously successful cooperation
workflow implemented bilaterally

3. Any other business
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AGENDA

MEETING OF THE PERMANENT TASK-FORCE
CRISIS RESPONSE SUBGROUP

19 April
16:30-18:00
1. Opening and Welcoming remarks

2. Sharing of new developments and actions taken related to fighting
disinformation

a. War in Ukraine
b. Public Health and Pandemic

3. Subgroup comments and deliberation on the discussion paper for a
Crisis Risk Assessment Methodology & Rapid Response System

a. Discussion on what the signatories currently do in terms of crisis
response, and how this could be used as basis for further action on
individual and group level

4. Any other business
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AGENDA

MEETING OF THE PERMANENT TASK-FORCE
CRISIS RESPONSE SUBGROUP

22 February
16:30 - 18:00

1. Opening and Welcoming remarks

2. Sharing of new developments and actions taken related to fighting
disinformation

a. War in Ukraine: Disinformation narratives, e.g. about the 21 March
speech of President Putin, Russian bombing of Ukrainian civilian
energy infrastructure, on sanctions in connection with the energy
crisis, delivery of armoured vehicles to Ukraine etc.

b. Public Health and Pandemic: Disinformation narratives related to
COVID-19 and new actions taken by signatories to limit such
disinformation (including any policy changes)

3. Presentation of discussion paper on risk assessment and rapid response,
followed by first impressions by the group

4. Any other business
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AGENDA

MEETING OF THE PERMANENT TASK-FORCE
CRISIS RESPONSE SUBGROUP

08 February
16:30 - 18:00

1. Opening and Welcoming remarks

2. Sharing of new developments and actions taken related to fighting
disinformation

a. War in Ukraine: Disinformation narratives, e.g. about Russian
bombing of Ukrainian civilian energy infrastructure, on sanctions in
connection with the energy crisis, delivery of armoured vehicles to

Ukraine etc.

b. Public Health and Pandemic: Disinformation narratives related to
COVID-19 and new actions taken by signatories to limit such
disinformation (including any policy changes)

Wherever possible, please share input ahead of the meeting in writing (o keep the
discussion round efficient and concentrate in the oral interventions on new
developments and priority issues, in particular new policy changes and latest
developments on trends and narratives.

3. Discussion: Access to API’s and its impact on crisis response actions

4. Discussion on terms of reference and work ahead for the subgroup

5. Any other business
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AGENDA

MEETING OF THE PERMANENT TASK-FORCE
CRISIS RESPONSE SUBGROUP

11 January

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

3. Discussion: Signatories responses to the call by Vice President Jourova
to expand actions across Central and Eastern Europe

4. Any other business
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AGENDA

MEETING OF THE PERMANENT TASK-FORCE
CRISIS RESPONSE SUBGROUP

14 December

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
connection with the energy crisis, inflation and food shortages in

developing countries.

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

3. Discussion: Signatories future plans for actions and policies to fight
Covid-19 misinformation and disinformation

4. Information Point: Final crisis reporting template adopted

5. Any other business
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EU Code of Practice on Disinformation

PREAMBLE

Following European Commission "Guidance on strengthening the Code of Practice on
Disinformation (hereafter the “Guidance”), the European Commission’s Communication on the
European Democracy Action Plan' (hereafter 'EDAP'), the European Commission’s
Communication "Tackling online disinformation: a European approach"? (hereafter the
"Communication"), the Report of the High Level Expert Group?, the Council Conclusions of 28
June 2018¢, and the various important initiatives taking place across Europe® to address the
challenges posed by the dissemination of disinfermation, the companies and associations
listed on Annex [1] ("Signatories") of this code of practice (the "Code") recognise their role in
contributing to solutions to the challenges posed by misinformation and disinformation®.

As provided under the EDAP, “Misinformation” is defined as: “false or misleading content
shared without harmful intent though the eftects can still be harmful, e.g. when people share
false information with friends and family in good faith.”

In the same Communication, “Disinformation” is defined as : “false or misleading content that
is spread with an intention to deceive or secure economic or political gain and which may
cause public harm.”

The notion of "Disinformaticn” does not include misleading advertising, reporting errors, satire
and parody, or clearly identified partisan news and commentary, and is without prejudice to
binding legal obligations, self-regulatory advertising codes, and standards regarding
misleading advertising.

'https:/feur-lex.europa.eu/legal-
content/EN/TXT/?uri=COM%3A2020%3A790%3AFIN&qid=1607079662423

2 http Jlec.europa eu/newsroom/dae/document.cfm?doc_id=51804.
3https:h'ec<europa.euldigilal-single-rnarkeb’en.fnews/ﬁnal-reporbhigh—level-expert—group-fake—news~and-online-
disinformation,

i nttp /fwww.consllium europa.eu//media/3d936/28 -euco-final-conclusions-en pdf.

5 Measures taken by the European Unicn, ils Member States and other relevant stakeholders sheuld limit the
incidence and impact of online disinformation and must be taken within the legal framework provided by the Charter
of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (CFREU) and the European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR).
In particular, Freedom of expression is enshrined in Article 11 of the CFREU and Article 10 of the ECHR as an
indispensable enabler of sound decision-making in free and democralic socielies. Freedom of expression extends
to print, broadcast and online media and includes the right to hold opinions and to receive and impart information
and ideas “without interference by public authorities and regardless of frantiers,” as well as the integral, corollary
values of media freedom and media pluralism.

8§ As the scope covers both misinformation and disinformation, certain signatories are often not able to
accurately infer intent from online content or account level data due to the nature of their
service/product

DISCLAIMER: THIS IS A FIRST ITERATION OF THE REVISED CODE AND IS BY NO
MEANS A COMMITMENT BY ANY PARTY INVOLVED IN THIS WORK YET.
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Commented |A1]: Signatories might wanl to consider
to add to the Preamble additional considerations from
the Guidance, in particular on the broader scope of the
new Code with a wider participation and new services
to be covered, such as messaging apps.

Commented [A2]: Signatories might want to consider
to add a reference to the DSA proposal.

In this context it is important to recall that the
strengthening of the Code called for in the Guidance
aims at establishing a co-reguiatory framework for
fighting disinformation for VLOPs. In that view we
would suggest signatories to carify that the
strengthened Code should become the Code of
Conduct that VLOP will adhere and comply to, once the
DSA will be adopted, in order lo take appropriate risk
mitigating measure against disinformation.

At the same time, for those signatories that are not
VLOPs, the Code will remain a Code of Practice
without co-regulatory enforcement mechanism.

Signalories may want to consider lo clarify this dual
nature of lhe Code in the Preamble.

Commented |A3]: Signatories might want to be clearer
in the preamble how they are planning to approach
misinformation.

One way of approaching this could be to specify
depending on the chapter and/or specific commitments
to what extent the commitments / the measures apply
to misinformation.

For reference we recall here the text of the Guidance:
“While the main target remains disinformation in the

narrow sense’, in the strengthened Code signatories
should commit to have in place appropriate policies [ ]

| often dirculated o a much wider audience than family -

Commented [A4]: We would suggest signatories to
reconsider using this example and consider rather the
use of a more general wording, given in section 3.2 of
Guid , that better refl the spiritof extending the
scope of the Code regarding misinformation. There
misinformation is defined as “false or misleading
information spread without malicious intent”

The example used — sharing content with friends with
family — may be misleading as it minimises the
potential impact of misinformation, as misinformation is

Commented [A5]: To avoid confusion, Signatories
may want to clarify this formulation, to differentiate
between “misleading advertising” and advertising
containing disinformation.

While ‘misleading advertising” i.e. misleading or
comparative advertising in the sense of the relevant
legislation may be outside of the scope of the Code,
advertising that contains disinformation should be
clearly covered by the Code as foreseen in section 4.3
of the Guidance: "Commitmenits to address advertising
containing disinformation” s
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The Signatories recognise and agree with the Commission’'s conclusions that "the exposure
of citizens to large scale Disinformation, including misleading or outright false information, is
a major challenge for Europe. Our open democratic societies depend on public debates that
allow well-informed citizens to express their will through free and fair political processes".’

As the Commission repeatedly acknowledges in its Guidance, the EDAP, and the
Communication:®, the Signatories are mindful of the fundamental right to freedom of
expression and to an open Internet, and the delicate balance which any efforts to limit the
spread and impact of otherwise lawful content must sirike.

In recognition that the dissemination of Disinformation has many facets and is facilitated by
and impacts a very broad segment of actors in the ecosystem, all stakeholders have roles to
play in countering its spread.

It is in this spirit that the Signatories have drafted the present Code, its sign-up forms
identifying the commitment areas each signatory is making, and a transitional plan translating
these commitments into concrete actions that will be shared with the European Commission.
These additional elements are an integral part of this Code, and hereby, the Signatories
commit themselves to adhere to the relevant commitments listed next to their names. Given
the breadth of the commitments outlined in the Code and the heterogeneous range of
stakeholders involved, Signatories need not sign up to every commitment. Signatories will sign
up to commitments which correspond to the product(s) and/or service(s) they offer, their roles
in the value chain, their technical capabilities and their liability regimes as provided under EU
Law, which vary depending on the role they play in the creafion and dissemination of the
content at stake. Hence, the Code refers to the individual Signatory that has accepted certain
commitments as indicated on individual sign-up forms with the expression " Appropriate
Signatory”. This does not commit all Signatories of the Code to sign up to every commitment.
Sign-up forms will include each Signatory's reasons for the commitments they did and did not
elect to accept.

The Signatories recognize that because the various Signatories operate differently, with
different purposes, technologies and audiences, the Code allows for different approaches to
accomplishing the spirit of the provisions herein. Stakeholders who help address the spread
of disinformation through their tools, technical efforts, philanthropic work®, or specific
expertise, could also become signatories, adopting commitments that are attuned to the
company or organisation and the particular role they play in the online ecosystem?®.

7 Communication, paragraph 1

8 See, e.g., lhe Communication, paragrapn 3.1.1, where the Commission stales that all actions taken lo challenge
Disinformation "should strictly respect freedom of expression and include safeguards that prevent their misuse, for
example, the censoring of crifical, satirical, dissenting, or shocking speech. They should also strictly respect the
Commission's commitment to an open, safe and reliable Internet”

?|n order to allow transparency and avoid potential conflicts of interest, NGOs wishing to join the
Code as new signatories should submit information regarding their missicn, funding structures and
decision making processes.

10 These interested signatories should declare the areas of commitments they intend to adhere to
ahead of joining the relevant issue groups.

DISCLAIMER: THIS IS A FIRST ITERATION OF THE REVISED CODE AND IS BY NO

MEANS A COMMITMENT BY ANY PARTY INVOLVED IN THIS WORK YET.
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Commented [A6]: As discussed previously,
transitional plans need to be made public, to alow the
necessary transparency and public scrutiny. They can
not be shared with the Commission only. We suggest
to reflect this in the preamble. Signatories might also
want to consider mentioning in the preamble that
transitional plans will contain a clear timeframe for the
swift implementation of the Code's commitments with
clear milestones and ceadines. Signaiories may also
want to indicate here the general imeframe for the
implementation / transitional period of the Code that
should overall take no more than 3-6 months.

Commented [A7]: We would suggest to ciarify/spell it
out what is meant by “additional elements”

1

Commented [A8]: Signatories may want lo consider to
nuance this statement, to be in line with the expectation
set out In the Guidance that signalories should sign up
to all commitments that are relevant for their services,

The Guidance stales In this regard. “Signalories should
sign up to the commitmenis that are relevant for their
services. While participation in the Code and
subscriplion Lo its commilments remain voluntary, in
order to ensure the Code's effectiveness as a risk
mitigation tool. signatories should not, in principle, opt
out of commitmenis that are relevant for their services.

See related to this also the next comment.

Commented [A9]: Signatories might want to review
this sentence to make sure that it may notbe
misleading to the reader. The Guidance makes it clear
that “signatories should not opt out of commitments
that are relevant for their services”. (see full reference
to the relevant part of the Guidance in the above
comment). We would suggest to consider clarifying this
sentence lo make sure that it fully reflects the spirit of
the Guidance.

We would suggeslt as well that Signatories consider
adding a commitment in the preamble or closing that
signatories will review their commitments (in the annual
reports) and sign up to additional ones if they became

| applicable in the meartime.

Commented [A10]: See the commenls above, We
would suggest to revise the drafting to make sure that
the formulations may not cause misunderstandings and
fully reflect the spirit of the Guidance.

Commented [A11]: See the comments above. In that
view Signatories might aiso want to review this
sentence Io make sure that it properly reflects the spirit
of the Guidance regarding the requirement that
signatories should notopt out of commitments that are
relevant for their services. This could be e.g. done by
referring to the signateries reasons for not signing up o
the commitment in question.

Itis also suggested that signatories consider to reflect
here that the sign-up forms should also clarify how the
commitments relate to the different services provided

by the Signatory. L
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The Signatories recognise that trade associations that have signed this Code are not entering
into obligations on behalf of their members. However, these associations commit to make their
members fully aware of this Code, and encourage them to join it or respect its principles, as
appropriate.

The application of this Code is limited for each Signatory to services provided in the States
that are Contracting Parties to the European Economic Area.

Signatories, including signatory associations, commit to undertake the actions provided for by
this Code in a manner that ensures full compliance with EU and national competition law. By
way of example, Signatories must not discuss, communicate or exchange any commercially
sensitive information. This includes non-public information on: prices; marketing and
advertising strategy; costs and revenues; trading terms and conditions with third parties
(including purchasing strategy), terms of supply; trade programmes or distribution strategy.

The Code shall apply within the framework of existing laws of the EU and its Member States
and must not be construed in any way as replacing or interpreting the existing legal framework,
and, in particular (but not limited to):

- The EU Charter of Fundamental Rights;

- The European Convention on Human Rights:

- Directive 2000/31/EC, with particular reference to Articles 12 to 15, which shall apply
to any obligation of this Code targeting or assumed by mere conduits, caching providers, or
hosting providers such as providers of network, search engines, browsers, online blogging

platforms, online forums, video-sharing platforms, social media, etc.;

- Regulation (EU) 2016/679 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the
processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data;

- Directive 2005/29/EC concerning unfair business-to-consumer commercial practices
in the internal market;

- Directive 2006/114/EC concerning misleading and comparative advertising;

- The case law of the CJEU and ECHR on the proportionality of measures designed to
limit access to and circulation of harmful content.

I PURPOSES

The purpose of this Code is to identify the actions that Signatories could put in place in order
to address the challenges related to "Disinformation”

DISCLAIMER: THIS IS A FIRST ITERATION OF THE REVISED CODE AND IS BY NO
MEANS A COMMITMENT BY ANY PARTY INVOLVED IN THIS WORK YET.
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Commented [A12]: Signatories may wanl to consider
to include here that trade associations also commit to
work towards evolving the Code in a way that prepares
the ground for their membership te join it.

Commented [A13]: Signatories may wanl lo consider
adding a reference also to the relevant legslative
proposals, notably the DSA and the proposal on

ksponsored political content,

Commented [A14]: Signatories might want to reflect
on the need and relevance of Ihis secton and consider
replacing it by a more general and up-to-date
formulation that properly reflects the scope and areas
of the revised Code.

While the objectives/purposes of the Code may be
recalled, the current drafting may be overly delailed
and appear redundant with the specific parts expected
on commitments. It may also be misleading as it
singles out some of the commitments of the previous
Code while not mentioning other important areas for
the revised Code.

The signatories might rather want to include in this
section an overall declaration of intent based on the
main chapters of the Guidance where actions are
expecled (e.g.):

1/ scrutiny of ad placement:

- demonetising disinformation;

- Improving cooperation;

- address adverstising containing disinfo.

2/ political advertising and issue-based ad:

- efficient labeling,

etc.

A revisited section could keep certain "horizontal”
elements, which give an indication on how Signatories
intend to cperationalise the Code. These could be
aspecls related to e.g. the Code’s governance, related
to the use of key performance indicators and the
monitering process.

A reference to the 'living-nature’ of the Code could be
also considered, Indicating that the Code will be subject
to review by the Task-force, in view of evolving the
Cede in view of technological, societal market and
legislalive developments,

Signatories may also want to consider to indicate it
here that the Code remains open for other Signalories
to join.

rCommenled [A15]: Signatories might consider a

revised language ihat reflects the objective and nature
of the Code: For instance they might say “Signatories
will put in place” or "commit to putin place”
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In line with the Commission's Communication, the Signatories of the Code of Practice
recognise the importance of efforts to:

(i) Include safeguards against Disinformation and related misuses of services;

(i) Strengthen transparency and accountability around ad placements by developing or
implementing effective means to further reduce economic incentives for the spread of
disinformation;

(iii) Ensure transparency about political and issue-based advertising, also with a view to
enabling users to understand why they have been targeted by a given advertisement;

(iv) Implement and promote reasonable policies against misrepresentation;

(v) Intensify and demonstrate the effectiveness of efforts to close fake accounts and
establish clear marking systems and rules for bots to ensure their activities cannot be
confused with human interactions;

(vi) Intensify and communicate on the effectiveness of efforts to ensure the integrity of
services with regards to accounts whose purpose and intent'! is to spread
disinformation, as per specifics assessed and determined by the Relevant Signatory,
and consistently with Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights, the
fundamental right of anonymity and pseudonymity, and the proportionality principle.
Consistently with Article 10 of the European Convention on Human Rights and the
principle of freedom of opinion, invest in technological means to promote and where
relevant prioritise relevant, authentic, and accurate and authoritative information where
appropriate in search, feeds, or other automatically ranked distribution channels and
invest in features that empower users to make informed decisions about the content
they encounter online. In the context of the COVID-19 pandemic, signatories
implemented various solutions that prioritise and lead users to authoritative sources
(e.g. ranking systems, information panels, banners, pop-ups, maps and prompts) and
will continue to build on this experience to develop and apply such tools on topics of
particular public and societal interest or in crisis situations. Be that as it may,
Signatories should not be compelled by governments, nor should they be forced to
adopt policies, to delete or prevent access to otherwise lawful content or messages".

(viiy  Consider empowering users with tools enabling a customized and interactive online
experience so as to facilitate content discovery and access to different news sources
representing alternative viewpoints, also providing them with easily-accessible tools to
report Disinformation.

11 Certain signatories are often not able to accurately infer intent from online content or account level
data due to the nature of their service/product.
DISCLAIMER: THIS IS A FIRST ITERATION OF THE REVISED CODE AND IS BY NO
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(vii)  Improve transparency regarding the main parameters, including context, used for
prioritising or deprioritising information, and invest in user controls for the content that
they see. Also, consider using risk management techniques to mitigate risks of
recommender systems inadvertently spreading disinformation.

(ix) Work to enable privacy-compliant access to data for fact-checking and research
activities. To that end Signatories will work, in cooperation with the research
community, EDMO and relevant national authorities, towards an operational
framework for privacy-compliant access to data on advertising and the functioning of
their services with respect to the spread of disinformation for independent investigation
by good-faith vetted researchers

(x)

(xi) Work towards a consistent implementation of the commitments across EU Member
States, where the Signatory is operational.

(xil)  Support the fact-checking community's work to provide people with reliable information

and their efforts to increase the coverage of their activities across EU Member States.

This Code is without prejudice to other initiatives aiming at tackling Disinformation on
platforms.

This Code is agreed in good faith between the Signatories, building on a fair and honest
representation of their intentions. For the sake of allowing a more comprehensive
understanding of the Code, the commitments listed in the following paragraph are introduced
by an explanation of the detailed purposes and context related to each group of commitments
in the five relevant fields addressed by the Code.

DISCLAIMER: THIS IS A FIRST ITERATION OF THE REVISED CODE AND IS BY NO
MEANS A COMMITMENT BY ANY PARTY INVOLVED IN THIS WORK YET.

1836

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED

Commented [A16]: DOT EUROPE: Our members
would not be against sharing data in good-faith but we
understand that eventually companies would need to
make assessments on a case-by-case basis, as any of
this would be subject to their own business obligations
including confidentiality requirements, etc. The
‘operational framework' sound quite ambitious, yet it is
not really clear what would it entail, and from that
perspective we would be more comfortable talking
aboul ‘enabling giving access to data...",

The second tweak 'insight into' is to ensure alignment
with the first change. Otherwise, this text would no
longer make sense.

Commented [A17]: COM: As stated previously, we
suggest to remove such details from this section.

Regarding the issue of access to data for research
purposes, the Guidance aims at creating the condition
for researchers to carry out research” essential to the
proper understanding of the evolution of the risks linked
to disinformation and can contribute to the
development of risk mitigation mechanisms”. Improving
access to dala for researchers is a key area of the
Guidance where significant improvement is expected,

According to the Guidance the aim of the strengthened
Code should be to” create a framework that, already in
the interim before the DSA’s adoption, allows

ers the y to platform data and
also facilitates in the long term the development of a
specific fr for data tailored for

conducting research on the disinformation
phenomena”. Under the framework “The conditions for

should be transp , open and non-
discriminatory, proportionate and justified” and “provide
for the possibility of real-time access to certain types of
data, in order to enable the prompt assessment of
emerging or evolving risks and the design of
appropriate mitigation measures”

Commented [A18]: This could be a useful horizontal
element to add in this chapter or another par of the

preamble.

Commented [A19]: See the comment above related to
the entire section "Purposes”. We suggest revising this
seclion in that view.

Therefore we do not give specific comments related to
the list with the exception of data sharing - to react to
the DOT comment — and to indicale that the element
on MS level implementation is an important issue that
could be indeed mentioned as a horizontal issue.

Commented [A20]: It may be useful to clarify what
initiatives are meant here.
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